# The Raiser's Edge<sup>™</sup>

Membership Data Entry Guide

#### 013112

©2012 Blackbaud, Inc. This publication, or any part thereof, may not be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, or mechanical, including photocopying, recording, storage in an information retrieval system, or otherwise, without the prior written permission of Blackbaud, Inc.

The information in this manual has been carefully checked and is believed to be accurate. Blackbaud, Inc., assumes no responsibility for any inaccuracies, errors, or omissions in this manual. In no event will Blackbaud, Inc., be liable for direct, indirect, special, incidental, or consequential damages resulting from any defect or omission in this manual, even if advised of the possibility of damages.

In the interest of continuing product development, Blackbaud, Inc., reserves the right to make improvements in this manual and the products it describes at any time, without notice or obligation.

All Blackbaud product names appearing herein are trademarks or registered trademarks of Blackbaud, Inc.

All other products and company names mentioned herein are trademarks of their respective holder.

RE7-DataMembership-013112

# Contents

WHAT IS IN THIS GUIDE?
Membership
Frequently Used Terms
Navigate in Membership
User Options
Membership Business Rules
Understand the Membership Record
Understand Membership Benefits 29
Membership Categories
Membership Checklist
Work with Membership Records
Summary Membership Information
Comments and Reasons on a Membership Record
Historic Membership Information
Membership Attributes and Notes
Membership Transactions
Global Membership Transactions
Print Membership Information
Membership Reports
View Other Memberships
Membership Tab of a Constituent Record 116
INDEX

# What Is In This Guide?

In the *Membership Data Entry Guide*, you learn to add, edit, and delete membership records (when you have the optional module, *Membership Management*). You can also learn about the following.

- "Membership Business Rules" on page 16
- "Lifetime Memberships" on page 37
- "Membership Solicitors" on page 39
- "Add other members and card information" on page 42
- "Open and break a link between a gift and a membership record" on page 61
- "Add membership benefits information" on page 63
- "Drop lapsed members" on page 106

### How Do I Use These Guides?

*The Raiser's Edge* user guides contain examples, scenarios, procedures, graphics, and conceptual information. Side margins contain notes, tips, warnings, and space for you to write your own notes.

To find help quickly and easily, you can access the *Raiser's Edge* documentation from several places.

**User Guides.** You can access PDF versions of the guides by selecting **Help**, **User Guides** from the shell menu bar or by clicking **Help** on the Raiser's Edge bar in the program. You can also access the guides on our Web site at www.blackbaud.com. From the menu bar, select **Support**, **User Guides**.

In a PDF, page numbers in the Table of Contents, Index, and all cross-references are hyperlinks. For example, click the page number by any heading or procedure on a Table of Contents page to go directly to that page.

Help File. In addition to user guides, you can learn about *The Raiser's Edge* by accessing the help file in the program. Select Help, The Raiser's Edge Help Topics from the shell menu bar or press F1 on your keyboard from anywhere in the program.

Narrow your search in the help file by enclosing your search in quotation marks on the Search tab. For example, instead of entering Load Defaults, enter "Load Defaults". The help file searches for the complete phrase in quotes instead of individual words.



# Membership

Frequently Used Terms	
Navigate in Membership	
Parts of the Memberships Page	
Membership Links	6
Membership Locators	6
Access a Membership Record	6
Toolbar	. 14
User Options	. 15
Membership Business Rules	16
Name Display, Membership Business Rules	. 17
Generate IDs Rules	. 18
Membership Options, General Business Rules	. 21
Membership Options, Activity Business Rules	. 23
Understand the Membership Record	. 26
Membership Tab	
Membership History Tab	. 27
Attributes/Notes Tab	. 29
Understand Membership Benefits	. 29
Membership Categories	
Membership Checklist	
Work with Membership Records	
General Membership Information	
Lifetime Memberships	
Membership Solicitors	
Members and Card Information	
Membership and Gifts	
Membership Benefits	
Membership Renewal Notice Information	
Summary Membership Information	
Comments and Reasons on a Membership Record	
Historic Membership Information	
Delete Historic Information	
Membership Attributes and Notes	
Membership Transactions	
Renew a Membership	
Rejoin a Membership	
Upgrade a Membership	
Downgrade a Membership	
Drop a Membership	
Delete a Membership	
Global Membership Transactions	
Globally Drop Lapsed Members	
Globally Add Membership Information to a Group of Records	109

#### 2 CHAPTER

Print Membership Information	. 109
Membership Reports	
View Other Memberships	. 114
Membership Tab of a Constituent Record	. 116
Membership Transactions from the Membership Tab of a Constituent Record	. 116
Membership Tab of a Constituent Record General Information	. 117
Summary Membership Information on a Constituent Record	. 119

#### Procedures

Open a membership record
Search for a membership record using an existing query
Search for a membership record from a new query 11
Establish membership user options
Define default membership name display rules
Define default business rules for generating IDs 19
Define general business rules for memberships
Define activity defaults for memberships
Add a membership record
Establish lifetime memberships
Add a solicitor to a membership record 40
Add other members and card information 42
Add a gift of membership
Add and link a gift record to a membership record
Link an existing gift record to a membership record
Open and break a link between a gift and a membership record
Add membership benefits information
Add membership benefits information to a gift record
View membership renewal notice history
View a renewal schedule for a membership
Add reasons and comments to a membership record
Open a historic membership record
Delete a historic membership record
Add a membership attribute
Renew a membership
Rejoin a membership
Upgrade a membership
Downgrade a membership
Drop a membership
Delete a membership record
Drop lapsed members
Print membership cards
Print membership renewal notices
View other memberships

**Note**: Optional modules such as *Event Management, Membership Management*, and *Alumni Tracking* enable you to customize **The Raiser's Edge** to meet the specific needs of your organization. When you purchase an optional module from Blackbaud, you are given a code. You must enter this code to "unlock" or activate the optional module. For more information, see the Program Basics chapter of the *Program Basics Guide*.

The optional module *Membership Management* enhances **The Raiser's Edge** by helping you track memberships for your organization. With *Membership Management*, you can track multiple memberships and programs, produce reports to analyze membership activity, print lists and directories of members, link gift records to membership records, and perform specific mailing tasks, such as preparing membership cards and renewal notices. In addition, you can perform membership transactions, including locating lapsed members, dropping members who have not responded to renewal notices, upgrading or downgrading memberships, and renewing memberships for members who want to remain active.

The membership record is very versatile. You can store and view membership information, including the number of years a member has maintained a membership, how many times the membership has been renewed, and the last renewal date. You can also create membership summaries using membership categories, programs, and subcategories as filters.

On the membership record, you can designate the number of membership cards each constituent should receive, the type of membership held, the solicitors involved in procuring the membership, and the type of membership benefits the member receives.

On the Membership tab of a constituent record, you can view, in summary form, all membership information for a constituent. Most of the information displayed on the Membership tab of a constituent record is only for viewing purposes, because most of the data entry occurs on the membership record. If you prefer, you can customize the tab of the constituent record or membership record by assigning special fonts and colors to the membership legend for primary, active, and lapsed/dropped memberships. This feature can help you quickly find membership information for a constituent with many memberships on his record.

You can also use the optional module *Membership Management* with other areas of **The Raiser's Edge**, like *Gifts*. When a constituent pays dues for a membership, you may want to link the membership record to the gift record. When you link a membership to a gift, you can enter the monetary value of the membership benefits on the gift record. This ensures accurate receipting. You can also apply pledge payments to membership dues.

# **Frequently Used Terms**

To use the optional module *Membership Management* correctly, you must have a basic understanding of the different terms used to describe parts of the membership transaction process. If you come across an unfamiliar term when reading this or any other book in *The Raiser's Edge* documentation, make sure you check the online glossary in the help file.

- **Gift of membership.** A gift of membership describes a situation in which a constituent is the primary beneficiary of membership benefits, but is not responsible for the membership dues. For example, a parent can give a gift of membership to a child. The parent pays the membership dues and the child benefits from the membership. The donor, or person paying the membership dues, and the member receiving the benefits must have a constituent record in your database.
- **Lifetime membership.** You can establish and track lifetime memberships for your constituents. Once you set up a lifetime membership, you can always track membership information, even after the constituent is deceased. Lifetime memberships do not expire, nor do they receive membership renewals.
- **Membership benefit.** A membership benefit is a bonus your organization gives to constituents, depending on their level of membership or the dues they pay. For example, you can determine the membership benefits associated with each membership category in advance, or you can enter this information from the membership record.

- Membership category. Membership category defines the level of giving required for a constituent to gain membership into one of your membership groups or clubs. Membership categories can be linked to a specific membership program. For example, a zoo may have the categories of Junior Curator and Young Explorer under the Kid's Club membership program. While dues for a Young Explorer are \$15, a member of the Junior Curator category, the next level of membership in the Kid's Club program, pays \$25 in dues.
- **Membership program.** A membership program is the overall umbrella description for a group of membership categories. For example, a museum may have an Arts Program with membership categories of Individual, Student, Family, Sustainer, and Patron.
- **Membership record.** The membership record is the record in which constituent membership information is stored and maintained. The membership record is composed of three tabs: the Membership tab, the Membership History tab, and the Attributes/Notes tab.
- **Membership standing.** A membership standing is used to describe the status of a specific membership. The membership standing appears in the top right-hand corner of a membership record and changes when the membership expires or a membership transaction is entered and saved. The membership standings are New, Active, Lapsed, and Dropped. In User Options, you can also change the color or style of print for the membership standing as it appears on the membership record for easy reference.
- **Membership subcategory.** A membership subcategory defines, more specifically, the member's area of interest. For example, a zoo with a Junior Curator category in the Kid's Club program may also have the subcategories of Lion, Panda, Koala, Polar Bear, and Sea Turtle, to which each member who is most interested in that animal belongs.
- **Membership transaction.** A membership transaction is used to describe the separate membership activities comprising a membership record. The activities can include adding, renewing, rejoining, upgrading, downgrading, and dropping a membership. For example, in February 2006, you add an individual membership for Mr. David Murphy. In January 2007, David decides to renew his membership. In this case, you made two separate transactions for David's membership record.

# Navigate in Membership

The Memberships page is the place where you begin all membership data entry, such as creating a membership record or opening an existing membership record. From this page, you can also view a list of recently opened membership records and search for a membership record without accessing the Open screen for memberships.

You can add new membership transactions from the Memberships page or from the Membership tab of a constituent record. If you are adding new membership transactions for a group of records, we recommend you use the Memberships page. In this book, membership procedures are performed from the Memberships page. However, the main features of the Membership tab of a constituent record are discussed later in this book.

## Parts of the Memberships Page

**Note**: When *MatchFinder* is installed on your computer, a **MatchFinder** button appears on the Records page. A **MatchFinder** button appears on the Org 1 tab of an organization record and on the General 2 tab of all organization relationship records. Also, if a constituent's matching gift is linked to a MatchFinder record, a **MatchFinder** button appears on the Matching Gifts screen of the Matching Gifts tab of the gift record. For more information, see the *MatchFinder Guide*.

To navigate in the optional module *Membership Management*, you must understand the parts of the Memberships page. To access the Memberships page, click **Records** on the Raiser's Edge bar, and click the **Memberships** link.



The Memberships page contains two main sections: membership links and membership locators.

### **Membership Links**

Click the **New Membership** link to add a new membership record for a constituent. Click the **Open a Membership** link to select an existing membership record using the membership Open screen.



### **Membership Locators**

Below the membership links are two areas you can use to search for a membership record. The **Recently Accessed Records** area displays a list of the most recently opened membership records. You can use the **Quick Find** field to enter the name of a constituent and locate his membership record without using the Open screen.

Recently Accessed Records	Quick Find
Ms. Lucy Gaylor Avdeenko (Individual - Lifetime) Mr. Mark Daniel Adamson, III (Adopt an Animal - Contributor) Mr. Jason Douglas Campbell (Young Explorers - Aqua Kids)	dita.

## Access a Membership Record

Accessing a membership record means opening an existing record. You can open a membership record in several ways. Directly from the Memberships page by entering the constituent's name in the **Quick Find** field; by clicking the **Open a Membership** link on the action bar of the Memberships page; from the shell **File** menu; or from the **File** menu of an open record. We recommend opening membership records from the Memberships page because it is the easiest and most accessible option. You can also create a new membership record by clicking the **New Membership** link on the Memberships page.

#### > Open a membership record

To search for a membership record, you can use the **Open a Membership** link. The Open screen that appears serves as a search mechanism, helping you locate and open membership records. You can enter information in some or all the fields in the **Find Members that meet these criteria** frame to narrow your search for a membership record.

- 1. On the Raiser's Edge bar, click **Records**.
- 2. Click the Memberships link. The Memberships page appears.



Find:       Membership       Search using query:       CDefault>       Image: Dpen         Cancel       Cancel       Cancel       Image: Dpen       Cancel         Find Memberships that meet these griteria:       Image: Dpen       Image: Dpen       Image: Dpen       Image: Dpen         Find Memberships that meet these griteria:       Image: Dpen       Image: Dpen       Image: Dpen       Image: Dpen         First name:       Image: Dpen       Image: Dpen       Image: Dpen       Image: Dpen       Image: Dpen         Constituent ID:       Image: Dpen       Image: Dpen       Image: Dpen       Image: Dpen       Image: Dpen         Constituent ID:       Image: Dpen       Image: Dpen       Image: Dpen       Image: Dpen       Image: Dpen         Soc. Sec. No:       Image: Dpen       Image: Dpen       Image: Dpen       Image: Dpen       Image: Dpen         Image: Display inactive constituents       Image: Dpen       Image: Dpen       Image: Dpen       Image: Dpen         Image: Display inactive constituents       Image: Dpen dpen       Image: Dpen       Image: Dpen       Image: Dpen         Image: Display inactive constituents       Image: Dpen dpen       Image: Dpen       Image: Dpen       Image: Dpen         Image: Display inactive constituents       Image: Dpen dpen	// Open					×
Find Memberships that meet these griteria:         Last/Org name;       Membership starts;         First name;       Membership ID;         Constituent ID;       Category;         Account no;       Standing;         Soc. Sec. No;       Program;         Display inactive constituents       Check spogse name	Find: Membership	<u> </u>	ch using query: <a> <def< a=""></def<></a>	ault>	<u>m 📎</u>	
Find Memberships that meet these griteria:         Last/Org name:       Membership starts:         First name:       Membership ID:         Constituent ID:       Membership ID:         Account no:       Standing:         Soc. Sec. No:       Program:         Display inactive constituents       Check spogse name						🗎 🗍 Den
Find Memberships that meet these griteria:         Last/Org name:       Membership starts:         First name:       Membership ID:         Constituent ID:       Category:         Account no:       Standing:         Soc. Sec. No:       Program:         Display inactive constituents       Check spogse name						Cancel
Find Memberships that meet these griteria:         Last/Org name:       Membership starts:         First name:       Membership ID:         Constituent ID:       Category:         Account no:       Standing:         Soc. Sec. No:       Program:         Display inactive constituents       Check spogse name						
Find Memberships that meet these griteria:         Last/Org name:       Membership starts:         First name:       Membership ID:         Constituent ID:       Category:         Account no:       Standing:         Soc. Sec. No:       Program:         Ø bisplay inactive constituents       Check spogse name						
Find Memberships that meet these griteria:         Last/Org name:       Membership starts:         First name:       Membership ID:         Constituent ID:       Category:         Account no:       Standing:         Soc. Sec. No:       Program:         Display inactive constituents       Check spogse name						
Find Memberships that meet these griteria:         Last/Org name:       Membership starts:         First name:       Membership ID:         Constituent ID:       Category:         Account no:       Standing:         Soc. Sec. No:       Program:         Ø bisplay inactive constituents       Check spogse name						🌴 Add New
Find Memberships that meet these griteria:         Last/Org name;       Membership starts;         First name;       Membership ID;         Constituent ID;       Category;         Account no;       Standing;         Soc. Sec. No;       Program;         Display inactive constituents       Check spogse name						
Last/Org name: Membership starts: First name: Membership ID: Constituent ID: Account no: Soc. Sec. No.: Display inactive constituents Check spogse name Check aliages Check nickname						opjons
First name:       Membership ID:       New Search         Constituent ID:       Category:       Previous Search         Account no:       Standing:       Standing:         Soc. Sec. No:       Program:       Standing:         Ø Display inactive constituents       Check spogse name       Check alages       Check nickname	Find Memberships that meet thes	e <u>c</u> riteria:				
Constituent ID:       Image: Ima	Last/Org name:	•	Membership starts:			🚧 <u>F</u> ind Now
Account no: Standing: Frevious search	First name:	•	Membership ID:		•	Ne <u>w</u> Search
Account no: Standing: Standing: Standing: Soc. Sec. No.: Program: Standing: Soc. Sec. No.: Soc. Sec. No.: Standing:	Constituent ID:	•	Category:		•	Previous Search
Display inactive constituents     Check spouse name     Check aliages     Check nickname	Account no:	•	Standing:		•	
	Soc. Sec. No.:	•	Program:		•	$\sim$
Display deceased constituents 🔲 Check contact name 📄 Exact match only Expand Results	Display inactive constituents	🔲 Check spo	use name 🛛 🗖 Ch	eok aliages 🛛 🗖	Check nickname	
	Display deceased constituent	s 🔲 Check.con	itact name 🛛 🗖 E <u>x</u>	act match only		Expand <u>R</u> esults

3. From the Memberships page, click **Open a Membership**. The Open screen for memberships appears.

**Note**: We recommend using the criteria fields sparingly. Adding too much criteria can narrow your search too much, resulting in no matches.

4. In the Find Members that meet these criteria frame, enter the criteria you are using to search for the membership record. The criteria you can use to locate a membership record includes Last/Org name, First name, Constituent ID, Account no., Soc. Sec. No., Membership starts, Membership ID, Category, Standing, and Program. You can use any of the fields to enter member information with which to search for the record.

**Note:** If many membership records are listed in the grid, you can use the **Expand Results** button to make the results list area larger.

5. Once you enter all the search criteria you want to use, click **Find Now** to begin the search. The records matching the criteria you entered appear in the grid.

/A Open					×
Find: Membership		arch using query: <a>  </a>	Ь	<b>m</b> 📎	
Constituent	City, State	Standing	Program	Ca	🔄 <u>O</u> pen
Mark D. Adamson	Charleston, SC	Active	Adopt an Animal	Contribut	Cancel
Allison E. Andrews	Minneapolis, MN	Active	Education Program	Sustainer	
Elizabeth A. Ashton	Savannah, GA	Active	Young Explorers	Aqua Kids	
Jill A. Ashton		Active	Young Explorers	Aqua Kids	
Lucy G. Avdeenko	Kennebunkport, ME	Active	Individual	Lifetime	
				Þ	Add New Options
Find Memberships that Last/Org name: A	meet these <u>criteria</u> :	<ul> <li>Membership starts:</li> </ul>			🙀 Find Now
First name:		Membership ID:		•	Ne <u>w</u> Search
Constituent ID:		<ul> <li>Category:</li> </ul>		•	Previous Search
Account no:		Standing:		-	
Soc. Sec. No.:	•	Program:		•	Q
Display jnactive cor			k alia <u>s</u> es 📃 Check	nickname	
Display deceased c	onstituents 🔲 Check co	ont <u>a</u> ct name 🔲 E <u>x</u> act	match only		Expand <u>R</u> esults
5 records found.					

For more information about using the Open screen, see the Program Basics chapter of the *Program Basics Guide*.

6. Highlight the membership record you want to open and click **Open**. The selected membership record appears.

🥟 Membership for Mark D. Adam	nson			_ 🗆 ×		
<u>File Edit V</u> iew <u>M</u> embership F <u>a</u> vorites <u>I</u> ools <u>H</u> elp						
🔁 Save and Close 🕶 🔚 🖨 🕶 🛛	<u>}</u> - н • ▶  -	→ •   🏖 🎼 🕸   🗞	😫 💿 😭	? - 😹 -		
✓ Membership ✓ Membership Hist	ory 🗸 🗸 Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes 🗎					
Constituent: Mark Adamson		ID: 3		Active		
Current Transaction Type: Renewal	C Upgrade C Downg	rade 💿 Same				
Membership ID: 3400						
Dues: \$250.00	Aut <u>o</u> Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s				
Program: Adopt an Animal	•	✓Members & <u>C</u> ards	Members: 1	Children: 0		
Category: Contributor	<b>•</b>	<u>G</u> ift of Membership	No gift of membe	rship		
Subcategory: Tiger	•	✓ Benefits	Send to primary r	nember		
Renewed on: 06/28/2005 📰	🗖 Lifetime	✓ View/Link Gifts	Paid: \$250.00			
Expires on: 06/28/2006 🧾	Print renewal notices	Past Renewals	]			
Summary Membership Information-						
Date joined: 07/20/1999	Last renewed: 06	6/28/2005	Last dropped: N/	A		
Total years: 5	Times renewed: 4	Cor	nsecutive years: 5			

**Note**: If you make changes to a record and notice your changes are not updated automatically, click **Save** on the toolbar before adding any additional information.

7. Make the appropriate changes to the membership record. To save the information and exit the membership record, click **Save and Close** on the toolbar.

#### • Search for a membership record using an existing query

From the Open screen for memberships, you can also locate a membership record listed in a query group. This function is especially helpful if you know the record you are trying to locate is found in a specific query group, but you do not have enough information to locate the record using the fields in the **Find Members that meet these criteria** frame.

1. From the Memberships page, click **Open a Membership**. The Open screen for Memberships appears.

/4 Open		
Find: Membership	Search using query: <default></default>	<b>44</b> 📎
		😑 🚊
		Cancel
		Mad New
		Options
-		
Find Memberships that meet these criteria: Last/Org name:	<ul> <li>Membership starts:</li> </ul>	] 🦨 Eind Now
First name:	Membership ID:	New Search
Constituent ID:	Category:	Previous Search
Account no:	Standing:	
Soc. Sec. No.:	Program:	Q
	eck spouse name 🔲 Check aliages	Check nickname
Display deceased constituents D	eck contact name 🔲 Exact match only	Expand <u>R</u> esult

**Note**: You can search only for queries corresponding to the record type you want to locate. For example, if you use the Open screen for Membership, you have access only to membership queries.

2. In the **Search using query** field, enter the name of the query you want to use or click the binoculars to access the Open screen for *Query*. For more information about the query Open screen, refer to the Query chapter of the *Query & Export Guide*.

Find:       Membership       Search using query:       Member search for Supervisor         Image: Search query is not the default.       Circk here to reset.         Cancel       Cancel         Image: Search query is not the default.       Circk here to reset.         Last/Org name: Membership starts: Image: Image: Membership starts: Image: Imag	/A Open		×
Find Memberships that meet these griteria:       The search query is not the default. Click here to reset.         Last/Org name;       Membership starts;         It is name;       Membership iD;         V       Membership ID;         Soc. Sec. No.;       Program;         V       Program;         V       Display inactive constituents         Check sprugse name       Check aliages         Check contact name       Expand Results	Find: Membership	Search using query: Member search for Supervisor 🙀 💟	
Find Memberships that meet these griteria:       The search query is not the default. Click here to reset.         Last/Org name:       Membership starts:         First name:       Membership ID:         First name:       Membership ID:         Constituent ID:       Category:         Account no:       Standing:         Soc. Sec. No.:       Program:         Display inactive constituents       Check spoyse name         Display dgceased constituents       Check contact name			😑 <u>O</u> pen
Find Memberships that meet these griteria:       The search query is not the default. Click here to reset.         Last/Org name:       Membership starts:         First name:       Membership ID:         Constituent ID:       Category:         Account no:       Standing:         Soc. Sec. No.:       Program:         Display inactive constituents       Check spoyse name         Display deceased constituents       Check contact name			Cancel
Find Memberships that meet these griteria:       The search query is not the default. Click here to reset.         Last/Org name:       Membership starts:         First name:       Membership ID:         Constituent ID:       Category:         Account no:       Standing:         Soc. Sec. No.:       Program:         Display inactive constituents       Check spoyse name         Display deceased constituents       Check contact name			
Find Memberships that meet these griteria:       The search query is not the default. Click here to reset.         Last/Org name:       Membership starts:         First name:       Membership ID:         Constituent ID:       Category:         Account no:       Standing:         Soc. Sec. No.:       Program:         Display inactive constituents       Check spoyse name         Display deceased constituents       Check contact name			
Find Memberships that meet these griteria:       The search query is not the default. Click here to reset.         Last/Drg name:       Membership starts:         First name:       Membership ID:         Constituent ID:       Category:         Account no:       Standing:         Soc. Sec. No.:       Program:         V Display inactive constituents       Check spogse mame         Display deceased constituents       Check contact mame			
Find Memberships that meet these griteria:       The search query is not the default. Click here to reset.         Last/Org name:       Membership starts:         First name:       Membership ID:         Constituent ID:       Category:         Account no:       Standing:         Soc. Sec. No.:       Program:         Display inactive constituents       Check spouse name         Display deceased constituents       Check contact name			* A <u>d</u> d New
Last/Org name:       Membership starts:       Image: Check sport       Membership ID:       <			Options
Last/Org name:       Membership starts:       Image: Check sport       Membership ID:       <	Find Membershins that meet these (	niteria: The search query is not the default. Click here to reset	
Constituent ID:       Category:       Previous Search         Account not       Standing:       Previous Search         Soc. Sec. Not:       Program:       Standing:         Display inactive constituents       Check spouse name       Check aliages       Check nickname         Display deceased constituents       Check contact name       Expand Results       Expand Results	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		💏 Eind Now
Account no: Soc. Sec. No.: Display inactive constituents Display deceased constituents Check contact name Expand Results Expand Results	First name:	Membership ID:	Ne <u>w</u> Search
Account no: Standing: Stan	Constituent ID:	Category:	Previous Search
☑ Display inactive constituents       □ Check spouse name       □ Check aliages       □ Check nickname         □ Display deceased constituents       □ Check contact name       □ Exact match only       Expand Results	Account no:	▼ Standing: ▼	
Display deceased constituents     Check contact name     Exact match only     Expand Results	Soc. Sec. No.:		$\sim$
			Euroand Results
			Expand Results

Note: To reset the Open screen to the program defaults, click **The search query is not the default. Click here to reset.** link above the **Membership starts** field.

3. To access the records in the query group, click **Find Now**.

🕅 Open				×
Find: Membership	<u> </u>	earch using query: Membe	r search for Supervisor 🛛 🛔	<b>4</b> 📎
Constituent	City, State	Standing		🔺 🟹 <u>O</u> pen
Mark D. Adamson	Charleston, SC	Active		Cancel
Allison E. Andrews	Minneapolis, MN	Active		Caricei
Elizabeth A. Ashton	Savannah, GA	Active		
Jill A. Ashton		Active		
Lucy G. Avdeenko	Kennebunkport, ME	Active		
Julie M. Bach	Pittsburgh, PA	Active		
Jason D. Campbell	Athens, GA	Active		🎌 A <u>d</u> d New
Sean A. Davenport	Miami, FL	Active		<u> </u>
Anthony S. Ellis	Concord, NH	Active		Op <u>t</u> ions
Find Memberships that	meet these <u>c</u> riteria:	The search query	is not the default. Click here to	reset.
Last/Org name:		<ul> <li>Membership starts:</li> </ul>		💏 Eind Now
First name:		Membership ID:	•	Ne <u>w</u> Search
Constituent ID:		<ul> <li>Category:</li> </ul>	•	Previous Search
Account no:		▼ Standing:	•	Eleriere conten
Soc. Sec. No.:		Program:	•	
🔽 Display jnactive co	nstituents 🛛 🗖 Check	spo <u>u</u> se name 🛛 🗖 Cheo	k aliages 🛛 🗖 Check nickn	ame
Display deceased of	constituents 🗖 Check	contact name 🛛 🔲 Exact	match only	Expand <u>R</u> esults

4. Highlight the record you want to open and click **Open**. The selected membership record appears.

🥟 Membership for Mark D. Adar	nson		
<u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew <u>M</u> embership F <u>a</u> v	rorites <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp		
🎦 Save and Close 🕶 🔚 🖨 🕶	<u>д</u> -и • ⊳ н -	• •   🕹 🏠 🞼 📚	👔 🔄 🚼 🖓 -
✓ Membership ✓ Membership Hist	ory 🗸 🗸 Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes 🗎		
Constituent: Mark Adamson		ID: 3	Active
Current Transaction Type: Renewal	C Upgrade C Downgr	rade 💿 Same	
Membership ID: 3400			
Dues: \$250.00	Aut <u>o</u> Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s	
Program: Adopt an Animal	•	✓Members & <u>C</u> ards	Members: 1 Children: 0
Category: Contributor	•	<u>G</u> ift of Membership	No gift of membership
Subcategory: Tiger	•	✓ Benefits	Send to primary member
Renewed on: 06/28/2005 🧰	Lifetime	✓ View/Link Gifts	Paid: \$250.00
Expires on: 06/28/2006 🧾	Print renewal notices	Past Renewals	
Summary Membership Information			
Date joined: 07/20/1999	Last renewed: 08	6/28/2005	Last dropped: N/A
Total years: 5	Times renewed: 4	Cor	nsecutive years: 5

5. Make the appropriate changes to the membership record. To save the information and exit the membership record, click **Save and Close** on the toolbar.

#### • Search for a membership record from a new query

If the fields in the **Find Members that meet these criteria** frame are not enough to locate the record you want, you can create a new query and use additional fields found in the membership record for a more exhaustive record search.

1. From the Memberships page, click **Open a Membership**. The Open screen for membership appears.

/A Open			×
Find: Membership	Search using query: <default></default>	<b>610</b>	
			🗎 <u>O</u> pen
			Cancel
			🎦 A <u>d</u> d New
			Options
Find Memberships that meet these <u>criteria</u> :		_	
Last/Org name:	<ul> <li>Membership starts:</li> </ul>		🙀 Eind Now
First name:	<ul> <li>Membership ID:</li> </ul>	•	Ne <u>w</u> Search
Constituent ID:	▼ Category:	•	Previous Search
Account no:	▼ Standing:	•	
Soc. Sec. No.:	▼ Program:	•	$\sim$
🗹 Display inactive constituents 🛛 🗖 Che	ok spo <u>u</u> se name 🛛 🗖 Check alia <u>s</u> es	🔲 Check nickname	1
Display deceased constituents D Che	ck contact name 🛛 🔲 Exact match only		Expand <u>R</u> esults

**Note**: You can create only a query corresponding to the record type you are trying to locate. For example, if you are searching for a membership record, you can create only membership queries.

2. In the Search using query field, click the Query Design button. A new query screen appears.

🗞 New Member Query - The Raiser's Edge	_ 🗆 ×
<u>File Edit View Format Records Favorites Iools Help</u>	
🚽 Save and return to search 📑 😭 🚔 🎒 🕌 👫 📍 🕶	
1:Criteria 2:Output 3:Sort 4:Results	
The filters entered here will determine the records that are output.	
Available Fields Filters Filters	
Query Fields     Favorites	
Membership Information     Free Constituent	
Eurrent	
⊕- History     ⊕- Other Members/Card Holders	
ter christ ter ∨BA	
A Find Select> <-Remove Change ( ) And Or 1	+
<u> </u>	un Now

For more information about creating a query, refer to the Query chapter of the *Query & Export Guide*.

3. Once you select the criteria, output, and sort fields, click **Save and return to search**. The Save Query As screen appears.

Save Query As	×
Query name:	Save
Description: Used by the Search Screen for output and sorting.	Cancel
×	
Query format: Dynamic	
C Other users may execute this query	
C Other users may modify this query	

- 4. In the **Query name** field, enter the name of the query.
- 5. "Used by the Search Screen for output and sorting." automatically defaults in the **Description** field. You can overwrite this information if you want to enter a different description.
- 6. In the **Query format** field, select "Dynamic" or "Static". For more information about query formats, see the Query chapter of the *Query & Export Guide*.
- 7. If you want to authorize other users to run your query, mark the **Other users may execute this query** checkbox.
- 8. If you want to authorize other users to change your query, mark the **Other users may modify this query** checkbox.
- 9. Click Save. You return to the Open screen. The saved query name defaults in the Search using query field.

/A Open		×
Find: Membership	Search using query: Membership Search 🏼 🙀 💟	
		😭 <u>O</u> pen
		Cancel
		🏝 A <u>d</u> d New
		Options
en ana ana ana ana ana ana ana ana ana a		
Find Memberships that meet these <u>criteria</u> :	The search query is not the default. Click here to reset.	
Last/Org name:	<ul> <li>Membership starts:</li> </ul>	🏘 <u>F</u> ind Now
First name:	Membership ID:	Ne <u>w</u> Search
Constituent ID:	Category:	Previous Search
Account no:	▼ Standing: ▼	
Soc. Sec. No.:	Program:	$\prec$
🔽 Display inactive constituents 🛛 🗖 Che	ok spo <u>u</u> se name 🔲 Check aliages 📄 Check nickname	
🗖 Display deceased constituents 🔲 Che	ck.contact.name 🔲 Exact.match.only	Expand <u>R</u> esults

en a la companya		earch using query: Me		aa 🐂	
Find: Membership	<sup>_</sup> _	earch using query. Ime	mbership search		
Constituent	City, State	Standing	Current Program	Cut 📥	🔁 <u>O</u> pen
Mark D. Adamson	Charleston, SC	Active	Adopt an Animal	Contri <mark>l</mark>	Cancel
Allison E. Andrews	Minneapolis, MN	Active	Education Program	Sustair	
Elizabeth A. Ashton	Savannah, GA	Active	Young Explorers	Aqua k	
Jill A. Ashton		Active	Young Explorers	Aqua k	
Lucy G. Avdeenko	Kennebunkport, ME	Active	Individual	Lifetim	
Julie M. Bach	Pittsburgh, PA	Active	Adopt an Animal	Sustair	
Jason D. Campbell	Athens, GA	Active	Young Explorers	Aqua k	🎦 A <u>d</u> d New
Sean A. Davenport	Miami, FL	Active	Business Level	Corpor	Options
Anthony S. Ellis	Concord, NH	Active	Arts Program	Benef:	
Find Memberships that	t meet these <u>c</u> riteria:	The search g	uery is not the default. Click	here to reset.	
Last/Org name:		Membership start:	s: 🗾		🏘 <u>F</u> ind Now
First name:		<ul> <li>Membership ID</li> </ul>	):	<b>•</b>	Ne <u>w</u> Search
Constituent ID:		<ul> <li>Category</li> </ul>	y:	•	Previous Searc
Account no:		<ul> <li>Standing</li> </ul>	9:	<b>•</b>	
Soc. Sec. No.:		<ul> <li>Program</li> </ul>	n:	•	$\triangleleft$
🔽 Display jnactive co	nstituents 🛛 🗖 Check	spo <u>u</u> se name 🛛 🔲 🕻	Check aliages 🛛 🗖 Chec	k nickname	
Display deceased	constituents 🔲 Check	contact name 🛛 🗖 E	xact match only		Expand Result

10. To access the list of records grouped in the query, click **Find Now**.

11. Highlight the record you want to open and click **Open**. The selected membership record appears.

🥟 Membership for Mark D. Ada	imson		_ 🗆 ×
<u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew <u>M</u> embership F <u>a</u>	vorites <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp		
🎦 Save and Close 🔹 🔚 🚔 🔹	<u>д-</u> на м –	•• 🕹 🎲 🎼 🕈	😫 💿 🖆 ? - 😹 -
✓ Mem <u>b</u> ership	story 🗸 Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes		
Constituent: Mark Adamson		ID: 3	Active
Current Transaction Type: Renewal	O Upgrade O Downgr	rade 💿 Same	
Membership ID: 3400			
Dues: \$250.00	Aut <u>o</u> Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s	
Program: Adopt an Anima	•	✓Members & <u>C</u> ards	Members: 1 Children: 0
Category: Contributor	-	<u>G</u> ift of Membership	No gift of membership
Subcategory: Tiger	-	✓ Benefits	Send to primary member
Renewed on: 06/28/2005	🗖 Lifetime	✓ View/Link Gifts	Paid: \$250.00
Expires on: 06/28/2006 🧾	Print renewal notices	Past Renewals	]
Summary Membership Information-			
Date joined: 07/20/1999	Last renewed: 06	6/28/2005	Last dropped: N/A
Total years: 5	Times renewed: 4	Cor	nsecutive years: 5

12. Make the appropriate changes to the membership record. To save the information and exit the membership record, click **Save and Close** on the toolbar.

## **Toolbar Buttons**

The toolbar contains buttons representing common commands used with membership records. By clicking these buttons you can easily perform a function, such as saving, without using the menu bar.

#### 14 CHAPTER

**Note**: You can set up a user option that enables you to view tooltips that explain the function of each toolbar command. Tooltips appear when you move your cursor across each item in the toolbar. For more information about setting up this user option, see the User Options chapter of the *Program Basics Guide*.



Save the current record and keep it open



Print membership renewal letter or a membership card



Preview a membership renewal letter or a membership card prior to printing



First Membership record

•

Previous Membership record



Next Membership record



Last previous record



Go to the constituent record



Renew a membership



Rejoin a membership



Drop a membership



Upgrade a membership



Downgrade a membership



Add to favorites

P	
Prop	erties



Access Help Contents



Create and edit macros to create shortcuts for functions you perform repeatedly in *The Raiser's Edge*. This toolbar button is available only when you have the optional module *VBA for Advanced Customization*.

# **User Options**

User options are preferences you set that affect how *The Raiser's Edge* looks and runs on the workstation you are using. User options are login-specific, which means that if you log into any workstation using your password, your preferences are active on that workstation. When you log off that workstation, your preferences are not active for any other user. You can establish user options by selecting **Tools**, **User Options** from the menu bar on the shell of *The Raiser's Edge*. The Options screen appears so you can establish certain user options that apply to membership records. For more information about user options, see the User Options chapter of the *Program Basics Guide*.

#### • Establish membership user options

- 1. From the menu bar on the shell of *The Raiser's Edge*, select **Tools**, **User Options**. The Options screen appears.
- 2. Select the Records tab.
- 3. From the tree view on the left, select Memberships. The Memberships user options appear on the right.

Options	<u>×</u>
Memberships Jobs Events Seating Participants Miscellaneous	You can choose how to enter and display membership programs on other records. Membership format: Long Description
Reset to System Defaults	OK Cancel Apply

- 4. In the **Default tab** field, select the tab you want to automatically appear when you add or open a membership record.
- 5. If you use the **Check these tabs for data** preference, the tabs that contain data appear with a check mark. In the **Memberships** frame, mark the checkbox by the tabs you want the program to search for data.
- 6. In the **Membership format** field, select how you want membership program names to appear throughout *The Raiser's Edge*. You can select "Short Description" or "Long Description".
- 7. When you receive a gift which is to be used to pay membership dues, you want to link the gift to the membership. To determine that you want to automatically load the gift record linked to a membership record, mark the **When adding a default gift, load gift upon saving membership** checkbox.
- 8. Click Apply to apply and save your preferences or click OK to save and close the Options screen.

# Membership Business Rules

**Note**: Membership business rules can be used to maintain data entry consistency in membership information. You can also use the business rules as a shortcut mechanism for data entry.

Business rules are ways for you to control functions and displays throughout *The Raiser's Edge*, and are visible only to users who have been given appropriate security rights. Business rules affect all users of the program. You can establish business rules for all membership records. You can assign several specific types of membership business rules in the **Name display**, **Membership** business rules, **Generate IDs** business rules, and in the **Membership options**, **General** and **Activity** business rules. For detailed information about establishing business rules or user access rights, see the Configuration and Security chapters of the *Configuration & Security Guide*.

### Name Display, Membership Business Rules

#### > Define default membership name display rules

Select the default for how a name appears in the Name on card field on a membership record.

1. On the Raiser's Edge bar, click Config. The Configuration page appears.



2. Click the Business Rules link. The Business Rules page appears.

3. From the Business Rules tree view, under **Name display**, select **Membership**. The membership name display rule options appear on the right.



**Note**: If the program finds no selected addressee/salutation, it uses Name (First name, Middle name, Last name).

4. In the **Default Membership Card Addressee/Salutation** frame, if you mark **Use addressee from Member**, you can select an addressee/salutation from the individual record. Specify your entry in the **Use this addressee if present on the Individual** field. You must also specify an entry in the **Otherwise use** field (which contains the additional choices of Name and Constituent ID) for the program to use as a backup if it cannot find the first addressee/salutation format you specify.

**Note**: An embedded addressee/salutation lets you define the addressee/salutation each time you use it. For more information about embedded addressee/salutations see the Configuration chapter of the *Configuration & Security Guide*.

If you mark the **Use addressee from Configuration** option, you can select any defined addressee/salutation plus any embedded addressee/salutations in the program. If you select an embedded addressee/salutation (Const Addr/Sal), the **Use this address if present on the Individual** and **Otherwise use** fields appear and you must specify entries in them.

If you mark the **Use Member name** option, the fields are disabled and the program uses the name from the membership record.

- 5. In the **Membership Given by Addressee/Salutation** frame, select an option for the default display of the addressee/salutation for the individual who gives the gift of membership. Your selection determines how the name of the person giving the membership is displayed on the membership record. The options are the same as those for membership cards.
- 6. After you make changes to Business Rules, your preferences update right away.

### **Generate IDs Rules**

Note: Auto IDs are sequential and unique. They can be generated only in numeric form.

#### 18 CHAPTER

You can specify business rules for generating automatic ID numbers for several record types. Automatic IDs for record types are assigned in the order the records are added. Auto IDs are sequential and unique. They can be generated in numeric form. You can use these IDs to streamline your data retrieval in queries and searches.

#### > Define default business rules for generating IDs

You can set defaults to establish membership record IDs and select how the IDs will number when adding a new membership record.

1. On the Raiser's Edge bar, click **Config**. The Configuration page appears.



- 2. Click the Business Rules link. The Business Rules page appears.
- 3. From the Business Rules tree view, select **Generate IDs**. The rule options for generating IDs appear on the right.



- 4. To generate membership IDs automatically when you save the membership record, mark the **Membership IDs** checkbox in the **When adding records, automatically generate** frame.
- 5. The Raiser's Edge generates IDs using the next available number. To change the next number from which the program starts, click Change Number. The program generates ID numbers by searching for the lowest available number that occurs after the ID number listed in the When generating ID numbers frame. You can click Change Number to find and change the reference number the program uses to find a unique ID number. When you click Change Number, the Change Next Available ID Number screen appears.

Change Next Available	ID Number 🛛 🗙	
For each record type below, you can change the number that the system starts from to find a unique ID. Click the up arrow in the cell to find the first available		
number for that record type		
Record Type	Next Available ID	
Constituent	781 🔒	
Gift	1412	
Membership	522	
Special event	26	
ОК	Cancel	

 In the Next Available ID column, the program displays the number last used to generate an ID, plus one. If you want the program to start with another number when it searches for the next unused ID number when you add a Record Type, enter it here.

When you place the cursor in the **Next Available ID** field for a record type, a button in the field is enabled. When you click the button, the program starts at zero and searches for the next unused ID number available for that record type. You can use this button to ensure you have no gaps in your ID numbering.

7. To return to the rule options for generating IDs, click **OK**.

**Note:** If you mark the **Prefix IDs with current year** checkbox, you can reset your IDs to begin numbering again at the start of a new year.

8. To display the year before the ID number, mark the Prefix IDs with current year checkbox. This checkbox is enabled when you mark a record type checkbox. In the corresponding field, enter whether you want the year to display as two or four characters. When you mark this checkbox, you affect all record types. You also enable the Reset numbering at the start of a new year and the Separate prefix from ID using checkboxes. Placing the year before the ID number lets you identify at a glance the year the record was added.

**Warning**: Be careful when using prefix numbers with a year. If you decide not to use the prefix during the year and change the option, when the program searches for the next available number, it does not take into account numbers already entered with the prefix. For example, if you entered IDs prefixed with 2006 and then change the option to include no prefix, the program will show the next available ID number as "1".

- 9. To begin with number one when creating IDs in a new year, mark the **Reset numbering at the start of a new year** checkbox.
- 10. Mark the **Separate prefix from ID using** checkbox if you want to separate the year from the ID number, and enter the symbol you want to use in the corresponding field. For example, if you enter a forward slash in this field and select the year to display as four characters, the program formats the constituent ID as "2006/762."

The **Sample** field displays an example of the ID options you select.

11. After you make changes to Business Rules, your preferences update right away.

### Membership Options, General Business Rules

You can define business rules for membership categories with gift defaults that are already established, membership transactions that are linked to a pledge, and other general defaults for memberships.

#### > Define general business rules for memberships

You can define rules for start dates for new or renewed memberships, rules for linking gifts to memberships, rules for applying pledge payments to memberships, rules for programs and categories for dues, and rules for the maximum number of members for a membership. If you use these default rules, *The Raiser's Edge* enters information automatically when you create new memberships, saving you the time of entering it manually.

Note: You do not have to activate any of the General Membership Rules.

1. On the Raiser's Edge bar, click Config. The Configuration page appears.



2. Click the Business Rules link. The Business Rules page appears.

3. From the Business Rules tree view, under **Memberships**, select **General**. The general rule options for memberships appear on the right.



4. Under For membership dates, when you mark the Default cycle start date to membership date added checkbox, the Joined on and Renewed on dates default to the date the membership is added, usually the current date. When you mark this checkbox, the If membership is linked to a gift use gift date and For renewals and rejoins, default the 'Renewed on' date to the previous expires date, and the 'Rejoined on' date to the drop date checkboxes are enabled.

**Note**: If you globally add a membership record through *Admin*, the **Joined on** date defaults to the current program date, no matter what setting you select in **Business Rules**.

5. When you mark the **If membership is linked to a gift use gift date** checkbox, the **Joined on** and **Renewed on** dates default to the gift date for memberships that are linked to gifts. This rule applies only to memberships created from a gift record. Linking a membership to a gift from the membership record does not change the gift date. If the membership is not linked to a gift, the date defaults to the date the membership is added.

**Note**: A membership transaction includes all individual membership activities on the membership record, such as renewals, rejoins, drops, upgrades, downgrades.

- 6. When you mark the **For renewals, default 'Renewed on' date to previous 'Expires' date** checkbox, the **Expires date** of the previous membership transaction changes to the **Renewed on** date for the renewal being entered. You can use this checkbox to avoid overlapping memberships if a member renews before the current membership expires.
- 7. Under **For membership categories with gift defaults established**, if you set up gift defaults for a membership category, you can choose from several options. For information about establishing gift defaults for a membership category, see the Configuration chapter of the *Configuration & Security Guide*.

To automatically add a gift (for the membership dues) and link it to that membership, mark the **Automatically add a gift for that membership** option.

Note: You can automatically add the cost of a membership as a gift on the constituent record Gift tab.

When you mark the **Prompt to add a gift for that membership** option and you have set up gift defaults for the membership category, a message appears verifying you want to add the gift and link it to that membership before the program does so.

If you mark the **Do not add a gift for that membership** option, no gift is added for this membership. You can still add the gift manually and link it to the membership.

8. Under For membership transactions linked to a gift, when you mark the Automatically apply the payment to the same membership option, the payment is applied to the same membership as the pledge, but a membership transaction is not added. Usually if you mark this option, you are not renewing, rejoining, upgrading, or downgrading the membership with pledge payments.

When you mark the **Prompt to apply the payment to the same membership** option, the program asks if you want to apply the pledge payment to the membership before returning to the main Gifts screen.

When you mark the **Do not apply the payment to the same membership** option, the payment is not automatically applied to the same membership. If you mark this option, the program assumes you link pledge payments to memberships manually.

- 9. Under For memberships, when you mark the Default program/category from dues checkbox, the program and category for a membership default once the dues are entered. For example, you may specify a program and category for minimum dues of \$1,000 and maximum dues of \$2,000. When you mark this checkbox and create a new membership, if you enter a dues amount between the above amounts, the program and category automatically default into the membership record. You can overwrite these defaults.
- 10. When you mark the **Default maximum number of members** checkbox, the maximum number of members from **Membership Categories** defaults to the **Total number of members on this membership** field on the Other Members and Card Information screen of the membership record.
- 11. After you make changes to Business Rules, your preferences update right away.

## Membership Options, Activity Business Rules

**Note**: You can set a business rule to establish whether or not you allow constituents to have more than one membership at the same time.

You can set business rules for adding new memberships, saving gifts of membership, and renewing memberships. Decide whether or not to allow multiple concurrent memberships for constituents and who gets credit for gifts of membership. You can set a rule to determine the maximum period of time you allow a lapsed membership to be renewed.

- > Define activity defaults for memberships
  - 1. On the Raiser's Edge bar, click **Config**. The Configuration page appears.



- 2. Click the Business Rules link. The Business Rules page appears.
- 3. From the Business Rules tree view, under **Membership options**, select **Activity options**. The activity rule options for memberships appear on the right.



Note: When you mark the **Do not allow multiple concurrent memberships** checkbox, the **Warn before adding** a new membership if a membership already exists checkbox is disabled.

4. Under When adding a new membership, mark the Do not allow multiple concurrent memberships checkbox if you do not allow constituents to have multiple memberships at the same time. If a user attempts to add multiple memberships to a constituent, a message appears.

The Raiser's Edge 🛛 🗙		
٩	The Raiser's Edge has been configured so that multiple Memberships per constituent are not allowed.	

5. You can mark the **Warn before adding a new membership if a membership already exists** checkbox to indicate whether or not you allow constituents to have more than one membership at the same time.

When you mark this checkbox, if a user tries to add a new membership to a constituent who already has a membership, a message appears.

The Raiser's Edge		
	You have chosen to add an entirely new membership for this constituent. If this is correct, click DK to continue. If instead you wish to renew, rejoin, drop, upgrade or downgrade a current membership, select Cancel and add the transaction from the membership.	
	OK	

6. Under When saving a gift of membership, when you mark the Automatically add member as soft credit recipient option, members receiving gifts of membership that are linked to the gift record of the individual who gave the gift are added as soft credit recipients. This applies only to the primary member, not joint members.

When you mark the **Prompt before adding member as soft credit recipient** checkbox, the following message appears.

The Raiser's Edge 🛛 🛛 🕅		
?	Do you wish to gift credit the primary member for this gift?	
	Yes No	

You may want to set this rule if, for example, a husband has a constituent record in the database and gives a gift of membership to his wife who also has a constituent record. Because the husband is paying the dues, the membership can be linked to a gift on his record. If you want the gift to also appear on the wife's gift history, you can soft credit her record by marking the **Automatically add member as soft credit recipient** checkbox. Or, you can mark the **Prompt before adding member as soft credit recipient** checkbox and click **Yes** on the message screen.

When you mark the **Do not add member as soft credit recipient** checkbox, the soft credit is not added to the record of the primary member, and the program asks you no further questions.

**Note**: You may want to set warnings for membership expirations if you do not allow renewals for memberships that have been lapsed for a certain period of time, or if you track memberships by dropping and rejoining them.

7. Under When renewing a membership, when you mark the Warn if the membership has been lapsed for checkbox, you can set a time period for which a membership has been lapsed to initiate a warning.

For example, if your organization does not renew memberships lapsed for over a month, you can set a warning to appear when a membership has been lapsed for this amount of time.

8. When you mark the After [] times, display this message checkbox you can define a warning message to appear after a membership has been renewed a certain number of times. When you mark the checkbox, the Message field is enabled so you can enter the text that appears in the warning message. For example, you can create a message to remind your users to make sure the address and phone information on the member's constituent record is up-to-date after a yearly membership has been renewed two times.

Note: An entry in the Message field is required. There is no default message.

When you click the magnifying glass in the **Message** field, the Define Message screen appears, so you can more easily view the text you enter. Your message can contain up to over 1000 characters.

9. After you make changes to Business Rules, your preferences update right away.

# Understand the Membership Record

The membership record contains all the membership information associated with a particular constituent in your database. This record stores membership specific information in addition to historic membership entries related to each specific membership transaction. You can also store attributes and notes on the membership record. From User Options, you can customize the membership record. You can elect to have a red check mark appear on tabs and buttons that contain data or have membership legends appear in different colors.

Note: The Membership History tab is visible once you save the membership record.

The membership record is composed of three tabs: the Membership tab, the Membership History tab, and the Attributes/Notes tab.

## Membership Tab

On the Membership tab, you can store general information pertaining to a specific membership transaction. For example, you can store the name of the constituent associated with the membership, the membership ID, and the program and dues structure for the membership. You can also store more detailed membership information including the current transaction type, benefits associated with a membership and the number of individuals receiving benefits from the membership, and past membership renewal history.

🔎 Membership for Jack A Holt									
File Edit View Membership Fav	ourites Tools Help								
$\boxed{\blacksquare} \text{Save and Close} \bullet \boxed{\blacksquare} \implies \textcircled{a} \bullet \textcircled{b} \bullet \blacksquare \implies \blacksquare$									
✓ Membership   ✓ Membership History   Attributes/Notes									
Constituent: Holt, Jack ID: 31 Active									
Current Transaction Type: Renewal	Current Transaction Type: Renewal 🔿 Upgrade 🔿 Downgrade 💿 Same								
Membership ID: 29	NetCommunity tra	ansaction							
Dues: £500.00	Aut <u>o</u> Pick	Canvasse <u>r</u> s							
Programme: Business Level	•	✓Members & <u>C</u> ards	Members: 25 Children: 0						
Category: Corporate	•	<u>G</u> ift of Membership	No gift of membership						
Subcategory:	•	✓ Benefits	Send to primary member						
Renewed on: 25/05/2007 📰	🗖 Lifetime	Lin <u>k</u> to Gifts							
Expiry date: 25/05/2008 🥅	Print renewal notices	Past Renewals							
Summary Membership Information-									
Date joined: 25/05/1998	Last renewed: 25	5/05/2007	Last dropped: N/A						
Total years: 7	Total years: 7 Times renewed: 3 Consecutive years: 7								

When you integrate **The Raiser's Edge** with **Blackbaud Netcommunity**, a **NetCommunity transaction** checkbox appears on the Membership tab. If the member joined via your Web site, the checkbox is automatically marked when the membership transaction downloads from **Blackbaud NetCommunity**. You can manually mark this checkbox if needed. For more information, see the *Blackbaud NetCommunity Integration Guide*.

## Membership History Tab

**Note**: The appearance of the information on the Membership History tab varies depending on the options you select on the Legends screen. For more information about membership legends, see the User Options chapter of the *Program Basics Guide*.

The Membership History tab, which is visible once you save a membership record, displays a historic listing of all transactions for a specific membership record. For example, if you enter a membership for a constituent who decides to terminate his membership two months later, the Membership History tab lists the date the member joined and the date the member terminated his membership. The **Membership History Items** grid displays the date of each membership transaction, the transaction type, the membership program, category and subcategory, and the solicitor assigned to the membership.

🛐 Open	nip 🗹 Membership His X Delete p History Items			_	
	Transaction Type	Program	Category	Subcategory	Solicitors
05/25/1998	Joined	Business Level	Corporate		Anne Sinclair
05/25/1999	Renewal-Same	Business Level	Corporate		Anne Sinclair
	Renewal-Same	Business Level	Corporate		
	Renewal-Same	Business Level	Corporate		
	Renewal-Same	Business Level	Corporate		
<b>د ا</b>	p Detail for Selecte	d Transaction			<u>)</u>

## Attributes/Notes Tab

On the Attributes/Notes tab, you can store miscellaneous information about a membership record. You can add attributes by selecting the **Category** of attribute for which you want to see. You set up Attributes categories from the **Attributes** link of *Configuration*. For more information about setting up attribute categories, see the Configuration chapter of the *Configuration & Security Guide*. You can add additional information you need for the membership record in the **Notes** box. Membership attributes and notes are stored per membership record and not for each membership transaction. This means that the notes and attributes are overall comments about a membership and not specific to any one transaction.

🔗 Membership for Mr. Jac	ckson Andrew Holt, III			
<u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew <u>M</u> embersh	ip F <u>a</u> vorites <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp			
🔁 Save and Close 👻 🔚 🛛	⊜• <u>0</u> н • • н	→• & 1¢	× ₩>   \$ \$   \$	💿 🕾 ? - 😹 -
✓ Membership ✓ Members	ship History 🚩 Attributes/Notes			
<all categories=""></all>	•	-	-	
Category	Description	Short Desc.	Date	Comments
Exhibit Interests	Asian Art		05/30/2006	Paintings are his favorite
Notes:	1.			
Candidate for Friends of Asia	an Art program.			<u></u>
<u> </u>				

# **Understand Membership Benefits**

Membership benefits are gifts your organization gives to constituents depending on the level of membership they agree to join or the dues they decide to pay. For example, a Junior Curator member can receive a newsletter, a reduced zoo entrance fee, and free passes for certain events. Membership benefits are associated with dues, in terms of the benefit package a member receives. Although the dues are not considered payment for the benefits a member receives, the benefits value may account for a difference between an initial gift amount and how much that gift actually costs.

Calculating the benefits package monetary amount is important, especially if the benefits package is associated with a gift. Receipts for all gifts associated with membership benefits should take into account the monetary value of the benefits. For example, a constituent donates a gift of \$2,000, \$500 of which goes to pay for a membership with benefits worth \$250. The constituent should receive a receipt for his contribution, but only \$1,750 of that gift is the tax-deductible contribution.

# **Membership Categories**

Membership categories define the level of giving required for a constituent to gain membership into one of your member groups. For example, you work in a library which has membership categories of Patron, Friend, and Individual Member. Once you create these membership categories, you can then assign membership dues associated with each category. You can define membership categories based on program titles, minimum and maximum dues amounts, and number of members. Your ability to establish membership categories is based on your access rights defined in **Security**. It is helpful and efficient to enter membership category information before you set up your individual membership records, which can help speed membership data entry and maintain consistency in your database.

To view a membership category, click **Config** on the Raiser's Edge bar. The Configuration page appears. Click **Membership Categories**.

<mark>à The Raiser's</mark> ile <u>E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew		<u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp						_ <u>8</u> ×
🗣 Back 🔶 Fo	rward Open in se	parate window	,					
Home	🥸 C	onfigu	iration •	Members	ship Categ	jories		
hecords 🛜	Configur	ation 🛅	New Category	🔄 Open 🔤 Insert	× Delete 🖻 Co	by Sort		🛧 Up 🗣 Do <u>w</u> r
	General		Program	Category	Minimum D	Maximum	Members per M	
Query	Tables	Yo	2	Young Maestros	\$750.00	\$750.00	3	
	Addressee	s/ Yo	ung Explorers	-	\$100.00	\$100.00	4	
Export	Salutation		ung Explorers	Young Benefactor	\$500.00	\$500.00	1	
	Attributes	Inc	dividual	Lifetime	\$5,000.00	\$5,000.00	1	
😒 Reports	Financial Institutions	Frie	ends of the	Individual	\$50.00	\$250.00		
2	General Le	- Led	ucation Pro	Sustainer	\$2,000.00	\$2,000.00		
💕 Mail	Letters	Edi	ucation Pro	Family	\$85.00	\$85.00	5	
<b>\$</b>			ucation Pro	Individual	\$25.00	\$50.00		
Batch	Internation	Bus	siness Level	Corporate	\$500.00	\$500.00	25	
/m	Business F	Rules Bu:	siness Level	Non-Profit	\$250.00	\$500.00		
Admin	Fields	Art	s Program	Student	\$25.00	\$25.00	1	
	Membersh		s Program	Family	\$85.00	\$85.00	6	
🂕 Config	Categories	Art	s Program	Senior	\$40.00	\$40.00	2	
	Custom Vi	ews Art	s Program	Benefactor	\$5,000.00	\$5,000.00		-
Scannin	9		o Drogram	Datrop	40 000 04	40 000 00	î	<u> </u>
			Display active m	embership categories	only			
💕 NetSolu	u		Momhor	ship Categories				
🗿 Dashbo		4	2		I for a constituent to ga	in membership	in one of your orga	nization's
<u>.</u>	-		categories		2		, 2	-
elcome to The F	Raiser's Edge 7							

A list of established Membership Categories appears. Highlight an existing membership category you want to edit and click the **Open** link on the action bar, or click the **New Category** link to set up a new membership category.

The Membership Category screen is composed of four tabs: the General Information tab, the Default Benefits tab, the Default Settings tab, and the Renewal Information tab.

**General Information tab.** On the General Information tab of the membership category record, you can define membership categories, programs, subcategories, and establish dues required to qualify for this membership category. You can also establish other default membership information, including the maximum number of members allowed under the primary cardholder's membership and whether the membership category is inactive.

Arts Program - Student	×
<u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew <u>C</u> ategory <u>H</u> elp	
🎦 Save and Close 👻 🔚 🗙 🔹 🕨 📍 🔹	
General Infomation Default Benefits Default Settin	ngs Benewal Information
Category: Student	Maximum members per membership record:
Program: Arts Program 💌	🔲 Lifetime membership 🔽 Print renewal notices
Subcategories: Available subcategories: College Elementary Animals in the Wild Outside Tri-State Area International Rainforest Club Bear Zebra Lion	Include these valid subcategories:
Membership Dues Dues level: \$25.00 Minimum dues: \$25.00	Maximum dues: \$25.00

**Default Benefits tab.** On the Default Benefits tab, you can enter the default benefits information for the membership category. These benefits can include magazines, newsletters, and store discounts. On this tab, you can also determine whether benefits should be given to the primary member or to a donor who has given a gift of membership.

Arts	irts Program - Student 🛛 🛛 🗙								
<u>F</u> ile	<u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew <u>C</u> ategory <u>H</u> elp								
6	🔁 Save and Close 👻 🔚 🗙 🔺 🕨 🤶 👻								
G	General Infomation Default Benefits Default Settings Renewal Information								
	Enter the benefits received for this membership and the associated value.								
		Benefit	Count	Unit Cost	Total Benefit/Value	Sent/Fulfilled	Comments		
		Free Admission	1	\$10.00	\$10.00				
		10% off Gift Shop		\$0.00	\$0.00				
				\$0.00	\$0.00				
	For	gifts of membership ser	nd benefi	ts to: 💿 Prima	ary Member ု Dono	r			
	No	tes:							
	Μu	ist show current studen	t ID card	to be eligible fo	or membership.				

**Default Settings tab.** On the Default Settings tab, you can enter all the default membership renewal information including the status and the number of cards to print. You can also determine how the program should calculate the expiration date of memberships.

Arts Program - Student 🛛 🗙
<u>File Edit View Category Help</u>
General Information Default Benefits Default Settings Renewal Information
Card/Renewal Defaults
Default renewal card status to: Not Printed 💌 Default no. of cards to print: 1
Expiration Defaults
Default 'Expires' to: Same month/day as cycle start date 🔄 📃
New memberships expire after: 1 Year(s)
Renewed memberships expire after: 1 Year(s)
Rejoined memberships expire after: 1 Year(s)
Default Information for Memberships Linked to Gifts
Gift Defaults Default Receipt Amount Options
© Gift Amount - Benefits
O Do not default receipt amount
O Other Amount

**Renewal Information tab.** The Renewal Information tab helps you set up the frequency with which you alert members their membership is going to expire. On this tab, you can also establish a default for how long the membership can be lapsed before it should be dropped.

Arts Program - Student									×
<u>File</u> <u>E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew <u>C</u> ategory	<u>H</u> elp	D							
🔁 Save and Close 👻 🔚 🗙 🔺 🕨 ? 👻									
General Information Default Benefits Default Settings Benewal Information									
Drop this membership after being lapsed for: 2 Month(s)									
Letters		Commen	ts	No.	Fre	equency	E	Before/After	▲
Arts Program First Not	tice			1	Month(s)		Before Expiration		
Arts Program Second I	N			1	Week(s) Afte		Afte	r Expiration	<b>-</b> 1
•								▶	
Renewal Notice Inform	Renewal Notice Information When There Are Gifts of Membership								
Letters		Comments	Send T	o I	No.	Freque	ncy	Before/After	·

For more information about establishing membership categories, see the Configuration chapter of the *Configuration & Security Guide*.

# **Membership Checklist**

Before you begin entering membership information for your constituents, you should establish certain settings in the program to help make data entry quicker and to ensure the consistency of information in your database. This short checklist provides some suggestions.

Most of the initial setup occurs in *Configuration*. Access to this area of *The Raiser's Edge* is determined by your access rights defined in **Security**. This checklist offers an overview of the steps you need to follow to set up membership information in advance. For detailed instructions about how to establish membership defaults, see the Configuration chapter of the *Configuration & Security Guide*.

#### Tables

Using the **Tables** link on the Configuration page, you can set up the tables for membership benefits, membership categories, membership subcategories, membership programs, membership reasons, and membership card types. You can also access these table entries from the Membership Category screen.

#### Letters

Using the **Letters** link on the Configuration page, you can set up any letters you want to link to your membership records, including renewal notices and membership reminders. You can name the type of letter you want to set up and assign the appropriate merge fields that coincide with the document in your word processor.

#### Business Rules

Using the **Business Rules** link on the Configuration page, you can determine general and activity business rules for your membership records. General business rules include determining how names display in a membership record, whether membership IDs are automatically generated, whether pledge payments are automatically applied to memberships, and whether the membership category and program should automatically appear when you enter the dues amount. Activity business rules determine if you can enter members with multiple concurrent memberships and let you set up a warning when memberships are ready to expire.

#### Membership Categories

On the Membership Category screen, accessed by clicking **Config** on the Raiser's Edge bar, you can establish default settings for all your membership categories. On this screen, you can define your category/program combinations and the associated dues structure. You can determine the benefits associated with each category/program combination and establish default information for membership renewal.

#### 🗖 Mail

Using *Mail*, you can set up the parameter files for forms, including renewal notices and membership cards. Once these parameter forms are set up, you can print renewal notices and membership cards from a membership record or use the options available in *Mail* to print numerous membership cards and renewal notices. For more information about mail forms, see the *Mail Guide*.

# Work with Membership Records

Once you are familiar with the terms and concepts associated with the optional module *Membership Management*, you are ready to begin entering membership information for constituents. The procedures in this section provide the basic information needed to perform the membership transactions presented later in this book. The procedure sections show one way you can accomplish each described task.

You can add new membership transactions from the Membership tab of a constituent record or from the Memberships page. In this section, all membership transactions are performed from the Memberships page. The main features of the Membership tab of a constituent record are discussed later in this book.
# **General Membership Information**

Membership records store information about a constituent's membership with your organization, such as date of joining, renewal history, membership categories to which she belongs, membership solicitors, benefits, and gift records associated with the membership. The information stored on membership records helps you produce reports to analyze membership activity, print lists and directories of members, and perform specific mailings, such as preparing membership cards and renewal notices. In addition, you can use a membership query to locate lapsed members who did not respond to renewal notices, upgrade or downgrade memberships based on the payment of dues, and renew members who want to remain active.

> Add a membership record

**Scenario:** David Murphy pledged to become a Patron in support of the Art Acquisition Club of the Arts Program at your museum. The dues for the Patron category are \$2,000 and the membership is renewable every 12 months. Add a membership record for David. Make sure David receives renewal notices when the membership is close to its expiration date.

- 1. On the Raiser's Edge bar, click **Records**.
- 2. Click the Memberships link. The Memberships page appears.



**Note**: You can also add a membership by clicking **New Membership** on the Membership tab of a constituent record or by selecting **File**, **New**, **Membership** from the shell menu bar.

3. Click New Membership. The new membership record appears.

▶ <b>New Members</b> Mem <u>b</u> ership Attri		
Constituent:	<u></u>	New
Membership ID:		
Dues:	\$0.00 🔟 Auto Pick	Solicitors
Program:	<b>Y</b>	Members & Cards Members: 1 Children: 0
Category:	<b></b>	Gift of Membership No gift of membership
Subcategory:	V	Benefits No benefits defined
Date joined:	🔳 🗖 Lifetime	Lin <u>k</u> to Gifts
Expires:	Print renewal notices	
Reason:	V	Comment(s):
	ОК	Cancel

4. In the **Constituent** field, click the binoculars to access the Open screen for memberships, so you can search for David in your database. Once found and selected, the constituent name appears in this field. For more information about the Open screen, see the Program Basics chapter of the *Program Basics Guide*.

**Warning**: To ensure data entry consistency, we recommend you establish preferences to automatically generate ID numbers. For more information about automatically generating IDs, see "Generate IDs Rules" on page 18.

- 5. In the **Membership ID** field, enter "234765" as a membership number for David. Membership IDs are stored per membership record. If you change the membership ID on a transaction, the change rolls back to all previous membership transactions.
- 6. In the **Dues** field, enter the amount \$2,000. The Select Program/Category screen appears.

S	Select Program/Category 🛛 🛛 🔀							
	You have entered a Dues amount that falls into these Categories. Selecting a row in this grid will default the Program and Category for you.							
	Program	Category						
	Education Program	Sustainer Patron						
	Arts Program							
	Adopt an Animal	Patron						
	Adopt an Animal	Sustainer						
	OK	Cancel						

7. Highlight "Arts Program/Patron" and click **OK**. You return to the New Membership screen.

	hip for Mr. Davi	d Benson Murpl	hy			
✓ Membership /	Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes					- 1
Constituent:	Murphy, David		<u>99</u>	ID: 51		New
Membership ID:	234765					
Dues:	\$2,000.00	Aut <u>o</u> F	Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s		
Program:	Arts Program		•	✓ Members & <u>C</u> ards	Members: 1	Children: 0
Category:	Patron		-	<u>G</u> ift of Membership	No gift of membe	ership
Subcategory:			•	✓ Be <u>n</u> efits	Send to primary i	member
Date joined:		🗖 Lifetime		Lin <u>k</u> to Gifts	J	
Expires:		🔽 Print renewal	notices			
Reason:			•	Comment(s):		P
		0	К	Cancel		

The **Program** and **Category** fields automatically default based on your selection on the Select Program/Category screen.

You can click the down arrow in the **Category** field and choose the appropriate program/category combination, if you set up the information in *Configuration*. For more information about setting up membership categories, see the Configuration chapter of the *Configuration & Security Guide*.

You can also click **Auto Pick** to select the program/category combination. When you click **Auto Pick**, the Select Program/Category screen appears, displaying a list of available program/categories, based on the dues amount entered. Highlight the **Program/Category** combination you want to use and click **OK**. The information automatically fills in the appropriate fields on the membership record.

Select Program/Category         Image: Category           You have entered a Dues amount that falls into these Categories. Selecting a row in this grid will default the Program and Category for you.						
Progr	am	Category				
Educa	tion Program	Sustainer				
Arts P	rogram	Patron				
Adopt	an Animal	Patron				
Adopt	an Animal	Sustainer				
	OK	Cancel				

The **Auto Pick** button is enabled only if you set up your membership program, category, and subcategory information in *Configuration*. For more information about membership categories, programs, and subcategories, see "Membership Categories" on page 30.

**Note**: You cannot enter information directly into the **Subcategory** field on the membership record. All membership subcategories must be established in advance in *Configuration*.

- 8. In the Subcategory field, select "Art Acquisition Club".
- 9. In the **Date Joined** field, enter the date 03/07/2006. You can click the calendar to select a date.

10. In the **Expires** field, enter the date 03/07/2007 as the expiration date or click the calendar to select a date. If you established the default settings on the Membership Category screen of *Configuration*, you can tab down to the **Expires** field from the **Date Joined** field. The expiration date automatically defaults. For information about defining how the program calculates expiration dates, see the Configuration chapter of the *Configuration & Security Guide*.

**Note**: The default information defined on the Renewal Information tab of the Membership Category screen in *Configuration* determines who receives renewal notices when there is a gift of membership.

- 11. To make sure David is notified when the membership is close to expiring, mark the **Print renewal notices** checkbox. For more information about determining when renewal notices are sent out, see the Configuration chapter of the *Configuration & Security Guide*.
- 12. In the **Reason** field, select "Moved" because David recently relocated to your town.
- 13. In the **Comments** field, enter "Mr. Murphy was a Patron of the local museum in his hometown of Hopewell, VA."

🥟 New Membershi	🥙 New Membership for David B. Murphy 📃 🔲 🗙						
✓ Membership Att	trib <u>u</u> tes/Notes						
Constituent:	David Murphy			ID: 51		New	
Membership ID: 2	234765						
Dues: 🕽	\$2,000.00	🖬 🛛 Au	it <u>o</u> Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s			
Program: 🛛	Arts Program		•	✓Members & <u>C</u> ards	Members: 1	Children: 0	
Category:	Patron		•	<u>G</u> ift of Membership	No gift of membe	rship	
Subcategory: 🛛	Art Aquisition Club		•	✓ Benefits	Send to primary r	nember	
Date joined:	3/07/2006 📑	Lifetime		Lin <u>k</u> to Gifts			
Expires on:	03/07/2007 📰	Print rene	wal notices				
Reason: 🖡	Moved		•	Comment(s): Mr. Murp	hy was a Patron of	the local mu 🔎	
			ОК	Cancel			

14. To save the information and close the membership record, click OK.

# Lifetime Memberships

With *The Raiser's Edge*, you can establish and track lifetime memberships for your constituents.

#### Establish lifetime memberships

Once you set up a lifetime membership, you can always track membership information, even after the constituent is deceased. However, if you want to track lifetime memberships accurately, you should drop lifetime memberships of constituents who are deceased because they are no longer active participants in your membership program. When you run reports, the record of the membership still exists, but deceased constituents do not appear on your report, unless you request that information.

1. On the Raiser's Edge bar, click Records.

2. Click Memberships. The Memberships page appears.



3. Click New Membership. The New Membership screen appears.

🕬 New Members	ship		Х
✓ Mem <u>b</u> ership ]	Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes		
Constituent:	<u></u>	Nev	v
Membership ID:			
Dues:	\$0.00 🔳 Autg Pick	Solicitors	
Program:	V	✓ Members & Cards Members: 1 Children: 0	
Category:	<b>V</b>	Gift of Membership No gift of membership	
Subcategory:	V	Benefits No benefits defined	
Date joined:	🔲 🗖 Lifetime	Link to Gifts	
Expires:	Print renewal notices		
Reason:	Y	Comment(s):	0
	OK	Cancel	

- 4. In the **Constituent**, **Membership ID**, **Dues**, **Program**, and **Category** fields, enter the information for your lifetime membership. For more information about how to enter information in these fields, see "Add a membership record" on page 34.
- 5. In the **Date Joined** field, enter today's date by pressing **F3** on your keyboard.

**Note**: When you mark the **Lifetime** checkbox, the **Expires** field and the **Print renewal notices** checkbox become disabled.

6. To indicate the new membership is a Lifetime membership, mark the Lifetime checkbox.

🥙 New Membership for Mrs. Susan Elizabeth McDonald						
Membership Attributes/Notes						
Constituent:	McDonald, Susan		99	ID: 24		New
Membership ID:	896542					
Dues:	\$5,000.00	Auto	Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s		
Program:	Individual		-	✓ Members & <u>C</u> ards	Members: 1	Children: 0
Category:	Lifetime		-	Gift of Membership	No gift of membe	ership
Subcategory:			-	✓ Benefits	Send to primary r	member
Date joined:	02/20/2007 🔳	🔽 Lifetime		Lin <u>k</u> to Gifts	]	
Expires:		Print renewa	l notices			
Reason:			•	Comment(s):		P
			эк	Cancel		

7. To save the information and exit the membership record, click OK.

# **Membership Solicitors**

In **The Raiser's Edge**, you can track solicitors involved in your organization's membership drives and transactions. Solicitors are constituents who, on behalf of your organization, urge a new member to join. For example, during your organization's annual phonathon, Allison Andrews contacts David Murphy and convinces him to become a member. You can credit her as a solicitor on David's membership record. Solicitors at your organization must be entered in the database as constituents and must have the **Constituent is a solicitor** checkbox marked on the Bio 1 or Org 1 tab of the constituent record before the solicitor can be assigned to another constituent's membership record. For more information about solicitors, see the Solicitors chapter of the *Constituent Data Entry Guide*.

• Add a solicitor to a membership record

**Scenario:** In his letter requesting a new membership with your museum, Mr. David Murphy informs you he received a call from Allison Andrews about becoming a member. David credits Allison's efforts for prompting him to become a member. Enter Allison Andrews as a solicitor on David's membership record. This procedure uses the membership record created in "Add a membership record" on page 34.

1. From David Murphy's membership record, select the Membership tab. For more information about accessing the Memberships page, see "Navigate in Membership" on page 5. For information about opening a membership record, see "Open a membership record" on page 6.

🥙 Membership for David B. Murphy 📃 🖂 🗙							
File Edit View Membership Fav	orites Tools Help						
🎦 Save and Close 🔹 🔚 🎒 🍨	д•   н ч → н   -	→ •   & 1@ <b>!</b> \$   \$	😫 💿 😭 <b>? - 🝇 -</b>				
💙 Membership 🗸 Membership Hist	✓ Membership ✓ Membership History Attributes/Notes						
Constituent: David Murphy		ID: 51	Active				
Current Transaction Type: Join							
Membership ID: 234765							
Dues: \$2,000.00	🖬 🛛 Aut <u>o</u> Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s					
Program: Arts Program	•	✓ Members & Cards	Members: 1 Children: 0				
Category: Patron	•	<u>G</u> ift of Membership	No gift of membership				
Subcategory: Art Aquisition Club	)	✓ Benefits	Send to primary member				
Date joined: 03/07/2006 🧾	🗖 Lifetime	Lin <u>k</u> to Gifts	]				
Expires on: 03/07/2007 🧾	Print renewal notices	Past Renewals	]				
Summary Membership Information							
Date joined: 03/07/2006	Last renewed: N	I/A	Last dropped: N/A				
Total years: 0	Times renewed: 0	Cor	nsecutive years: 0				
Reason for Join: Moved		Comment: Mr. Murphy wa	s a Patron of the local mu				

2. From the Membership tab of David's membership record, click **Solicitors**. The Solicitors Credited for this Membership screen appears.

Solicitors Credited for this Membership						
Please enter the solicitors who should receive credit for this membership.						
Solicitor						
69						
OK Cancel						

3. To search for the name of the solicitor you want to link to the membership record, click the binoculars. The Open screen appears so you can search your database for Allison Andrews. For more information about locating a constituent record on the Open screen, see the Program Basics chapter of the *Program Basics Guide*.

4. From the list on the Open screen for constituents, highlight Allison Andrews' name and click **Open.** Her name automatically appears on the Solicitors Credited for this Membership screen.

Solicitors Credited for this Membership							
Please enter the solicitors who should receive credit for this membership.							
Solicitor							
Allison Andrews							
J							
OK Cancel							

5. To save the solicitor information in the membership record, click **OK**. You return to the Membership tab.

🌮 Membership for David B. Murp	hy							
File Edit View Membership Favo	orites Tools Help							
$\boxed{\begin{array}{c} \blacksquare \\ \blacksquare \end{array}} Save and Close \bullet \boxed{\begin{array}{c} \blacksquare \\ \blacksquare \end{array}} \xrightarrow{\begin{array}{c} \blacksquare \\ \blacksquare \end{array}} \bullet \boxed{\begin{array}{c} \blacksquare \\ \blacksquare \end{array}} \bullet \blacksquare \blacksquare \end{array}} \bullet \boxed{\begin{array}{c} \blacksquare \\ \blacksquare \end{array}} \bullet \boxed{\begin{array}{c} \blacksquare \\ \blacksquare \end{array}} \bullet \blacksquare \blacksquare \blacksquare \end{array}} \bullet \boxed{\begin{array}{c} \blacksquare \blacksquare \\ \blacksquare \blacksquare \blacksquare \end{array}} \bullet \blacksquare $								
💙 Mem <u>b</u> ership 🖌 Membership Hjsto	✓ Membership 🖌 Membership History 🛛 Attributes/Notes							
Constituent: David Murphy	Constituent: David Murphy ID: 51 Active							
Current Transaction Type: Join								
Membership ID: 234765								
Dues: \$2,000.00	Aut <u>o</u> Pick	✓ Solicito <u>r</u> s	Allison Andrews					
Program: Arts Program	•	✓ Members & <u>C</u> ards	Members: 1 Children: 0					
Category: Patron	•	<u>G</u> ift of Membership	No gift of membership					
Subcategory: Art Aquisition Club	•	✓ Benefits	Send to primary member					
Date joined: 03/07/2006 🧾	🔲 Lifetime	Lin <u>k</u> to Gifts						
Expires on: 03/07/2007 📰	Print renewal notices	Past Renewals	J					
Summary Membership Information-								
Date joined: 03/07/2006	Last renewed: N	I/A	Last dropped: N/A					
Total years: 0	Times renewed: 0	Cor	nsecutive years: 0					
Reason for Join: Moved		Comment: Mr. Murphy wa	s a Patron of the local mu					

- 6. To save the new information and exit the membership record, click Save and Close on the toolbar.
- 7. From David Murphy's membership record, select the Membership tab. For more information about accessing the Memberships page, see "Navigate in Membership" on page 5. For information about opening a membership record, see "Open a membership record" on page 6.

### Members and Card Information

On each membership record, you can store and keep track of the number of additional members and cards issued under the primary membership. This may be helpful if your organization offers family memberships or allows memberships to be extended to guests of the primary member. You can determine the maximum number of additional members under a membership and print additional membership cards. The default limit for additional members under the primary cardholder's membership is established on the General Information tab of the Membership Category screen in *Configuration*.

### • Add other members and card information

**Scenario:** Margaret Murphy wants to make sure she is included on her husband's membership. There is a possibility she may be attending the museum without David, so she requests to receive a membership card in her name, Mrs. Margaret Lisbeth Murphy. Add Margaret as a Joint member on David's membership record. This procedure uses the membership record created in "Add a membership record" on page 34.

Scenario:

1. From David Murphy's membership record, select the Membership tab. For more information about accessing the Memberships page, see "Navigate in Membership" on page 5. For information about opening a membership record, see "Open a membership record" on page 6.

🔗 Membership for David B. Mur	ohy		_ 🗆 ×				
File Edit View Membership Fav	orites Tools Help						
$\boxed{\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$							
✓ Membership ✓ Membership Hist	✓ Membership 🗸 Membership History Attributes/Notes						
Constituent: David Murphy	[.]	ID: 51	Active				
Current Transaction Type: Join							
Membership ID: 234765							
Dues: \$2,000.00	🔜 🛛 Aut <u>o</u> Pick	✓ Solicito <u>r</u> s	Allison Andrews				
Program: Arts Program	•	✓Members & Cards	Members: 1 Children: 0				
Category: Patron	•	Gift of Membership	No gift of membership				
Subcategory: Art Aquisition Club	) 💌	✓ Benefits	Send to primary member				
Date joined: 03/07/2006 📰	🗖 Lifetime	Lin <u>k</u> to Gifts	]				
Expires on: 03/07/2007 📰	Print renewal notices	Past Renewals	]				
Summary Membership Information-							
Date joined: 03/07/2006	Last renewed: N	1/A	Last dropped: N/A				
Total years: 0	Times renewed: 0	l Cor	nsecutive years: 0				
Reason for Join: Moved	ļ	Comment: Mr. Murphy wa	s a Patron of the local mu				

**Warning**: The name of the primary card member in the Other Members and Card Information screen automatically defaults, but you must specify the names of additional cardholders on this screen.

2. Click Members and Cards. The Other Members and Card Information screen appears.

Other Members and Car	d Information					×
🔍 New Joint Members/Ca	rd Recipients 🛛 🔂	ien 🗙	Delete			
Total number of members	s on this membership: [	1	N	umber of	children on this r	nembership: 0
Members	Relationship	Card	Name on Card	No.	Expiration	Date Last Printe
David B. Murphy	Self	$\mathbf{\overline{\mathbf{V}}}$	David B. Murphy	2	03/07/2007	
	F					
		OK	Cancel			

3. To add Margaret on the membership, click **New Joint Members/Card Recipients** on the action bar. The New Joint Member or Card Recipient screen appears.

New Joint Memb	per or Card Recipient 🛛 🗙
File Edit Memb	ership Tools Help
Save and Close	e •   🖬 🗙   ∢ → ▶   → •   ? •   💐 •
🗖 Joint Membe	
Relationship (	record:
the joint mem	r for this membership to display on the joint member's record or have ber listed on membership reports, the joint member must be entered as in the field above.
Card/Guest	Pass Recipient
Name on card:	Editable?
Relationship:	
Card expires:	Same dates as membership
Valid from:	03/07/2006 Walid to: 03/07/2007
Туре:	Number to print: 2
Status:	Not Printed 🔽 Last printed:
Address to print:	C None
	Select from primary member's addresses
Photo ID:	C Select from joint member's addresses

**Warning**: You must mark the **Joint Member** checkbox on you want the name of the joint member to appear in membership reports.

- 4. To enable the Relationship record field, mark the Joint Member checkbox.
- 5. To search for Margaret, the relationship you want to add to this membership record, click the binoculars in the **Relationship record** field. The Search Relationships screen appears. When you find and select Margaret's name, click **Open**.

Search relationships for Dav	vid B. Murp	hy				×
Find: Both						
Name	Δ	Relationship	Date From	Date To		<u>a</u> <u>O</u> pen
Harvard University	E	mployer			E	Cancel
Margaret L. Murphy	V	/ife			н —	
					3	Add New
					6	Eind
						💎 Filters

If the relationship you want to add is not listed as a relationship in the constituent record, click **Add New** to add a new relationship. For more information about adding relationships to constituent records, see the Relationships chapter of the *Constituent Data Entry Guide*.

**Note**: You cannot edit the **Relationship record** field once you save the information in the **Joint Member** frame. If you want to change this information, you must delete the Joint Member or Card Recipient record and add the information you want.

6. From the list that appears, highlight Margaret as the relationship and click **Open**. Margaret's name appears in the **Relationship record** field on the New Joint Member or Card Recipient screen.



7. Mark the Card/Guest Pass Recipient checkbox.

**Note**: If the **Editable**? checkbox is unmarked, in the **Name** field, you can select an addressee from the Configuration table.

- 8. Mark the Editable? checkbox if you want to manually enter names in the Name on card field.
- 9. In the Name on card field, enter "Mrs. Margaret Lisbeth Murphy" as the name to appear on her card.

**Note:** If the name in the **Relationship record** field is not linked to the membership record, the **Relationship** field is enabled.

- 10. In the **Relationship** field, "Wife" automatically defaults from the Relationships tab of the constituent's record.
- 11. In the **Card expires** field, select "Same dates as membership" because you want Margaret's membership card to be valid throughout David's membership.
- 12. In the Valid from and Valid to fields, the same dates as the membership automatically default from the Membership tab and disable. If you select "Specific dates" in the Card expires field, the Valid from and Valid to dates enable.
- 13. In the **Type** field, select "Joint" to designate Margaret as a joint member.
- 14. In the Number to print field, enter "1".

**Warning**: The **Select from joint member's addresses** is available only if the cardholder is also a joint member. If the **Joint Member** checkbox is not marked, then the **Select from joint member's addresses** option is not available. In the **Type** field, if any option other than "Joint" is selected, the card recipient is considered only a relationship to the Primary Member. In that case, the address used to print if **Select from joint member's addresses** is chosen is the address listed for the relationship on the member's constituent record. If the relationship record does not have an address, then an address does not print on the card, no matter what is chosen for the **If no address is found** field on the Address Tab of *Mail* tasks.

- 15. To ensure Margaret's card is sent to her home, mark the **Select from primary member's addresses** option, which is the selected mailing address on David's record.
- 16. If you want to include a photo of the member, click the ellipsis in the **Photo ID** field to browse for the photo file on your computer. When you select a photo, "<image>" automatically defaults in the **Photo ID** field. If you have *Membership Scanning*, you can view this photo on the Membership Scanning page. For more information, see the *Membership Scanning Guide*.

For the best optimization using photo IDs on the Membership Scanning page, we recommend you save your images no larger than 300 x 300 pixels. You can display larger images, but viewing the display fields may become more difficult. Photo file types must be saved as a .bmp, .gif, .jpg or .jpeg file.

New Joint Member or	Card Recipient 🛛 🗙
File Edit Membership	Tools Help
🔁 Save and Close 👻 🛛	⊒ ×
🗹 Joint Member —	
Relationship record:	: Margaret L. Murphy
	is membership to display on the joint member's record or have ted on membership reports, the joint member must be entered as field above.
Card/Guest Pass	Recipient
Name on card: Marg	garet L. Murphy 🔽 Editable?
Relationship: Wife	V
Card expires: Same	e dates as membership
Valid from: 03/0	7/2006 📰 Valid to: 03/07/2007 📰
Туре:	Number to print: 1
Status: Not I	Printed 💌 Last printed:
Address to print: 🔘 N	one
	elect from primary member's addresses elect from joint member's addresses

17. To save the relationship information, click **Save and Close**. You return to the Other Members and Card Information screen. Margaret's name is added to the list.

Other Members and Ca	ard Information					X
🔍 New Joint Members/C	ard Recipients 🛛 🔂	pen 🗙	Delete			
Total number of membe	ers on this membership:	1	N	umber of	children on this r	membership: 0
Members	Relationship	Card	Name on Card	No.	Expiration	Date Last Printe
Margaret L. Murphy	Wife		Margaret L. Murphy	1	03/07/2007	
David B. Murphy	Self		David B. Murphy	2	03/07/2007	
<b>₹</b>	]	OK	Cancel			Þ

**Note:** From the General Information tab of the membership category record, you can select to limit the amount of members per membership record. For more information, see "Membership Categories" on page 30.

- 18. Because Margaret is a joint member, enter "2" in the **Total number of members on this membership** field.
- 19. Click **OK**. You return to David's membership record.

Membership for David B. Mu File Edit View Membership Fa	· · ·		
Pile Cuit View Membership Pa		→ • & t⊚ I⊗ &	
		· • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	
✓ Membership ✓ Membership His	tory Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes		
Constituent: David Murphy		ID: 51	Active
Current Transaction Type: Join			
Membership ID: 234765			
Dues: \$2,000.00	Auto Pick	✓ Solicito <u>r</u> s	Allison Andrews
Program: Arts Program	•	✓ Members & Cards	Members: 2 Children: 0
Category: Patron	•	<u>G</u> ift of Membership	No gift of membership
Subcategory: Art Aquisition Clu	ib 💌	✓ Benefits	Send to primary member
Date joined: 03/07/2006 🧰	🗖 Lifetime	Lin <u>k</u> to Gifts	
Expires on: 03/07/2007 🧰	Print renewal notices	Past Renewals	]
Summary Membership Information—			
Date joined: 03/07/2006	Last renewed: N	I/A	Last dropped: N/A
Total years: 0	Times renewed: 0	Cor	nsecutive years: 0
Reason for Join: Moved		Comment: Mr. Murphy wa	s a Patron of the local mu

20. To save the additional member information and exit the membership record, click **Save and Close** on the toolbar.

## Membership and Gifts

When a constituent pays dues for a membership, you can create a gift record for the dues payment and link the gift record to the membership record. When you link a gift record to a membership, you record the dues payment. If a constituent makes a pledge to pay dues over a period of time, you can link the gift record for the pledge and the pledge payments to the membership record.

A constituent can pay dues for her own membership or any other membership. For example, a parent may pay for a child's membership to your organization. This is considered a gift of membership. However, it is not recorded on the recipient's membership record unless you click the **Gift of Membership** button and enter information about the donor of the gift. When a constituent gives a gift of membership, you can specify whether the donor or the recipient of the membership receives the renewal notices and benefits for the membership. Only individuals entered as constituents in your database can give a gift of membership.

### Add a gift of membership

Gifts of membership are memberships in which the primary cardholder is not the individual who pays the membership dues. For example, a constituent may decide to give a gift of membership to his wife for her birthday. This means the wife benefits from the membership, but is not responsible for the membership dues. Entering a gift of membership information is useful for record keeping purposes and helps you link the membership with the appropriate gift. This scenario explains how to add a gift of membership from the membership record. For more information about adding a gift of membership from the gift record, see the *Membership Gifts Guide*.

**Scenario:** Michelle Taylor wants to give her granddaughter, Susan Marie Taylor, a gift of membership to become a Young Benefactor of your zoo's Young Explorers Program, for which dues are \$750. Although Susan will be the primary member and receive most of the membership benefits, you want to make sure you specify that Michelle Taylor, the donor, receives all renewal notices for this membership. Enter the information pertaining to the gift of membership on Susan Taylor's membership record.

**Note**: You can also add a membership using the **New Membership** link on the Membership tab of a constituent record or by selecting **File**, **New**, **Membership** from the shell menu bar.

1. From the Memberships page, click **New Member**. The New Membership screen appears. For more information about accessing the Memberships page, see "Navigate in Membership" on page 5.

🥟 New Member	ship	
✓ Membership	Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes	
Constituent	<u>89</u>	New
Membership ID:		
Dues	\$0.00 📕 Auto Pick	Solicitors
Program	V	V Members & Cards Members: 1 Children: 0
Category	V	Gift of Membership No gift of membership
Subcategory.	V	Benefits No benefits defined
Date joined	🔲 🗖 Lifetime	Lin <u>k</u> to Gifts
Expires	Print renewal notices	
Heason		Comment(s):
	OK	Cancel

2. In the **Constituent** field, click the binoculars to access the Open screen so you can search for Susan in your database. Once found and selected, Susan's name appears in the field. For more information about the Open screen, see the Program Basics chapter of the *Program Basics Guide*.

**Note**: To ensure data entry consistency, we recommend you establish business rules to automatically generate ID numbers. For more information about automatically generating IDs, see "Generate IDs Rules" on page 18.

3. In the Membership ID field, enter "289954".

4. In the **Dues** field, enter the amount \$750. Because you entered the dues amount in *Configuration* for the Young Maestros category, "Young Explorers" defaults automatically in the **Program** field and "Young Maestros" defaults automatically in the **Category** field.

🌮 New Members	hip for Susan M	. Taylor				_ 🗆 X
✓ Mem <u>b</u> ership A	(ttrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes )					
Constituent:	Susan Taylor		肾	ID: 146		New
Membership ID:	289954					
Dues:	\$750.00	<u> </u>	Aut <u>o</u> Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s		
Program:	Young Explorers		-	✓Members & <u>C</u> ards	Members: 1	Children: 0
Category:	Young Maestros		-	<u>G</u> ift of Membership	No gift of membe	ership
Subcategory:			•	✓ Benefits	Send to primary	member
Date joined:		🗖 Lifetime		Lin <u>k</u> to Gifts	J	
Expires:		Print ren	iewal notices			
Reason:			•	Comment(s):		Q
			ОК	Cancel		

For more information about setting up membership categories, see the Configuration chapter of the *Configuration & Security Guide*.

- 5. In the **Date joined** field, enter the date 06/20/2006.
- 6. In the Expires field, enter the date 06/20/2007 as the expiration date or click the calendar to select a date. If you established the default settings on the Membership Category screen in *Configuration*, you can tab down to the Expires field from the Date Joined field and the expiration date automatically defaults. For information about defining how the program calculates expiration dates, see the Configuration chapter of the *Configuration & Security Guide*.

🌮 New Members	hip for Susan M	. Taylor				_ 🗆 ×
✓ Mem <u>b</u> ership 4	Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes					
Constituent:	Susan Taylor			ID: 146		New
Membership ID:	289954					
Dues:	\$750.00	🔤 Aut <u>o</u>	Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s		
Program:	Young Explorers		•	✓Members & <u>C</u> ards	Members: 1	Children: 0
Category:	Young Maestros		-	<u>G</u> ift of Membership	No gift of membe	rship
Subcategory:			•	Be <u>n</u> efits	No benefits defin	ed
Date joined:	06/20/2006 📑	🗖 Lifetime		Lin <u>k</u> to Gifts		
Expires on:	06/20/2007 📑	Print renewa	al notices			
Reason:			•	Comment(s):		Q
			ок	Cancel		

**Warning**: If the **Renewal Notice Information** frame does not display on the Gift of Membership screen, information has already been entered in the **Send to** column in the **Renewal Notice Information When There Are Gifts of Membership** grid on the Renewal Information tab of the membership category record.

7. Click Gift of Membership. The Gift of Membership screen appears.

ift of Membership		2
Membership gift from:	iD:	
Special message: <b>Renewal Notice Inf</b>	rmation	A
	Notice Schedule	
🗖 Override 'Se	d To' field(s) in renewal notice schedule.	
Send renewal no	ices to: 🔿 Primary Member 💿 Donor 🔿 Both	
	OK Cancel	

**Warning**: The donor of a gift of membership must have a constituent record in your database.

8. In the **Membership gift from** field, click the binoculars. The Open screen appears, so you can search your database for Michelle Taylor. When found and selected, her name appears in the **Membership gift from** field. For more information about locating a membership record, see "Access a Membership Record" on page 6.

Gift of Membership 🗙
Membership gift from: Michelle Taylor
Special message:
Renewal Notice Information
View Renewal Notice Schedule
Override 'Send To' field(s) in renewal notice schedule.
Send renewal notices to: 🔿 Primary Member 💿 Donor 🔿 Both
OK Cancel

9. The gift of membership is a present for Susan's good grades in school. In the **Special message** field enter "Congratulations. Keep up the good work! Love, Grandma".

Gift of Membership	×
Membership gift from: Michelle Taylor	
Special message: Congratulations. Keep up the good work! Love, Grandma	4
Renewal Notice Information	
View Renewal Notice Schedule	
Override 'Send To' field(s) in renewal notice schedule.	
Send renewal notices to: 🔿 Primary Member 💿 Donor 🔿 Both	
OK Cancel	

**Note**: The **View Renewal Schedule** button in the **Renewal Notice Information** frame is enabled only if you established renewal schedules in *Configuration*. For information about establishing renewal schedules, see the Configuration chapter of the *Configuration & Security Guide*.

10. In the **Renewal Notice Information** frame, to enable and select the **Send renewal notices to** options, mark the **Override 'Send To' field(s) in renewal notice schedule** checkbox. Otherwise, information entered in the **Send to** column on the **Renewal Notice Information When There Are Gifts of Membership** grid on the Renewal Information tab (of the membership category record) is used to send renewal notices.

Gift of Membership 🛛 🗙
Membership gift from: Michelle Taylor
Special message: Congratulations. Keep up the good work! Love, Grandmother
Renewal Notice Information
View Renewal Notice Schedule
Override 'Send To' field(s) in renewal notice schedule.
Send renewal notices to: O Primary Member O Donor O Both
OK Cancel

11. Beside **Send all renewal notices to**, leave **Donor** as the selected default. You want renewal notices to be sent to Michelle Taylor, the donor.

If your organization prefers to send the renewal notices to the person receiving the gift of membership, select **Primary Member**. If you prefer the renewal notice be sent to the donor and the primary member, select **Both**.

12. Click **OK**. You return to the membership record.

🌮 New Members	hip for Susan M	. Taylor				_ 🗆 ×
🖌 Mem <u>b</u> ership 🛛	\ttrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes					
Constituent:	Susan Taylor			ID: 146		New
Membership ID:	289954					
Dues:	\$750.00	Aut <u>o</u> Pick	(	Solicito <u>r</u> s		
Program:	Young Explorers		-	✓ Members & Cards	Members: 1	Children: 0
Category:	Young Maestros		-	<u> Gift of Membership</u>	Mrs. Michelle Ta	ylor and\ Mr
Subcategory:			-	Be <u>n</u> efits	No benefits defir	ied
Date joined:	06/20/2006 📑	🗖 Lifetime		Lin <u>k</u> to Gifts	]	
Expires on:	06/20/2007 📑	Print renewal no	ices			
Reason:			•	Comment(s):		P
		OK		Cancel		

**Note**: If you click **Link to Gifts** without any information on the Gift of Membership screen, the member's name defaults in the **First name** and **Last/Org Name** fields on the Open screen. To add a gift of membership from the Open screen, overwrite the member's name in the **First name** and **Last/Org Name fields**. Click **Add New**. A screen appears similar to the Gift of Membership screen for you to enter the donor's name.

13. Click Link to Gifts. The Open screen appears.

🍂 Open					×
Find: Gift	7	Search using query: CDef	ault>	<b>A</b> 🔄	
Constituent Name	Gift Date	Gift Type	Gift Amount	Fi	🔁 <u>O</u> pen
Michelle Taylor	11/19/2007	Cash	\$50,000.00	Acquisition	Cancel
Michelle Taylor	09/25/2007	Cash	\$5,000.00	Playgroun	
Michelle Taylor	11/18/2006	Cash	\$5,000.00	Acquisitior	
Michelle Taylor	08/01/2005	Cash	\$25,000.00	Richard M	
Michelle Taylor	06/25/2004	Cash	\$125.00	2004 Anni	
Michelle Taylor	02/13/2004	Cash	\$10,000.00	Internatio	
Michelle Taylor	03/14/2003	Cash	\$25,000.00	Richard M	* Add New
					Options
•				Þ	
Find Gifts that meet the	se <u>c</u> riteria:				🚧 <u>F</u> ind Now
Last/Org name: Taylo	-	Type:	•		Ne <u>w</u> Search
First name: Mich	elle	<u> </u>			Previous Search
Constituent ID: 122					Q
SSN:		<b>•</b>			<b>`</b>
🔽 Display inactive co	nstituents 🛛 🗖 C	heck spouse name	Exact match only		
🔲 Display deceased o	constituents 🛛 🗖 C	heck aliases	🔲 Check nickname		Expand <u>R</u> esults

14. To add a new gift for Susan's gift of membership, click **Add New**. The New Gift screen appears.

🐺 New Gift								
File Edit View	File Edit View Gift Favorites Tools Help							
💾 Save and Clo	ose • 🔲 🎒 • 💁 • 🕅	H I F	→ ▼   🔁 ▼	a • 💼 🖅 🕈	? - 😹 -			
✓ Gift Miscell	aneous   Soft <u>C</u> redit   M <u>a</u> tchin	ng Gifts   Tribute	Attrib <u>u</u> tes Installn	nents/Payments   Sp <u>l</u> i	t Gift			
Constituent:	Michelle Taylor	Æ						
Gift type:	Pledge	$\checkmark$	Reference:		Þ			
Gift subtype:	Membership	~	Acknowledge:	Not Acknowledged				
Pledged on:			Letter	Membership Lett 💌	Benefits			
Pledge amt:	\$750.00	Schedule	Receipt:	Not Receipted				
Campaign:	Membership Campaign		Receipt amt/no.:	\$750.00				
Fund:	2006 Membership Fund			Send reminders	History			
Appeal:			Status/date:	Active	06/28/2005			
Package:								
Solicitors								
Pay method:	Cash 💌	EFT?	Amount bills:	\$0.00				
Ref no./date:			Amount coins:	\$0.00				
Date added:			Balance: \$0.00					
Press F7 for Cons	stituent Search							

**Note**: If you want to change the information on the New Gift screen, press **TAB** on your keyboard to enable the fields.

The default gift information you select for the membership category record in *Configuration* defaults automatically on the New Gift screen. If you want to select another donor for your new gift record, click the binoculars in the **Constituent** field to search for another constituent. For this scenario, leave "Michelle Taylor" in the **Constituent** field.

15. To save the gift record, click **Save and Close**. The Amount to Apply to Membership screen appears.

Amount to Apply to Mer	nbership	X			
Indicate how much of the	gift amount should be applied to this transactio	n			
Amount to apply to this transaction: \$750.00					
Gift Amount: \$750.00	Available to Apply: \$750.00				
	OK Cancel				

16. Because \$750 is the amount of Susan's dues, you want to apply the full amount to the membership record. Click **OK**. You return to the Membership tab.

🌮 New Membership for Susan M. Taylor 📃 🖂 🗙						
✓ Mem <u>b</u> ership At	trib <u>u</u> tes/Notes					
-						
Constituent:	Susan Taylor			ID: 146		New
Membership ID:	289954					
Dues:	\$750.00	📃 Au	it <u>o</u> Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s		
Program:	Young Explorers		•	✓Members & <u>C</u> ards	Members: 1	Children: 0
Category:	Young Maestros		•	✓ <u>G</u> ift of Membership	Mrs. Michelle Tag	ylor and\ Mr
Subcategory:			-	Be <u>n</u> efits	No benefits defin	ed
Date joined: 🛛	06/20/2006 🗾	🗖 Lifetime		View/Link Gifts	Paid: \$0.00	
Expires on:	06/20/2007 📰	Print rene	wal notices			
Reason:			•	Comment(s):		P
			ОК	Cancel		

17. To save the gift of membership information and exit the membership record, click **Save and Close** on the toolbar.

#### > Add and link a gift record to a membership record

**Warning**: You can link a gift only to a primary membership. Gifts cannot be linked to joint memberships because memberships are stored by the name of the primary member. Also, you cannot link a gift to a membership with the standing of Dropped.

If you enter membership information for a constituent, you need to add a gift record for the membership dues and link the gift record to the membership record.

**Scenario:** Chad Patterson sends your environmental protection organization a check for \$10,000. In his letter, he explains he wants \$5,000 to go toward payment for his Individual/Lifetime membership dues. He wants the remaining \$5,000 to go to the organization's Annual Fund. From Chad's membership record, create a new gift record for the donation. Then, link the gift to Chad's membership record to show it paid his dues for his Individual Lifetime membership.

1. From Chad Patterson's membership record, select the Membership tab. For information about opening a record, see "Open a membership record" on page 6.

🥟 Membership for Chad Patter	son		
<u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew <u>M</u> embership Fa	vorites <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp		
🎦 Save and Close 🔹 🔚 🚔 🍨	<u>д-ичэн</u> -	→ -   & t⊚ <b>I</b> ©   \$	🔉 💿 🕾 ? - 😹 -
🚩 Membership 🖌 Membership Hj	story Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes		
Constituent: Chad Patterson	<u>10</u>	ID: 63	Active
Current Transaction Type: Join			
Membership ID: 40			
Dues: \$5,000.00	Auto Pick	✓ Solicito <u>r</u> s	Mary Beth Richardson
Program: Individual	•	✓Members & Cards	Members: 1 Children: 0
Category: Lifetime	•	<u>G</u> ift of Membership	No gift of membership
Subcategory:	<b>•</b>	✓ Benefits	Send to primary member
Date joined: 10/15/2004 📧	🛛 🔽 Lifetime	Lin <u>k</u> to Gifts	
Expires:	Print renewal notices	Past Renewals	]
Summary Membership Information-			
Date joined: 10/15/2005	Last renewed: N	/Α	Last dropped: N/A
Total years: -1	Times renewed: 0	Cor	nsecutive years: ()

Note: The Link to Gifts button says View/Link Gifts if gift information is linked to the membership record.

🍂 Open Search using query: <Default> Find: Gift 備 🔄  $\overline{\mathbf{v}}$ Constituent Name Gift Date Gift Type Gift Amount <u>O</u>pen F 2 Chad Patterson 11/16/2005 \$2,000.00 2005 Ann Cash Cancel Chad Patterson 10/11/2004 Cash \$25,000.00 Annahelle Chad Patterson 02/10/2004 Cash \$50.00 2004 Anni Chad Patterson 02/11/2003 \$25,000.00 Annabelle Cash Chad Patterson 03/12/2002 Cash \$5,000.00 Annabelle Madd New Options • ► Find Gifts that meet these criteria: 🚧 Eind Now Last/Org name: Patterson • Type: • Ne<u>w</u> Search First name: Chad • Previous Search Constituent ID: 63 • Q SSN: • Display inactive constituents 🔲 Check spouse name Exact match only Expand <u>R</u>esults Display deceased constituents Check aliases Check nickname

2. Click Link to Gifts. The Open screen appears.

Warning: You can add gift information only for individuals who have a constituent record in your database.

3. Click Add New. The New Gift screen appears.

New Gift		
le Edit View	•	
Save and Clo	»se • 🔲 🖨 • 💁 • 💁 • 🕅 👖 🖣	▶ अ → • ि• <b>⊘</b> • 💼 🕋 ? • 😹 •
∕ Gif <u>t</u> <u>M</u> iscell	aneous 🛛 Soft <u>C</u> redit 🗍 M <u>a</u> tching Gifts 🗍 Tr <u>i</u> b	ute Attrib <u>u</u> tes Split Gift
Constituent:	Chad Patterson	
Gift type:	Cash 🔽	Reference:
Gift subtype:	<b>v</b>	Acknowledge: Not Acknowledged
Gift date:		Letter Membership Lett 🔽 🔟 🖌 Benefits
Amount:	\$0.00	Receipt: Not Receipted
Campaign:		Receipt amt/no.: \$0.00
Fund:	2006 Membership Fund 🔽 🛒	
Appeal:	Membership Mailing 🔽 🗾	
Package:		
Solicitors	<b></b>	
Pay method:	Cash 🔽 🗖 EFT?	Amount bills: \$0.00
Ref no./date:		Amount coins: \$0.00
) ate added:		
ess F7 for Cons		

- 4. In the Constituent field, leave the default "Chad Patterson".
- 5. Click **TAB** on your keyboard to enable the gift fields.
- 6. In the Gift type field, select "Cash".
- 7. In the **Gift date** field, enter the date 10/15/2006.
- 8. In the **Amount** field, enter the amount \$10,000.
- 9. In the Campaign field, select "Membership Campaign".

- 10. In the Fund field, select "2006 Membership Fund".
- 11. In the Appeal field, select "Membership Mailing".

🖗 New Gift fo	r Chad Patterson	. 🗆
File Edit View		
💾 Save and Clo	»se • 🔲 🚔 • 🗟 • 🗐 🙌 ♦ 🕨 → • 🔁 • 🖉 • 🚞 🚰 ? • 😹 •	
✓ Gift Miscell	aneous   Soft <u>C</u> redit   M <u>a</u> tching Gifts   Tr <u>i</u> bute   Attrib <u>u</u> tes   Split Gift	
Constituent:	Chad Patterson ID: 63	
Gift type:	Cash Reference:	P
Gift subtype:	Acknowledge: Not Acknowledged	
Gift date:	10/15/2006 🔤 Letter Membership Lett 💌 💌 🖌 Bene	efits
Amount:	\$10,000.00 Receipt: Not Receipted	
Campaign:	Membership Campaign 💽 🕅 Receipt amt/no.: \$10,000.00 📰	
Fund:	2006 Membership Fund	
Appeal:	Membership Mailing	
Package:		
<ul> <li>Solicitors</li> </ul>	Mary Beth Richardson 🗾 🛋	
Pay method:	Cash EFT? Amount bills: \$0.00	
Ref no./date:	Amount coins: \$0.00	
Date added:		

**Note**: For more information about adding gift information, see the Gift Record chapter of the *Gift Records Guide*.

12. Because of Chad's request to divide his donation between two funds, select the Split Gift tab.

1	💱 New Gift for Chad Patterson 📃 🗖 🗙							
Eil	<u>File Edit V</u> iew <u>G</u> ift F <u>a</u> vorites <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp							
E	$\boxed{\textcircled{2}} Save and Close \bullet \square \implies \textcircled{2} \bullet \textcircled{2} \bullet \textcircled{2} \bullet \textcircled{2} \bullet \textcircled{3} \bullet$							
	Gift Miscellaneous Soft C	;redit   Matching Gifts   Trjb	ute Attrib <u>u</u> tes Split Gift					
				Enter by: 💿 Amount	C Percent			
ſ	Campaign	Fund	Appeal	Package	Amount			
	Membership Campaign	2006 Membership Fund	Membership Mailing		\$10,000			
1								
				Dist	ribute Evenly			
Ī	Gift amount: \$10,000.00	Distributed: \$10	D,000.00	Remaining: \$0.00				
_								

13. In the first row of the grid, information defaults into the **Campaign**, **Fund**, **Appeal**, and **Amount** columns based on the selections you made on the Gift tab.

- 14. In the first row of the grid, in the **Amount** column, change the amount to \$5,000 because this is how much of the gift goes toward the 2006 Membership Fund.
- 15. In the second row of the grid, in the Campaign column, select "Membership Campaign".
- 16. In the second row of the grid, in the Fund column, select "2006 Annual Fund".
- 17. In the second row of the grid, in the Appeal column, select "Membership Mailing".
- 18. In the second row of the grid, in the **Amount** column, enter the amount \$5,000, because this is how much of the gift goes toward the 2006 Annual Fund.

_	🐺 New Gift for Chad Patterson							
	File Edit View Gift Favorites Tools Help							
E	$\boxed{\begin{array}{c} \\ \hline \\ \end{array}} Save and Close \bullet \blacksquare \implies  \bullet  \bullet \bullet  \bullet \bullet  \bullet \bullet  \bullet \bullet  \bullet  \bullet \bullet  \bullet \bullet $							
	✓ Gift Miscellaneous Soft Credit Matching Gifts Tribute Attributes Split Gift							
	Enter by: 💿 Amount 🔿 Percent							
[	Campaign	Fund	Appeal	Package	Amount			
	Membership Campaign	2006 Membership Fund	Membership Mailing		\$5,000.00			
	Membership Campaign	2006 Annual Fund	Membership Mailing		\$5,000.00			
	[Distribute Eveny:]							
	Gift amount: \$10,000.00	Distributed: \$	10,000.00	Remaining: \$0.00				

19. Click Save and Close. The gift record is saved and the Amount to Apply to Membership screen appears.



**Tip**: It is not necessary to enter a currency character or decimal. The program automatically formats the currency when you leave the field.

- 20. In the Amount to apply to this transaction field, enter the amount \$5,000.
- 21. Click **OK**. You return to the Membership record.

22. Click **View/Linked Gifts**. The Linked Gifts for Membership transaction screen appears. The new gift information displays on the screen.

Linked Gifts for this Membership transaction							
Yew Linked Gift 🔄 Open 🧬 Break Link 🔁 Clo							
Gift Type	Gift Date	Amount Applied	Name				
Cash	10/15/2006	\$5,000.00	Chad Patterson				
Tabal a sid fas this Marshar							
Total paid for this Member	snip: \$5,000.00						

23. Click **Close**. You return to the Membership tab of the membership record.

🥟 Membership for Chad Patters	n						
File Edit View Membership Fav	orites Tools Help						
🎦 Save and Close 🔹 🔚 🚔 🍨	<u>д</u> -   н ∢ ▶ н   → -   & †⊚	🎼 🗞 🕹 💽 🕾 🖓 -					
✓ Membership ✓ Membership Hist	Membership						
Constituent: Chad Patterson	<b>所</b> ID: 63	Active					
Current Transaction Type: Join							
Membership ID: 40							
Dues: \$5,000.00	🏢 Aut <u>o</u> Pick 🖌 Solid	bito <u>r(</u> s) Mary Beth Richardson					
Program: Individual	Members	& <u>C</u> ards Members: 1 Children: 0					
Category: Lifetime	▼ <u>G</u> ift of Me	mbership No gift of membership					
Subcategory:	💌 💌 Be <u>r</u>	gefits Send to primary member					
Date joined: 10/15/2004 🖭	🔽 Lifetime 🗹 View/L	in <u>k</u> Gifts Paid: \$5,000.00					
Expires:	Print renewal notices Past Re	newals					
Summary Membership Information							
Date joined: 10/15/2004	Last renewed: N/A	Last dropped: N/A					
Total years: -1	Times renewed: 0	Consecutive years: ()					

24. To exit the membership record, click Save and Close on the toolbar.

#### > Link an existing gift record to a membership record

In *The Raiser's Edge*, you can link an existing gift record to a membership record. This is helpful if, for example, one of your constituents pays dues for a membership before he mails you an official membership request. Once you create a membership record for the constituent, you can link the gift record to the membership record. You can link more than one gift record to a membership transaction. This is helpful if the member decides to pay for his membership with a pledge or recurring gift.

**Scenario:** During your membership drive last month, Scarlett Ray gave you a personal check for \$10,000 for the Building Fund, but stipulated that \$2,000 should be used to pay her dues to become a Patron of the Arts Program. She did not complete the membership application at the time, but mailed it to you this week. You entered the gift on Scarlett's constituent record. Now create a membership record for her and link the gift record to the membership record.

1. From the Memberships page, click **New Membership**. The New Membership screen appears. For information about accessing the Memberships page, see "Navigate in Membership" on page 5. For information about creating a new membership record, see "Add a membership record" on page 34.

Constituent:			69			New
Membership ID:						
Dues:	\$0.00	Auto Pic	ж.	Solicitors		
Program:			$\overline{\nabla}$	✓ Members & <u>C</u> ards	Members: 1	Children: 0
Category:			7	Gift of Membership	No gift of memb	ership
Subcategory:			$\overline{\nabla}$	Be <u>n</u> efits	No benefits defi	ned
Date joined:	I	🗖 Lifetime		Lin <u>k</u> to Gifts	]	
Expires:	I	M Print renewal no	otices			
Reason:			-	Comment(s):		í.

**Note**: For more information about entering information in the fields on the Membership tab, see "Add a membership record" on page 34.

- 2. In the **Constituent** field, click the binoculars to access the Open screen so you can search for Scarlett in your database. Once found and selected, Scarlett's name appears in the field. For more information about the Open screen, see the Program Basics chapter of the *Program Basics Guide*.
- 3. In the Membership ID field, enter "061476".
- 4. In the **Dues** field, enter \$2,000.
- 5. In the Program field, select "Arts Program".
- 6. In the Category field, select "Patron".
- 7. In the **Date joined** field, enter the date 05/05/2006. Because you established a member expiration time on the Default Settings tab of the Patron category in *Configuration*, the date 05/05/2007 automatically defaults in the **Expires** field. For more information about creating membership categories, see the Configuration chapter of the *Configuration & Security Guide*.

M Open		Search using query: <	-faults	AB S	
Find: Gift		Search using query. KD	erault>	<u>#1 📎</u>	
Constituent Name	e Gift Date	Gift Type	Gift Amount	Fi	<u>a</u> <u>O</u> pen
Scarlett K. Ray	11/15/2005	Cash	\$650.00	Botanical	Cancel
Scarlett K. Ray	04/26/2006	Cash	\$10,000.00	Building Fi	
Scarlett K. Ray	12/07/2004	Cash	\$75.00	2004 Anni	
Scarlett K. Ray	02/02/2002	Cash	\$100.00	2002 Anni	
					Yadd New
					Options
•				•	
Find Gifts that meet I	:hese <u>c</u> riteria:				🙀 Eind Now
Last/Org name: 🖪		▼ Туре:	<b>_</b>		
-					Ne <u>w</u> Search
First name: So					Previous Searc
Constituent ID: 70	1	<b>T</b>			
SSN:		-			
Display inactive	constituents 🗖	Check spouse name	Exact match only		
Display decease		Check aliases	Check nickname		Expand <u>R</u> esult
<ul> <li>Dispidy decease</li> </ul>	sa constituents	Check allases	- Check hickhame		

8. Click Link to Gifts. The Open screen with Scarlett's list of gifts appears.

- 9. Highlight the gift for \$10,000 donated to the Building Fund on 04/26/2006.
- 10. Click **Open**. The Amount to Apply to Membership screen appears.

Amount to Apply to Membershi	p 🔀
Indicate how much of the gift amou	int should be applied to this transaction
Amount to apply to this transaction	x \$10,000.00 📓
Gift Amount: \$10,000.00	Available to Apply: \$10,000.00
OK	Cancel

- 11. Click the calculator on the **Amount to apply to this transaction** field to determine the portion of the gift you want to transfer to the membership. In this case, apply \$2,000 of the gift to the membership dues.
- 12. To link the gift to the membership record, click **OK**. You return to Scarlett's membership record.

🥟 New Members	hip for Scarlett	K. Ray				_ 🗆 ×
✓ Mem <u>b</u> ership A	(ttrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes					
Constituent:	Scarlett Ray			ID: 70		New
Membership ID:	061476					
Dues:	\$2,000.00	Auto	Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s		
Program:	Arts Program		•	✓Members & <u>C</u> ards	Members: 1	Children: 0
Category:	Patron		-	<u>G</u> ift of Membership	No gift of membe	rship
Subcategory:			•	✓ Benefits	Send to primary n	nember
Date joined:	05/05/2006 📑	🗖 Lifetime		View/Link Gifts	Paid: \$2,000.00	
Expires on:	05/05/2007 📑	🔽 Print renewa	l notices			
Reason:			•	Comment(s):		P
		(	эк	Cancel		

13. To save and close the linked information and exit the membership record, click **OK**.

### > Open and break a link between a gift and a membership record

Sometimes it is necessary to break a link between a membership record and a gift. This may be necessary if you linked the wrong records. You may also need to break the link between records if, for example, you linked the membership to a pledge that has not been fulfilled.

1. From Kate Williams membership record, select the Membership tab. For more information about accessing the Memberships page, see "Navigate in Membership" on page 5. For more information about opening a membership record, see "Open a membership record" on page 6.

ጶ Membership for Kate A. Willia	ims			_ 🗆 ×		
File Edit View Membership Fav	orites Tools Help					
🔁 Save and Close 🕶 🔚 🛛 🎒 🕶 🗌	д- и ( ⊳ и –	• • 🕼 🎼 🗞 🕹	🔹 💿 😭	? - 😹 -		
🖌 Membership 📔 Membership Hist	ory Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes					
Constituent: Kate Williams		ID: 89		Active		
Current Transaction Type: Join						
Membership ID: 24						
Dues: \$5,000.00	Aut <u>o</u> Pick	✓ Solicito <u>r</u> s	Anne Sinclair			
Program: Individual	•	✓Members & <u>C</u> ards	Members: 1	Children: 0		
Category: Lifetime	•	<u>G</u> ift of Membership	No gift of member	rship		
Subcategory:	•	✓ Be <u>n</u> efits	Send to primary n	nember		
Date joined: 10/13/2004 🧾	✓ Lifetime	View/Link_Gifts	Paid: \$5,000.00			
Expires on:	Print renewal notices	Past Renewals	J			
Summary Membership Information—						
Date joined: 10/13/2004	Last renewed: Na	/Α	Last dropped: N/	Δ.		
Total years: 0	Times renewed: 0	Cor	nsecutive years: 0			

2. Click View/Link Gifts. The Linked Gifts for this Membership transaction screen appears.

Linked Gifts for this M	inked Gifts for this Membership transaction 🛛 🔀							
🎦 New Linked Gift 🥃	🔄 Open 🖋 Break Link	<	🗖 Close					
Gift Type	Gift Date	Amount Applied	Name					
Cash	10/13/2004	\$5,000.00	Kate A. Williams					
1								
Total paid for this Member	ship: \$5,000.00							

3. Highlight the gift for which you want to break the link, and click **Break Link** on the action bar. A warning message appears.



4. To break the link, click Yes. You return to the Linked Gifts for Membership transaction screen.

Linked Gifts for this M	inked Gifts for this Membership transaction							
🎦 New Linked Gift 🚖 Open 🥔 Break Link								
Gift Type	Gift Date	Amount Applied	Name					
I								
Total paid for this Member	ship: \$0.00							

**Warning**: The gift types of Cash, Stock, Gift-in-Kind, Other, and pledge payments are included in the calculation of the **Paid** amount that displays next to the **View/Link Gifts** button.

5. Click **Close**. You return to the Membership tab.

🌮 Membership for Kate A. Willia	ms		_ [	X
File Edit View Membership Fav	vorites Tools Help			
🎦 Save and Close 🔹 🔚 🏼 🖨 🖛	<u>-</u>  и ∢ ⊳ и -	• • 🕹 🏠 🎼 🕏	👔 🔄 🖆 📍 • 😻 •	
✓ Membership  ✓ Membership Hist	ory Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes			
Constituent: Kate Williams		ID: 89	Activ	/e
Current Transaction Type: Join				
Membership ID: 24				
Dues: \$5,000.00	Auto Pick	<ul> <li>Solicito<u>r</u>s</li> </ul>	Anne Sinclair	
Program: Individual	•	✓Members & <u>C</u> ards	Members: 1 Children: 0	
Category: Lifetime	<b>•</b>	<u>G</u> ift of Membership	No gift of membership	
Subcategory:	•	✓ Be <u>n</u> efits	Send to primary member	
Date joined: 10/13/2004 📰	🔽 Lifetime	Link to Gifts		
Expires on:	Print renewal notices	Past Renewals	]	
Summary Membership Information				
Date joined: 10/13/2004	Last renewed: N/	Ά	Last dropped: N/A	
Total years: 0	Times renewed: 0	Con	nsecutive years: 0	
				[=

6. To save the changes and exit the membership record, click **Save and Close** on the toolbar.

# **Membership Benefits**

Membership benefits are gifts your organization gives to constituents depending on their level of membership or the dues they pay. You can determine the membership benefits associated with each membership category in advance or you can enter this information from the membership record. Default benefits are set up in Membership Categories in *Configuration*. You can also link membership benefits to a gift for gifts of membership. Computing the benefits for gifts linked to a membership transaction is very important. Failure to do so may affect the accuracy of the information printed on your receipts. Membership benefits, which are linked to a gift, reduce the tax-deductible portion of that gift. For example, if a member makes a gift of \$2,000 and the membership benefits are worth \$1,500, only \$500 of the donation is tax-deductible.

### Add membership benefits information

Membership benefits can be waived if the constituent wants to make a donation, but is not interested in receiving the membership benefits. This may be the case if you have two spouses holding the same type of membership. The husband may decide to waive his benefits, to avoid receiving duplicates of the items sent by your organization.

**Scenario:** You added Dr. Alan Hayes as a member, but you did not assign any membership benefits to his record. Alan is a member of the Patron of the Arts Program. Patrons receive a \$30 museum t-shirt, a \$5 museum calendar, and a 10% museum gift shop discount, estimated at \$60. Enter the membership benefits on Alan's membership record.

1. From Dr. Alan Hayes's membership record, select the Membership tab. For more information about accessing the Memberships page, see "Navigate in Membership" on page 5. For more information about opening a membership record, see "Open a membership record" on page 6.

🥟 Membership for Alan C. Hayes	\$			_ 🗆 ×
File Edit View Membership Fav	orites Tools Help			
🎦 Save and Close 🔹 🔚 🎒 🔹	д- и « ⊳ и –	• • 🕹 🎼 🎼 🕏	😵 💿 😭	? - 😹 -
💙 Mem <u>b</u> ership 🖌 Membership Hjst	ory 🗸 🗸 Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes 📔			
Constituent: Alan Hayes		ID: 185		Active
Current Transaction Type: Renewal	C Upgrade C Downgr	ade 💿 Same		
Membership ID: 89756				
Dues: \$2,000.00	Auto Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s		
Program: Arts Program	<b>•</b>	✓Members & Cards	Members: 1	Children: 0
Category: Patron	•	<u>G</u> ift of Membership	No gift of membe	rship
Subcategory:	•	✓ Benefits	Send to primary r	nember
Renewed on: 02/10/2006 📰	🗖 Lifetime	Lin <u>k</u> to Gifts		
Expires on: 02/10/2007 🔝	Print renewal notices	Past Renewals	]	
Summary Membership Information				
Date joined: 04/21/2002	Last renewed: 02	2/10/2006	Last dropped: N/	Ά
Total years: 3	Times renewed: 2	Co	nsecutive years: 3	

**Note**: If you established your default membership benefits in *Configuration*, that information automatically defaults into the Benefits screen. For more information about establishing benefit tables, see the Configuration chapter of the *Configuration & Security Guide*.

2. Click Benefits. The Benefits screen appears.

Benefits					×		
	Use the grid to enter benefits for this membership. In the event that a gift is linked to this membership, the benefits can be loaded on the gift as well.						
☐ Waive benefits			Send benefits to:	Primary      M	ember O <u>D</u> onor		
Benefit	Cou	int Unit Cost	Total Benefit/Value	Sent/Fulfilled	Comments		
		\$0.0	\$0.00				
J							
Load Default <u>B</u> enel	ïts				Total: <b>\$</b> 0.00		
Notes:							
					<b>A</b>		
					<b>V</b>		
		OK	Cancel				

**Warning**: If a membership record with benefits is linked to a gift record without benefits, the membership benefits default from the membership Benefits screen to the gift Benefits screen. However, if you edit the membership Benefits screen, you must manually make the same changes to the gift Benefits screen.

- 3. Do not mark the **Waive benefits** checkbox. If you mark this checkbox, you waive the benefits for the membership record, and the benefits grid disables.
- 4. In the first row of the Benefit column, select "T-shirt".
- 5. In the first row of the **Count** column, enter "1" for the number of T-shirts he should receive.
- 6. In the first row of the **Unit Cost** column, enter \$30, the price of the T-shirt Alan should receive. You do not have to enter the "\$", only the amount. The field is already formatted for monetary amounts.

**Note:** The final **Total** display in the middle right of the Benefits screen changes to reflect the sum of all **Total Benefit/Value** amounts entered on a membership record.

- 7. In the first row of the **Total Benefit/Value** column, the unit cost amount defaults automatically from the Default Benefits tab of *Configuration*. You do not have to enter the "\$", only the amount. The field is already formatted for monetary amounts.
- 8. In the first row of the **Sent/Fulfilled** column, enter the date 02/25/2006 to track the date the t-shirt was mailed to Alan.
- 9. In the first row of the Comments column, enter "Size XL".
- 10. To enter a second benefit in the grid, press **TAB** on your keyboard.

11. Repeat the previous steps for each benefit Alan should receive: the \$5 museum calendar, and the 10% museum gift shop discount, valued at \$60.

Benefits X						
Use the grid to enter benefits for this membership. In the event that a gift is linked to this membership, the benefits can be loaded on the gift as well.						
□ <u>W</u> aive benefits			Send benefits to:	Primary M	ember O Donor	
Benefit	Count	Unit Cost	Total Benefit/Value	Sent/Fulfilled	Comments	
T-Shirt	1	\$30.00	\$30.00	02/25/2006	Size XL	
Calendar	1	\$5.00	\$5.00	02/25/2006		
🖉 10% off Gift Shop It		\$60.00	\$60.00	02/25/2006		
Load Default Benefits					Total: \$95.00	
Notes:						
					-	
1						
		OK	Cancel			

**Note**: If you click **Load Default Benefits**, benefits from the Membership Category table in *Configuration* default in the grid, overwriting any manual selections you enter.

12. In the Notes frame, enter "Dr. Hayes requested that we mail his benefit package to his business address."

Benefits					×
Use the grid to enter benefits benefits can be loaded on th			ne event that a gift is link	ed to this memb	pership, the
□ <u>W</u> aive benefits			Send benefits to:	C Primary M	ember O <u>D</u> onor
Benefit	Count	Unit Cost	Total Benefit/Value	Sent/Fulfilled	Comments
T-Shirt	1	\$30.00	\$30.00	02/25/2006	Size XL
Calendar	1	\$5.00	\$5.00	02/25/2006	
10% off Gift Shop It		\$60.00	\$60.00	02/25/2006	
Load Default Benefits					Total: \$95.00
Notes:					
Dr. Hayes requested that we	e mail his	beneht package	to his business address		
					V
		OK	Cancel		

13. To save the membership benefits information, click **OK**. You return to the membership record.

Membership for Alan C. Haye iile Edit View Membership Fay				
🖪 Save and Close 🔹 🔚 🎒 🔹	<u>д-</u> нч ки -	• • 🕼 🎼 🕸	📚 😜 🖻	? - 😹 -
🖌 Mem <u>b</u> ership 📔 🗸 Membership Hist	ory 🗸 🗸 Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes 📔			
Constituent: Alan Hayes		ID: 185		Active
Current Transaction Type: Renewal	C Upgrade C Downg	rade 💽 Same		
Membership ID: 89756				
Dues: \$2,000.00	Auto Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s		
Program: Arts Program	<b></b>	✓Members & <u>C</u> ar	ds Members: 1	Children: 0
Category: Patron	•	<u>G</u> ift of Members	hip Nogift of mem	bership
Subcategory:	•	✓ Benefits	Send to primar	y member
Renewed on: 02/10/2006 📰	Lifetime	Lin <u>k</u> to Gifts		
Expires on: 02/10/2007 📰	Print renewal notices	<u>P</u> ast Renewal	s	
Summary Membership Information—				
Date joined: 04/21/2002	Last renewed: 02	2/10/2006	Last dropped:	N/A
Total years: 3	Times renewed: 2		Consecutive years:	3

14. To save the new information and exit the membership record, click Save and Close on the toolbar.

### > Add membership benefits information to a gift record

**Note**: You can add membership benefits information to a gift record only after the gift record is linked to a membership record.

Computing the benefits received for gifts linked to a membership transaction is very important. Not doing so may affect the accuracy of the information printed on your receipts. Membership benefits linked to a gift reduce the tax-deductible portion of that gift. For example, if a member donates a gift of \$2,000 and the membership benefits are worth \$1,500, only \$500 of the donation is tax-deductible.

1. From a membership record, select the Membership tab. For more information about accessing the Memberships page, see "Navigate in Membership" on page 5. For more information about opening a membership record, see "Open a membership record" on page 6.

🌮 Membership for Monica L. Sh				_ 🗆 ×
<u>File</u> <u>E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew <u>M</u> embership F <u>a</u> v	orites <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp ð.▼ Int of Is Int -	• • 🕹 ta 🎼 🕏		? - 😹 -
		<u>,                                     </u>	♥   थ्य   🖽	• .   <
✓ Membership ✓ Membership Hist	ory Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes			
Constituent: Monica Sharp		ID: 74		Active
Current Transaction Type: Renewal	C Upgrade C Downg	rade 💿 Same		
Membership ID: 49				
Dues: \$50.00	Auto Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s		
Program: Adopt an Animal	<b>T</b>	✓Members & Cards	Members: 1	Children: 0
Category: Sustainer	<b>T</b>	Gift of Membership	No gift of membe	ership
Subcategory: Flamingo	<b>~</b>	✓ Benefits	Send to primary i	member
Renewed on: 03/10/2006 📰	🗖 Lifetime	✓ View/Link Gifts	Paid: \$50.00	
Expires on: 03/10/2007 🛅	Print renewal notices	Past Renewals		
Summary Membership Information-				
Date joined: 06/14/1999	Last renewed: 03	3/10/2006	Last dropped: N	/A
Total years: 6	Times renewed: 3	Co	nsecutive years: 6	

2. Click View/Link Gifts. The Link Gifts for this Membership Transaction screen appears.

Linked Gifts for this M	embership transactio	n	×
Mew Linked Gift 🤅	🔄 Open 🖋 Break Link	<	🗖 Close
Gift Type	Gift Date	Amount Applied	Name
Cash	03/10/2006	\$50.00	Monica L. Sharp
1			
Total paid for this Member	ship: \$50.00		

3. Highlight the linked gift record, and click **Open**. The selected gift record appears.

🐺 Gift for Mon	ica L. Sharp					_ 🗆 ×
File Edit View	) Gift Favorites Tools H	elp				
🔁 Save and Clo	ose • 🔲 🎒 • 🐧 • 🖻	H 4 🕨	→ ▼   🔁 ▼	a - 💿 😭	? - 8	* •
🗸 Gif <u>t</u> 🖌 <u>M</u> iso	cellaneous   Soft <u>C</u> redit   M <u>a</u> to	hing Gifts   Trjb	ute [ Attrib <u>u</u> tes [ Sp <u>l</u> it	t Gift ]		
Constituent:	Monica Sharp		D: 74			
Gift type:	Cash	7	Reference:			P
Gift subtype:		-	Acknowledge:	Not Acknowledged		
Gift date:	03/10/2006 📰		🖌 Letter	Membership Lett 💌	· 💌	Benefits
Amount:	\$50.00		Receipt:	Not Receipted		
Campaign:	Membership Campaign	- A	Receipt amt/no.:	\$50.00	<b>_</b>	
Fund:	2006 Membership Fund	<b>▼ #</b>				
Appeal:	Membership Mailing	<b>▼ #</b>				
Package:		- 68				
✓ Solicitors	Anne Sinclair	<b>▼</b> ∰				
Pay method:	Cash 💌	EFT?	Amount bills:	\$0.00	<b>5</b>	
Ref no./date:			Amount coins:	\$0.00	<b>=</b>	
Date added:						
Press F7 for table	lookup					ø

4. Click **Benefits**. The Benefits screen appears.

Benefits					×
Enter goods, services, or ber	nefits rec	eived by the cor	istituent.		
Benefit	Count	Unit Cost	Total Benefit/Value	Sent/Fulfilled	Comments
· ·		\$0.00	\$0.00		
Load From					Total: <b>\$</b> 0.00
Notes:					
					4
					<b>T</b>
Include notes on receipt					
		OK	Cancel		

5. Click **Load From** and select the 03/10/2006 membership record from the menu that appears.

Ben	efits					×
Ente	er goods, services, or bei	nefits rec	eived by the con	stituent.		
	Benefit	Count	Unit Cost	Total Benefit/Value	Sent/Fulfilled	Comments
			\$0.00	\$0.00		
ίΩο	ad From.					Total: \$0.00
	03/10/200	6 - Susta	iner - Adopt an A	nimal		
Not	es: Membershi	p Mailing				
						<u></u>
						<b>v</b>
Γ.	Include notes on receipt					
			OK	Cancel		

6. The benefits from the membership Benefits screen automatically default to the gift Benefits screen.

Benefits					×
Enter goods, services, or be	nefits reci	eived by the cor	nstituent.		
Benefit	Count	Unit Cost	Total Benefit/Value	Sent/Fulfilled	Comments 🔺
Free Admission	2	\$11.00	\$22.00		
Parking Pass	1	\$4.00	\$4.00		
50% off Guest Passes		\$0.00	\$0.00		-
•					Þ
Load From					Total: \$42.00
					•
Notes:					
					<b></b>
					_
<u> </u>					<u></u>
Include notes on receipt					
		OK	Cancel		

7. To save the benefits information on the gift record, click **OK**. A message appears, asking if you want to update the receipt amount because the total benefit value has changed.

The Rais	er's Edge 🔀				
?	The total benefit value has changed. Do you wish to update the receipt amount to reflect these changes?				
	The new receipt amount would be \$8.00?				
	Yes     No     Cancel				
8. To update the receipt amount, click **Yes**. You return to the Gift tab of the gift record.

	<mark>iica L. Sharp</mark> ) Gift Favorites Tools H	lelp			
💾 Save and Clo	ose • 🔲 🖨 • 📐 • 🖻	H 4 ▶	) → • 🗗 •	🖉 • 💿 😭 📍	- 18 -
✓ Gift ↓ Misc	cellaneous   Soft <u>C</u> redit   M <u>a</u> ti	ching Gifts   Tr <u>i</u> t	oute   Attrib <u>u</u> tes   Sp <u>l</u> i	t Gift ]	
Constituent:	Monica Sharp		ID: 74		
Gift type:	Cash	7	Reference:		P
Gift subtype:		•	Acknowledge:	Not Acknowledged	· 📃
Gift date:	03/10/2006 📰		<ul> <li>Letter</li> </ul>	embership Letter 💌 📑	] 🖌 Benefits
Amount:	\$50.00		Receipt:	Not Receipted	· 🔳
Campaign:	Membership Campaign	<b>▼</b> (A)	Receipt amt/no.:	\$8.00	
Fund:	2006 Membership Fund	<b>▼ 6</b>			
Appeal:	Membership Mailing	- 68			
Package:		- 68			
<ul> <li>Solicitors</li> </ul>	Anne Sinclair	- 60			
Pay method:	Cash 💽	EFT?	Amount bills:	\$0.00	]
Ref no./date:			Amount coins:	\$0.00 🖬	1
Date added:					
					 Ø

9. To save the changes and close the gift record, click **Save and Close** on the gift record. You return to the Link Gifts for this Membership transaction screen.

Linked Gifts for this M	embership transaction	n	×
🎦 New Linked Gift 🥃	🔄 Open 🖋 Break Link		🗖 Close
Gift Type	Gift Date	Amount Applied	Name
Cash	03/10/2006	\$50.00	Monica L. Sharp
P			
Total paid for this Member	ship: \$50.00		

10. To return to the Membership tab, click **Close**.

🥟 Membership for Monica L. Sh	arp		
<u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew <u>M</u> embership F <u>a</u> v	vorites <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp		
🔁 Save and Close 🕶 🔚 🖨 🖛	<u>д-</u> нч ь н -	• • 🕹 🎲 🎼 🕏	👔 💿 😭 ? - 😹 -
✓ Membership ✓ Membership Hist	tory Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes		
Constituent: Monica Sharp		ID: 74	Active
Current Transaction Type: Renewal	O Upgrade O Downgr	rade 💿 Same	
Membership ID: 49			
Dues: \$50.00	🔤 🛛 Auto Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s	
Program: Adopt an Animal	<b>~</b>	✓Members & <u>C</u> ards	Members: 1 Children: 0
Category: Sustainer	-	<u>G</u> ift of Membership	No gift of membership
Subcategory: Flamingo	<b>T</b>	✓ Be <u>n</u> efits	Send to primary member
Renewed on: 03/10/2006 🧾	🗖 Lifetime	✓ View/Lin <u>k</u> Gifts	Paid: \$50.00
Expires on: 03/10/2007 📰	Print renewal notices	Past Renewals	
Summary Membership Information-			
Date joined: 06/14/1999	Last renewed: 03	3/10/2006	Last dropped: N/A
Total years: 6	Times renewed: 3	Co	nsecutive years: 6

11. To save the changes and exit the membership record, click **Save and Close** on the toolbar.

### Membership Renewal Notice Information

Membership renewal notices serve as a reminder to constituents that a membership is about to expire. You can establish the frequency with which members receive renewal notices in *Configuration*. When printing membership renewal notices, you can decide if you want to print a customized renewal notice or a standard renewal notice.

Once you enter a membership, you can use the membership renewal notice information to keep detailed information about renewal notices. You can keep detailed information about when you sent the renewal notices, which renewal letter was sent, and who received the renewal letter. This is especially helpful if your organization tracks and generates reports based on when members renew their memberships. For example, you can use this information to compare the renewal rates based on first or second renewal notices.

#### View membership renewal notice history

Membership renewal notice information is generated when you create custom or standard renewal notices in *Mail* or when you print renewal notice information from a constituent record and the member renews his membership as a result of the notices.

1. From a membership record, select the Membership tab. For more information about accessing the Memberships page, see "Navigate in Membership" on page 5. For more information about opening a membership record, see "Open a membership record" on page 6.

🌮 Membership for Campbell A. I	Phan			_ 🗆 ×
File Edit View Membership Fav				
🎦 Save and Close 🔹 🔚 🏼 🖨 🔹	ğ  н ч ⊳ н -	🔸 🛯 🏖 🎼 🕼 😽 🔷	💊 💿 😭 '	? • 😹 •
✓ Membership	ory Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes			
Constituent: Campbell Phan		ID: 94		Active
Current Transaction Type: Renewal	C Upgrade C Downgr	rade 💽 Same		
Membership ID: 33				
Dues: \$1,000.00	🖬 🛛 Aut <u>o</u> Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s		
Program: Arts Program	▼	✓Members & <u>C</u> ards	Members: 1	Children: 0
Category: Benefactor	•	<u>G</u> ift of Membership	No gift of member	ship
Subcategory:	▼	✓ Be <u>n</u> efits	Send to primary m	ember
Renewed on: 10/12/2004 📰	🗖 Lifetime	✓ View/Link Gifts	Paid: \$1,000.00	
Expires on: 10/12/2005 🧾	Print renewal notices	Past Renewals	]	
Summary Membership Information—				
Date joined: 10/15/1999	Last renewed: 10	0/12/2004	Last dropped: N//	4
Total years: 5	Times renewed: 1	Co	nsecutive years: 5	

2. Click **Past Renewals**. The Renewal Notice History screen appears. You can view the date the renewal was sent, which renewal letter the constituent received, the addressee used in the renewal letter, and the address to which the renewal was sent.

Name on Renewal	Sent To
Mr. Campbell A. Phan	Primary Me
Campbell A. Phan	Primary Me
Campbell A. Phan	Primary Me
Campbell A. Phan	Primary Me
	Campbell A. Phan Campbell A. Phan

3. Click Close. You return to the Membership tab.

🌮 Membership for Campbell A. F	'han			_ 🗆 ×
File Edit View Membership Fav	orites Tools Help			
🔁 Save and Close 🔹 🔚 🏼 🖨 🔹 🖸	д- и « ⊳ и –	• •   🏵 🎼 🎼 🕏	😵 💿 😭	? • 😹 •
💙 Mem <u>b</u> ership 🖌 Membership Hjst	ory Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes			
Constituent: Campbell Phan		ID: 94		Active
Current Transaction Type: Renewal	O Upgrade O Downgr	ade 💽 Same		
Membership ID: 33				
Dues: \$1,000.00	Auto Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s		
Program: Arts Program	•	✓Members & Cards	Members: 1	Children: 0
Category: Benefactor	•	<u>G</u> ift of Membership	No gift of membe	rship
Subcategory:	<b>•</b>	✓ Be <u>n</u> efits	Send to primary r	nember
Renewed on: 10/12/2004 📰	🗖 Lifetime	✓ View/Link Gifts	Paid: \$1,000.00	
Expires on: 10/12/2005 🧾	Print renewal notices	Past Renewals	9	
Summary Membership Information-				
Date joined: 10/15/1999	Last renewed: 10	)/12/2004	Last dropped: N/	Ά
Total years: 5	Times renewed: 1	Co	insecutive years: 5	

4. To exit the membership record, click **Save and Close** on the toolbar.

#### • View a renewal schedule for a membership

**Warning**: If you have not established a renewal schedule in *Configuration*, the **View Renewal Schedule** button is disabled.

Renewal notice information is retrieved from the default renewal notice schedule you establish in *Configuration*. You can establish a membership renewal schedule for each membership category you define. You can also define membership renewal schedules for gifts of membership or regular memberships.

This procedure uses the information added in "Add a gift of membership" on page 47.

1. From a membership record, select the Membership tab. For more information about accessing the Memberships page, see "Navigate in Membership" on page 5. For more information about opening a membership record, see "Open a membership record" on page 6.

🥟 Membership for Susan M. Tay	vlor			_ 🗆 ×
File Edit View Membership Fav	orites Tools Help			
🔁 Save and Close 🔹 🔚 🎒 🗧	ў   н ∢ ⊳ н   -	• •   & t⊚ <b>↓</b> ≶   ★	😫 💿 😭	? - 😹 -
💙 Mem <u>b</u> ership 🗸 Membership Hist	ory Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes			
Constituent: Susan Taylor		ID: 146		Active
Current Transaction Type: Join				
Membership ID: 289954				
Dues: \$750.00	Aut <u>o</u> Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s		
Program: Young Explorers	•	✓ Members & Cards	Members: 1	Children: 0
Category: Young Maestros	•	✓ <u>G</u> ift of Membership	Mrs. Michelle Tay	lor and\ Mr
Subcategory:	•	Be <u>n</u> efits	No benefits define	ed
Date joined: 06/20/2006 🧾	🗖 Lifetime	✓ View/Link Gifts	Paid: \$0.00	
Expires on: 06/20/2007 🧾	Print renewal notices	Past Renewals	]	
Summary Membership Information-				
Date joined: 06/20/2006	Last renewed: N/	/Α	Last dropped: N//	Δ,
Total years: 0	Times renewed: 0	Cor	nsecutive years: 0	

2. Click Gift of Membership. The Gift of Membership screen appears.

Gift of Membership	×
Membership gift from: Michelle Taylor	
Special message: Congratulations. Keep up the good work! Love, Grandma	
Renewal Notice Information	
View Renewal Notice Schedule	
☑ Override 'Send To' field(s) in renewal notice schedule.	
Send renewal notices to: C Primary Member 💿 Donor C Both	
OK Cancel	

3. Click View Renewal Notice Schedule. The Renewal Notice Schedule screen appears.

Standard Renewal Notice Information							
Letters	Comments	No.	Frequency	Before/After			
General First Notice		1	Month(s)	Before Expiration			
General Second Notice		1	Week(s)	After Expiration			
General Final Notice		2	Month(s)	After Expiration			

- 4. In the **Standard Renewal Notice Information** grid, you can view the renewal information pertaining to the gift of membership.
- 5. To close the Renewal Notice Schedule screen, click **OK**. You return to the Gift of Membership screen.

It is important to remember when you mark the **Override 'Send To' field(s) is renewal notice schedule** checkbox, the renewal notice is sent to the option you select on the Gift of Membership screen. Using this example, the renewal notice is sent to Michelle Taylor, the donor.

If you do not mark this checkbox, the renewal notice is sent according to the information already entered in the **Send to** column in the **Renewal Notice Information When There Are Gifts of Membership** grid on the Renewal Information tab of the membership category record in *Configuration*.

If renewal notice information for gifts of membership are not defined on the Renewal Information tab, renewal notice information is sent according to the information already entered in the **Regular Renewal Notice Information** grid on the same tab. For more information about the Renewal Information tab in membership categories, see the Configuration chapter in the *Configuration & Security Guide*.

- 6. Click **OK**. You return to the Membership tab.
- 7. To exit the membership record, click Save and Close on the toolbar.

# **Summary Membership Information**

The **Summary Membership Information** frame of a membership record provides a view-only summary of the most important information found in a membership record. This information includes the date the member joined, how many years he has been a member, date of the last renewal, and how many times the membership has been renewed.

🔗 Membership for Susan M. Tay	ylor							
File Edit View Membership Fav	· · · · · ·							
🔁 Save and Close 🔹 🔚 🎒 🗲	<u>д –</u> н ч ⊳ н   –	🔸 🕹 🏤 🎼 🗞	🕹 🔯 🖆 🔭 😹 -					
Membership V Membership History Attributes/Notes								
Constituent: Susan Taylor	<u>M</u>	ID: 146	Active					
Current Transaction Type: Join								
Membership ID: 289954								
Dues: \$750.00	Aut <u>o</u> Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s						
Program: Young Explorers	<b>v</b>	✓Members & <u>C</u> ards	Members: 1 Children: 0					
Category: Young Maestros	<b>v</b>	✓ <u>G</u> ift of Membership	Mrs. Michelle Taylor and\ Mr					
Subcategory:	<b>v</b>	Be <u>n</u> efits	No benefits defined					
Date joined: 06/20/2006 📰	Lifetime	✓ View/Link Gifts	Paid: \$0.00					
Expires on: 06/20/2007 🧰	Print renewal notices	Past Renewals						
Summary Membership Information—								
Date joined: 06/20/2006	Last renewed: N/	Ά	Last dropped: N/A					
Total years: 0	Times renewed: 0	Cor	nsecutive years: 0					

# Comments and Reasons on a Membership Record

In addition to viewing the information already entered on the record, you can add or change the comments that appear in the reason and comment sections of the membership record. Although the membership transaction reason information defaults to the type of membership action you are performing, you can still make changes to the information that displays in the **Reason** field.

#### • Add reasons and comments to a membership record.

**Scenario:** Susan Marie Taylor, a member of your zoo's Young Explorers program, is also interested in possibly supporting the Adopt an Animal progam because of her interest in lions and tigers. Make this notation in Susan's membership record. This scenario uses the membership record added in "Add a gift of membership" on page 47.

1. From Susan Taylor's membership record, select the Membership tab. For more information about accessing the Memberships page, see "Navigate in Membership" on page 5. For more information about opening a membership record, see "Open a membership record" on page 6.

🥟 Membership for Susan	M. Taylor		_ 🗆 X						
File Edit View Membersh	ip Favorites Tools Help								
🎦 Save and Close 👻 🔚 🦂	<b>⊴ - </b> ]к ∢ ⊳ н	→ •   & t⊚ ↓\$   \$ .	🕸 🖻 📍 ? • 💐 •						
Membership V Members	Membership								
Constituent: Susan Ta	ylor	ID: 146	Active						
Current Transaction Type: Joi	n								
Membership ID: 289954									
Dues: \$750.00	Auto Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s							
Program: Young Ex	plorers 💌	✓ Members & <u>C</u> ards	Members: 1 Children: 0						
Category: Young Ma	aestros 💌	✓ <u>G</u> ift of Membership	Mrs. Michelle Taylor and\ Mr						
Subcategory:	<b>T</b>	Be <u>n</u> efits	No benefits defined						
Date joined: 06/20/20	06 📰 🔲 Lifetime	✓ View/Lin <u>k</u> Gifts	Paid: \$0.00						
Expires on: 06/20/20	07 📷 🔽 Print renewal notices	Past Renewals							
Summary Membership Inform	ation								
Date joined: 06/20/2	006 Last renewed: N	I/A	Last dropped: N/A						
Total years: 0	Times renewed: 0	l Con:	secutive years: 0						

🧬 Membership for Susan M. Tay				
File Edit View Membership Fav	orites Tools Help			
🖪 Save and Close 🔹 🔚 🔿 🔹 🕻	х-   н ∢ ⊳ н   -	• •   🍪 the 🎼 🗞	😫 🔯 😭	? - 😹 -
✓ Membership ✓ Membership Hjsto	ory Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes			
Constituent: Susan Taylor		ID: 146		Active
Current Transaction Type: Join				
Membership ID: 289954				
Dues: \$750.00	Aut <u>o</u> Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s		
Program: Young Explorers	<b>*</b>	✓Members & <u>C</u> ards	Members: 1	Children: 0
Category: Young Maestros	<b>_</b>	✓ <u>G</u> ift of Membership	Mrs. Michelle Ta	ylor and\ Mr
Subcategory:	•	Be <u>n</u> efits	No benefits defir	ned
Date joined: 06/20/2006 📰	🗖 Lifetime	✓ View/Lin <u>k</u> Gifts	Paid: \$0.00	
Expires on: 06/20/2007 📰	Print renewal notices	Past Renewals	J	
Summary Membership Information-				
Date joined: 06/20/2006	Last renewed: N	/Α	Last dropped: N	/Α
Total years: 0	Times renewed: 0	Cor	nsecutive years: 0	

2. Click the **Reason/Comment** button in the lower right corner.

3. The Reason and Comment screen appears.

Reason an	d Comment	×
Reason:		•
Comment(s):		*
	ļ	-
	OK Cancel	

**Note**: For data entry consistency and accuracy, we recommend creating table entries for your membership reasons. For more information about how to create table entries, see the Configuration chapter of the *Configuration & Security Guide*.

4. In the **Reason** field, select "Interested in supporting the program". If you have appropriate security rights, you can enter the information directly in the **Reason** field. For more information about security, see the Security chapter of the *Configuration & Security Guide*.

5. In the **Comment(s)** field, enter "Susan is interested in possibly supporting the Adopt an Animal program because of her interest in lions and tigers."



6. To save the reason and comments, click **OK**. You return to the Membership tab. The information from the Reason and Comments screen is visible at the bottom of the Membership tab.

🥟 Membership for Susan M. Tayl	or		_	
File Edit View Membership Favo	orites Tools Help			
🔁 Save and Close 🔹 🔚 🎒 🕇 🗟	<b>т   н ∢ ⊳ н  </b> -	→ •   & to ↓\$   \$	😫 💿 🖆 🖓 📲	-
Membership V Membership Histo	ry Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes			
Constituent: Susan Taylor		ID: 146	Act	tive
Current Transaction Type: Join				
Membership ID: 289954				
Dues: \$750.00	Aut <u>o</u> Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s		
Program: Young Explorers	<b>T</b>	✓ Members & Cards	Members: 1 Children:	0
Category: Young Maestros	<b>T</b>	✓ <u>G</u> ift of Membership	Mrs. Michelle Taylor and\ M	Ir
Subcategory:	<b>_</b>	Benefits	No benefits defined	
Date joined: 06/20/2006 📰	🗖 Lifetime	✓ View/Lin <u>k</u> Gifts	Paid: \$0.00	
Expires on: 06/20/2007 📰	Print renewal notices	Past Renewals	]	
Summary Membership Information				
Date joined: 06/20/2006	Last renewed: N	/A	Last dropped: N/A	
Total years: 0	Times renewed: 0	Cor	nsecutive years: 0	
Reason for Join: Interested in supporti	ng the program 0	Comment: Susan is intere	sted in possibly supporting	
			1	

7. To save the changes and exit the membership record, click Save and Close on the toolbar.

# **Historic Membership Information**

**Note**: The appearance of the information in the grid depends on the options selected for the membership legend on the Color tab in User Options. For more information about legends, see the User Options chapter of the *Program Basics Guide*.

The History tab of a membership record displays historic information about all transactions ever performed on a membership record. For example, this tab can display the date a member joined, membership level, membership renewals, and any upgrades or downgrades in membership. The **Membership History Items** grid displays membership information, including the date and type of the transaction, the membership program, category, and subcategory, and the solicitor entered in the membership transaction. Most of the information on the grid is retrieved from individual membership **Details for Selected Item** frame displays information pertaining to the membership transaction highlighted in the grid.

#### Open a historic membership record

You can only edit information on the most recent membership transaction, but you can open all membership transactions displayed in the grid. Opening a membership transaction gives you access to the record for that transaction, but the information displayed in the grid is for viewing purposes only. To edit any of the information, you must return to that membership transaction.

1. From a membership record, select the Membership History tab. For more information about accessing the Memberships page, see "Navigate in Membership" on page 5. For more information about opening a membership record, see "Open a membership record" on page 6.

	ip for Anthony S. E				_ 🗆
	ew Membership Fa		elp		
Save and S	Close 🔹 🔛 😂 🕶 [	े. । ।	▶ । Ы   <b>→ •</b>   🕸 1	in 📭 📚 📚 🔤	9 ? • 😹 •
∕ Mem <u>b</u> ershi	ip 🚩 Membership H <u>i</u> s	tory Attrib <u>u</u> tes/N	otes		
巀 Open	XDelete	-			-
Membershij	o History Items				
Date 🛆	Transaction Type	Program	Category	Subcategory	Solicitors
06/25/1998	Joined	Arts Program	Benefactor	Art Aquisition Club	
06/06/1999	Renewal-Same	Arts Program	Benefactor	Art Aquisition Club	
06/15/2000	Renewal-Same	Arts Program	Benefactor	Art Aquisition Club	
07/01/2001	Renewal-Same	Arts Program	Benefactor	Art Aquisition Club	
11/26/2002	Renewal-Same	Arts Program	Benefactor	Art Aquisition Club	
02/10/2004	Upgrade	Arts Program	Lifetime		
•					
dembershij	o Detail for Selecte	d Transaction-			
Membership	dues: \$125.00	Exp	bires: 06/25/1999	Given by: N/A	
Send bene	fits to: Primary Membe	r Linked to	gift: No F	Reference: N/A	
Don's Done			J		

2. Highlight the transaction you want to view, and click **Open** on the action bar. The screen for the selected membership transaction appears.

Constituent: Anthony Ellis	🔝 ID:	: 17	Active
his renewal is a(n): O Upgrade O Dow	ngrade 💿 Same		
Membership ID: 62			
Dues: \$125.00 💼	Auto Pick	Solicitors	
Program: Arts Program	7	<u>G</u> ift of Membership	No gift of membership
Category: Benefactor	<b>_</b>	Be <u>n</u> efits	Send to primary member
Subcategory: Art Aquisition Club	<b>V</b>	<ul> <li>View/Link Gifts</li> </ul>	Paid: \$125.00
Renewed on: 11/26/2002 📰 🔲 Life	etime		
Expires on: 11/26/2003 🔟 🛛 Prin	nt renewal notices		
Reason:		omment(s):	J

3. Click **Close**. You return to the Membership History tab.

🛐 Open	ip				
Date A	-	Program	Category	Subcategory	Solicitors
6/25/1998	Joined	Arts Program	Benefactor	Art Aquisition Club	
	Renewal-Same	Arts Program	Benefactor	Art Aquisition Club	
6/15/2000	Renewal-Same	Arts Program	Benefactor	Art Aquisition Club	
7/01/2001	Renewal-Same	Arts Program	Benefactor	Art Aquisition Club	
1/26/2002	Renewal-Same	Arts Program	Benefactor	Art Aquisition Club	
)2/10/2004	opgrado	Arts Program	Lifetime		
4	o Detail for Selecte	d Transaction			
	dues: \$125.00		pires: 06/25/1999	Given by: N/A	
	fits to: Primary Membe			Reference: N/A	

4. To exit the membership record, click **Save and Close** on the toolbar.

# **Delete Historic Information**

The **Delete** button on the action bar of the Membership History tab is enabled only in certain conditions. For example, a membership transaction with the status of Joined cannot be deleted unless it is the current membership transaction. If you delete a membership transaction using this example, you receive the following message.



Note: You can always delete the most recent membership transaction.

If you click **Yes**, the entire membership record is permanently deleted because the Joined membership is the current membership transaction. To save the membership record, click **No**.

Membership transactions that are not the most recent transaction can be deleted in certain conditions. Examples of these conditions are in the tables below.

Transaction Type	Membership Category Example	Ability to Delete
Joined	Bronze	No
Renew-Same	Bronze	Yes
Renew-Same	Bronze	Yes
Renew-Same	Bronze	Yes

**Note**: Tables in this section are in the same order as they appear on the Membership History tab of a membership record in *The Raiser's Edge*. In these examples, the fist row of information is the oldest membership transaction. The fourth row is the most current.

For example, the Renew-Same membership transaction in the fourth row is the most recent transaction you can always delete. You can delete the previous two transactions because they are the same type and category. You can delete the Joined transaction only when the Joined transaction is the current membership transaction.

Transaction Type	Membership Category Example	Ability to Delete
Joined	Bronze	No
Renew-Upgrade	Silver	No
Renew-Same	Silver	Yes
Renew-Same	Silver	Yes

For example, the Renew-Same membership transaction in the fourth row is the most recent transaction you can always delete. The previous transaction is the same type and category and can be deleted. You cannot delete the Renew-Upgrade transaction because a Renew-Upgrade or Renew-Downgrade must have a different membership category than the preceding membership category in order to enable **Delete**. You can delete the Joined transaction only if the Joined transaction is the current membership transaction.

Transaction Type	Membership Category Example	Ability to Delete
Joined	Bronze	No
Renew-Same	Bronze	Yes
Upgrade	Silver	No
Renew-Same	Silver	Yes

**Note**: Tables in this section are in the same order as they appear on the Membership History tab of a membership record in *The Raiser's Edge*. In these examples, the fist row of information is the oldest membership transaction. The fourth row is the most current.

For example, the Renew-Same membership transaction in the fourth row is the most recent transaction you can always delete. The Upgrade transaction cannot be deleted because an Upgrade or a Downgrade must have a different membership category than the preceding membership category in order to enable **Delete**. You can delete the Renew-Same transaction because it includes a different membership category. You can delete the Joined transaction only if the Joined transaction is the current membership transaction.

Transaction Type	Membership Category Example	Ability to Delete
Joined	Bronze	No
Renew-Same	Bronze	Yes
Downgrade	Silver	No
Renew-Same	Silver	Yes

For example, the Renew-Same membership transaction in the fourth row is the most recent transaction you can always delete. The Upgrade transaction cannot be deleted because a Downgrade or an Upgrade must have a different membership category than the preceding membership category in order to enable **Delete**. You can delete the Renew-Same transaction because it includes a different membership category. You can delete the Joined transaction only if the Joined transaction is the current membership transaction

Transaction Type	Membership Category Example	Ability to Delete
Joined	Bronze	No
Renew-Upgrade	Silver	Yes
Renew-Upgrade	Gold	No
Renew-Same	Gold	Yes

For example, the Renew-Same membership transaction in the fourth row is the most recent transaction you can always delete. The Renew-Upgrade (Gold) transaction cannot be deleted because a Renew-Upgrade or Renew-Downgrade must have a different membership category than the preceding membership category in order to enable **Delete**. You can delete the Renew-Upgrade (Silver) transaction because it includes a different membership category. You can delete the Joined transaction only if the Joined transaction is the current membership transaction.

Transaction Type	Membership Category Example	Ability to Delete
Joined	Bronze	No
Drop	Bronze	No
Rejoin-Same	Bronze	No
Renew-Same	Bronze	Yes

**Note**: Tables in this section are in the same order as they appear on the Membership History tab of a membership record in *The Raiser's Edge*. In these examples, the fist row of information is the oldest membership transaction. The fourth row is the most current.

For example, the Renew-Same membership transaction in the fourth row is the most recent transaction you can always delete. The Rejoin-Same transaction cannot be deleted because a Rejoin-Same must follow a Drop transaction to enable **Delete**. You cannot delete the Drop transaction because a Rejoin-Same transaction type cannot follow a Joined transaction. You can delete the Joined transaction only if the Joined transaction is the current membership transaction.

#### > Delete a historic membership record

Before deleting any historic information, we recommend you make a backup of your database or run a report, in case you make a mistake or need to refer to the deleted information.

1. From a membership record, select the Membership History tab. For more information about accessing the Memberships page, see "Navigate in Membership" on page 5. For more information about opening a membership record, see "Open a membership record" on page 6.

_	XDelete History Items				
Date A	-	Program	Category	Subcategory	Solicitors
06/25/1998		Arts Program	Benefactor	Art Aquisition Club	
	Renewal-Same	Arts Program	Benefactor	Art Aquisition Club	
06/15/2000	Renewal-Same	Arts Program	Benefactor	Art Aguisition Club	
07/01/2001	Renewal-Same	Arts Program	Benefactor	Art Aguisition Club	
1/26/2002	Renewal-Same	Arts Program	Benefactor	Art Aguisition Club	
02/10/2004	Upgrade	Arts Program	Lifetime		
∢    1embershij	p Detail for Selecte	d Transaction-			
Membership	) dues: \$125.00	Ex	oires: 06/25/1999	Given by: N/A	
				anton by: thirt	

2. Highlight the membership transaction you want to delete, and click **Delete** on the action bar. A warning message appears.



3. To delete the membership transaction, click Yes. You return to the Membership History tab.

	ip 💙 Membership H <u>i</u> s	tory Attrib <u>u</u> tes/No	otes		
🛐 Open embershij	XDelete p History Items				
Date 🛆	Transaction Type	Program	Category	Subcategory	Solicitors
6/25/1998	Joined	Arts Program	Benefactor	Art Aquisition Club	
6/15/2000	Renewal-Same	Arts Program	Benefactor	Art Aquisition Club	
7/01/2001	Renewal-Same	Arts Program	Benefactor	Art Aquisition Club	
1/26/2002	Renewal-Same	Arts Program	Benefactor	Art Aquisition Club	
embershij	p Detail for Selecte	d Transaction			
dembership	odues: \$125.00	Exp	ires: 06/25/1999	Given by: N/A	
	efits to: Primary Membe	- Data da	gift: Yes 🛛 🛛 🕅	leference: N/A	

4. To save the changes and exit the membership record, click **Save and Close** on the toolbar.

# **Membership Attributes and Notes**

**Note**: To keep individual notes on a membership transaction, enter your notes in the **Reason** and **Comments** fields of a membership record. For more information about how to add reason and comments on a membership record, see "Comments and Reasons on a Membership Record" on page 76.

Attributes are categories of information you can use to store characteristics specific to a record. Attributes are helpful because they allow you to customize your membership records and track miscellaneous information not stored anywhere else in *The Raiser's Edge*.

For example, you can track if a member should receive a holiday gift by adding a Holiday Gift? attribute **Category**, and entering Yes or No in the **Description** column. You can define attribute categories using the **Attributes** link in *Configuration*.

On the Attributes/Notes tab of the membership record, you can store additional information about a member or the membership. For example, if a member also volunteers many hours at your organization, you may prefer to give her a special gift. In the **Notes** frame, you can enter "Because Mrs. Smith spends so much time volunteering at our organization, we should give a \$50 gift certificate and a cheese basket to her for the holidays." Membership notes and attributes are general in nature and not related to any specific membership transaction. You can use the attributes filter to view specific attributes on the grid.

#### Add a membership attribute

**Scenario:** In conversations with Margaret Murphy, you discover she and her husband are very interested in Asian art. You want to make a note of this special interest on David Murphy's membership record so when you have a membership drive for the Friends of the Asian Arts Program, you can contact the Murphys. Add a membership attribute on David's membership record. This procedure uses the membership record was added in the scenario "Add a membership record" on page 34.

1. From David Murphy's membership record, select the Attributes/Notes tab. For more information about accessing the Memberships page, see "Navigate in Membership" on page 5. For more information about opening a membership record, see "Open a membership record" on page 6.

🥟 Membership for David	B. Murphy					
<u>File Edit View M</u> embership F <u>a</u> vorites <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp						
$\boxed{\fbox{Save and Close *}} \boxed{\fbox{B}} \Rightarrow \boxed{\textcircled{A}} * \boxed{\texttt{M}} & \textcircled{A} \Rightarrow \boxed{\texttt{M}} \rightarrow * \boxed{\textcircled{A}} \boxed{\textcircled{A}} & \textcircled{A} & \Box{A} & \Box$						
✓ Membership V Membership History Attributes/Notes						
<all categories=""></all>	•					
Category	Description	Short Desc.	Date	Comments		
Notes:						
				<u></u>		
				<u>v</u>		

2. In the first row of the Category column, select "Exhibit Interest".

**Note**: We recommend you set up membership attributes in advance. If any of the attributes use a table, you should also set up the table in advance. Setting up tables in advance reduces data entry time and ensures consistency. For more information about setting up attributes or tables, see the Configuration chapter of the *Configuration & Security Guide*.

- 3. In the first row of the Description column, select "Asian Art".
- 4. In the first row of the **Date** column, enter the date 05/30/2006. You can click the calendar to select a date.

5. In the first row of the **Comments** column, enter "Contact for new program".

<mark>∲ Membership for David</mark> <u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew <u>M</u> embersh	ip F <u>a</u> vorites <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp				
$\boxed{\begin{array}{c} \\ \hline \\ $					
✓ Membership ✓ Members	ship Hjstory Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes				
<all categories=""></all>	•				
Category	Description	Short Desc.	Date	Comments	
Exhibit Interests	Asian Art		05/30/2006	Contact for new program	
Notes:					
				<b>A</b>	
				_	
1				×	

6. In the Notes frame, enter "Candidates for Friends of Asian Art Program".

🥟 Membership for David	B. Murphy			_ 🗆 X		
<u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew <u>M</u> embersh	nip F <u>a</u> vorites <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp					
🎦 Save and Close 🔹	$\boxed{\textcircled{\ }} Save and Close \bullet \left[ \fbox{\ } \\ \blacksquare \\ \blacksquare \\ \blacksquare \\ \bullet \\ \bullet \\ \bullet \\ \bullet \\ \bullet \\ \bullet \\ \bullet$					
🖌 Mem <u>b</u> ership 🖌 Member	ship Hjstory Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes					
<all categories=""></all>	•					
Category	Description	Short Desc.	Date	Comments		
Exhibit Interests	Asian Art		05/30/2006	Contact for new program		
Notes:						
Candidates for Friends of As	ian Art Program					
Canaladics for Friends of As	ian Ait Togram					
				<b>T</b>		
· ·				_		

7. To save the changes and exit the membership record, click **Save and Close** on the toolbar.

# **Membership Transactions**

"Membership transaction" is the term used to describe the individual membership activities comprising a membership record. The activities can include adding, renewing, rejoining, upgrading, downgrading, and dropping a membership. You can also delete a membership. You can perform all these activities from the Memberships page or from the Membership tab of a constituent record.

# Renew a Membership

You can renew memberships for constituents whose memberships have lapsed or are no longer active. Renewing a membership keeps the membership in an active standing. You cannot renew a membership that has been dropped. Dropped memberships must be rejoined. At the time you renew a membership, you can also upgrade or downgrade the membership, or keep the membership the same.

#### Renew a membership

During the renewal process, you can also upgrade or downgrade a membership. When you perform a renewal/upgrade or renewal/downgrade, the member renews the membership for an additional membership year at a higher or lower level than the original membership.

*Scenario:* Inman's Industrial Supply is a Corporate Member in your organization's Business Level Program. The company's membership expired months ago and the company's contact called on 03/08/2006 to renew it at the same membership level. Renew the membership for Inman's Industrial Supply.

1. From Inman's Industrial Supply's membership record, select the Membership tab. For more information about accessing the Memberships page, see "Navigate in Membership" on page 5. For more information about opening a membership record, see "Open a membership record" on page 6.

🥟 Membership for Inman's Indus	trial Supply		_ 🗆 X				
File Edit View Membership Fav	orites Tools Help						
🎦 Save and Close 🕶 🔚 🗁 🛛	$\boxed{\blacksquare} \text{Save and Close} \bullet \boxed{\blacksquare} \implies \boxed{} \bullet \hline{} \bullet \boxed{} \bullet \boxed{} \bullet \hline{} \bullet \boxed{} \bullet \hline{} \bullet  \bullet  \bullet  \bullet \hline{ \bullet  \bullet  \bullet  \bullet \hline{ \bullet  \bullet \hline  \bullet \hline  \bullet  \bullet \hline \hline \bullet  \bullet \hline \hline \bullet \hline \hline \bullet $						
✓ Membership ✓ Membership Hist	✓ Mem <u>b</u> ership						
Constituent: Inman's Industrial	Supply	ID: Inman's Industrial Supply	Lapsed				
Current Transaction Type: Renewal	C Upgrade C Downgr	ade 💿 Same					
Membership ID: 38							
Dues: \$500.00	Aut <u>o</u> Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s					
Program: Business Level	•	✓ Members & <u>C</u> ards Members: 25	Children: 0				
Category: Corporate	•	<u>G</u> ift of Membership No gift of mem	bership				
Subcategory:	•	Benefits Send to primar	y member				
Renewed on: 09/09/2002 📰	🗖 Lifetime	Lin <u>k</u> to Gifts					
Expires on: 09/09/2003 🧾	Print renewal notices	<ul> <li>Past Renewals</li> </ul>					
Summary Membership Information							
Date joined: 01/28/1999	Last renewed: 09	I/09/2002 Last dropped:	N/A				
Total years: 4	Times renewed: 1	Consecutive years:	4				

Note: You can also renew a membership using the Renew link on the Membership tab of a constituent record.

2. On the toolbar, click **Renew**. A message appears, informing you of how long the membership record has been lapsed.



3. Click **OK**. The Renew Membership screen appears.

🌮 Renew Membership for Inman's Industrial Supply	×
✓ Mem <u>b</u> ership Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes ]	
Constituent: Inman's Industrial Supply	ID: Inman's Industrial Supply
This renewal is a(n): O Upgrade O Downgrade O Sa	ine
Membership ID: 38	
Dues: \$500.00 📃 Auto Pick	Solicitors
Program: Business Level	Members & Cards Members: 25 Children: 0
Category: Corporate	Gift of Membership No gift of membership
Subcategory:	Benefits Send to primary member
Renewed on: 06/28/2005 📰 🗖 Lifetime	Lin <u>k</u> to Gifts
Expires on: 06/28/2006 📰 🔽 Print renewal notic	es
Reason:	Comment(s):
Current Membership Information	
Category: Corporate Expires on: 09/09/2003	Last renewed: 09/09/2002 Total years: 4
Date joined: 01/28/1999 Last dropped: N/A	Times renewed: 1 Consecutive years: 4
OK	Cancel

- 4. In the **This renewal is a(n)** field, mark **Same** because Inman's Industrial Supply is continuing the same level of membership.
- 5. In the **Renewed on** field, enter the date 03/08/2006. You can also click the calendar to select a date.

**Note:** The **Expires** date fills in automatically when you enter the **Renewed on** date if a default membership term is established in *Configuration*. The program calculates the expiration date using the expiration defaults entered in Membership Categories. For more information about expiration defaults, see the Configuration chapter of the *Configuration & Security Guide*.

6. In the **Expires** field, enter the date 03/08/2007 or click the calendar to select a date.

7. Mark the **Print renewal notices** checkbox so you can print renewal notices in *Mail* to alert Inman's Industrial Supply that their membership is close to expiring.

< Renew Memb	ership for Inman's Industrial Supply		×
✓ Mem <u>b</u> ership A	Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes		
Constituent:	Inman's Industrial Supply	ID: Inman's Industrial Supply	Lapsed
This renewal is a	(n): O Upgrade O Downgrade 💿 Same		
Membership ID:	38		
Dues:	\$500.00 🔤 Auto Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s	
Program:	Business Level	✓Members & <u>C</u> ards Members: 25	Children: 0
Category:	Corporate	Gift of Membership No gift of mem	bership
Subcategory:	•	✓ Benefits Send to primar	y member
Renewed on:	03/08/2006 📰 🗖 Lifetime	Lin <u>k</u> to Gifts	
Expires on:	03/08/2007 💽 🔽 Print renewal notices		
Reason:	<b>•</b>	Comment(s):	P
Current Membersh	ip Information		
Category: Corp	orate Expires on: 09/09/2003	Last renewed: 09/09/2002	Total years: 4
Date joined: 01/2	8/1999 Last dropped: N/A	Times renewed: 1 Co	nsecutive years: 4
	OK	Cancel	

8. To save the renewal, click **OK**. You return to the membership record.

🌮 Membership for Inman's Indus	strial Supply		_ 🗆 ×			
File Edit View Membership Fav	orites Tools Help					
$\boxed{\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$						
💙 Mem <u>b</u> ership 🖌 Membership Hist	✓ Membership 🗸 Membership History Attributes/Notes					
Constituent: Inman's Industrial	Supply	ID: Inman's Industrial Supply	Active			
Current Transaction Type: Renewal	O Upgrade O Downgr	ade 💿 Same				
Membership ID: 38						
Dues: \$500.00	Aut <u>o</u> Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s				
Program: Business Level	•	✓Members & <u>C</u> ards Members: 25	i Children: 0			
Category: Corporate	•	<u>G</u> ift of Membership No gift of me	mbership			
Subcategory:	•	✓ Benefits Send to prima	ary member			
Renewed on: 03/08/2006 📰	🗖 Lifetime	Lin <u>k</u> to Gifts				
Expires on: 03/08/2007 🔝	Print renewal notices	<ul> <li><u>P</u>ast Renewals</li> </ul>				
Summary Membership Information-						
Date joined: 01/28/1999	Last renewed: 03	3/08/2006 Last dropped	: NZA			
Total years: 6	Times renewed: 2	Consecutive years	6			

9. To save the new information and exit the membership record, click **Save and Close** on the toolbar.

# Rejoin a Membership

When you rejoin a membership, you reinstate a dropped member to active status. When you rejoin a dropped membership, you maintain a record of all previous membership transactions.

Warning: You can only rejoin a membership that has been dropped.

#### • Rejoin a membership

**Scenario:** Paul Frantz was an active Patron of the Historic Homes club of your museum's Arts Program. When his membership expired, he forgot to renew the membership and was consequently dropped after the designated amount of time. Mr. Frantz now wants to be reinstated to an active membership status.

1. From Paul Frantz's membership record, select the Membership tab. For more information about accessing the Memberships page, see "Navigate in Membership" on page 5. For more information about opening a membership record, see "Open a membership record" on page 6.

ile Edit View Membership Favorites Iools Help Save and Close   Membership  Membership History Attributes/Notes  Membership Membership ID: 23  Dropped Current Transaction Type: Drop  Membership ID: 52  Dues: \$0.00  Auto Pick Solicitogs Program: Arts Program Arts Program Arts Program Arts Program Arts Program Begefits Send to primary member Dropped on: 05/30/2000  Frint:renewed: N/A Last dropped: 05/30/2000 Total years: 3  Reason for Drop: No response	Membership for I	Paul R. Frantz				_ 🗆 >
<ul> <li>✓ Membership II v Membership History Attributes/Notes</li> <li>Constituent: Paul Frantz</li> <li>ID: 23</li> <li>Dropped</li> <li>Current Transaction Type: Drop</li> <li>Membership ID: 52</li> <li>Dues: \$0.00</li> <li>Auto Pick</li> <li>Solicitors</li> <li>Program: Arts Program</li> <li>✓ Members &amp; Cards</li> <li>Membership</li> <li>No gift of membership</li> <li>Subcategory: Patron</li> <li>Subcategory: Historic Homes</li> <li>✓ Begefits</li> <li>Send to primary member</li> <li>Dropped on: 05/30/2000 ■ □ Lifetime</li> <li>Ling to Gifts</li> <li>Expires: 05/30/2000 ■ □ Print:renewal notices</li> <li>Past Renewals</li> <li>Summary Membership Information</li> <li>Date joined: 02/25/1997</li> <li>Last renewed: N/A</li> <li>Last dropped: 05/30/2000</li> </ul>	ile <u>E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew <u>M</u> e	embership F <u>a</u> vorite	es <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp			
Constituent:       Paul Frantz       ID: 23       Dropped         Current Transaction Type: Drop       Membership ID: 52       ID: 23       Dues: \$0.00       Auto Pick       Solicitors         Program:       Arts Program       ✓ Members & Cards       Members: 1       Children: 0         Category:       Patron       Gift of Membership       No gift of membership         Subcategory:       Historic Homes       ✓ Benefits       Send to primary member         Dropped on:       05/30/2000       Im: Lifetime       Link to Gifts         Expires:       05/30/2000       Im: Printurenewal notices       Past Renewals         Summary Membership Information       Date joined:       02/25/1997       Last renewed:       N/A       Last dropped:       05/30/2000         Total years:       3       Times renewed:       0       Consecutive years:       3	Save and Close -	🔒 🚭 🗟	II I I I - II -	•• \$ to t⊘ \$	🔹 💿 😭	? - 😹 -
Current Transaction Type: Drop  Membership ID: 52  Dues: \$0.00  Auto Pick Solicitogs  Program: Arts Program  Members & Cards Members: 1 Children: 0  Category: Patron  Category: Patron  Subcategory: Historic Homes  Begefits Send to primary member  Dropped on: 05/30/2000  F Crint:renewal:notices Past Renewals  Summary Membership Information Date joined: 02/25/11997 Last renewed: N/A Last dropped: 05/30/2000 Total years: 3  Times renewed: 0  Consecutive years: 3	✓ Mem <u>b</u> ership	tembership History	Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes			
Membership ID:       52         Dues:       \$0.00         Program:       Arts Program         Arts Program:       Arts Program         Category:       Patron         Subcategory:       Historic Homes         Dropped on:       05/30/2000         Expires:       05/30/2000         Print:renewal notices       Past Renewals         Summary Membership Information       Date joined:       02/25/1997         Last renewed:       N/A       Last dropped:       05/30/2000         Total years:       3       Times renewed:       0       Consecutive years:       3	Constituent: Pa	aul Frantz	<i>0</i> 9	ID: 23		Dropped
Dues:       \$0.00       Auto Pick       Solicitors         Program:       Arts Program       ✓ Members & Cards       Members: 1       Children: 0         Category:       Patron       Gift of Membership       No gift of membership         Subcategory:       Historic Homes       ✓ Benefits       Send to primary member         Dropped on:       05/30/2000       Image: Consecutive years:       Print:renewal notices         Summary Membership Information       Date joined:       02/25/1997       Last renewed:       N/A         Date years:       3       Times renewed:       0       Consecutive years:       3	Current Transaction T	ype: Drop				
Program:       Arts Program       ✓ Members & Cards       Members: 1       Children: 0         Category:       Patron       ✓ Members & Cards       No gift of membership         Subcategory:       Historic Homes       ✓       Begefits       Send to primary member         Dropped on:       05/30/2000       Image: Lifetime       Link to Gifts       Expires:       05/30/2000       Image: Print:renewal notices       Past Renewals         Summary Membership Information       Date joined:       02/25/1997       Last renewed:       N/A       Last dropped:       05/30/2000         Total years:       3       Times renewed:       0       Consecutive years:       3	Membership ID: 52	2				
Category:       Patron       Gift of Membership       No gift of membership         Subcategory:       Historic Homes       Emperits       Send to primary member         Dropped on:       05/30/2000       Entretime       Link to Gifts         Expires:       05/30/2000       Print:renewal notices       Past Renewals         Summary Membership Information       Date joined:       02/25/1997       Last renewed:       N/A       Last dropped:       05/30/2000         Total years:       3       Times renewed:       0       Consecutive years:       3	Dues: \$0	).00	Auto Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s		
Subcategory:       Historic Homes       Image: Benefits       Send to primary member         Dropped on:       05/30/2000       Image: Link to Gifts       Link to Gifts         Expires:       05/30/2000       Image: Rrint:renewal:notices       Past Renewals         Summary Membership Information       Date joined:       02/25/1997       Last renewed: N/A       Last dropped:       05/30/2000         Total years:       3       Times renewed:       0       Consecutive years:       3	Program: Ar	ts Program	V	✓ Members & Cards	Members: 1	Children: 0
Dropped on:       05/30/2000       Image: Lifetime       Link to Gifts         Expires:       05/30/2000       Image: Print renewal notices       Past Renewals         Summary Membership Information       Information       Date joined:       02/25/1997         Date joined:       02/25/1997       Last renewed:       N/A       Last dropped:       05/30/2000         Total years:       3       Times renewed:       0       Consecutive years:       3	Category: Pa	atron	V	<u>G</u> ift of Membership	No gift of membe	ership
Expires: 05/30/2000 Rrint:renewal:notices Past Renewals Summary Membership Information Date joined: 02/25/1997 Last renewed: N/A Last dropped: 05/30/2000 Total years: 3 Times renewed: 0 Consecutive years: 3	Subcategory: H	istoric Homes	7	✓ Benefits	Send to primary i	member
Summary Membership Information Date joined: 02/25/1997 Last renewed: N/A Last dropped: 05/30/2000 Total years: 3 Times renewed: 0 Consecutive years: 3	Dropped on: 05	5/30/2000 🔳 🗖	Lifetime	Lin <u>k</u> to Gifts	]	
Date joined:     02/25/1997     Last renewed:     N/A     Last dropped:     05/30/2000       Total years:     3     Times renewed:     0     Consecutive years:     3	Expires: 05	5/30/2000 🔳 🗖	Print renewal notices	Past Renewals	]	
Total years: 3 Times renewed: 0 Consecutive years: 3	Summary Membership	Information				
	Date joined: 0	2/25/1997	Last renewed: N	/A	Last dropped: 05	5/30/2000
Reason for Drop: No response	Total years: 3	1	Times renewed: 0	Cor	nsecutive years: 3	
	Reason for Drop: No	o response				

Note: You can also rejoin a membership using the **Rejoin** link on the Membership tab of a constituent record.

2. On the toolbar, click **Rejoin**. The Rejoin Membership screen appears.

🥟 Rejoin Membe	ership for Paul R. Fran	ıtz		×
✓ Mem <u>b</u> ership ↓	Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes			
Constituent:	Paul Frantz	69	ID: 23	Dropped
This rejoin is a(	n): 🔿 Upgrade 🔿 Do	wngrade 💿 Same		
Membership ID:	52			
Dues:	\$0.00	Aut <u>o</u> Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s	
Program:	Arts Program	•	✓ Members & <u>C</u> ards	Members: 1 Children: 0
Category:	Patron	•	<u>G</u> ift of Membership	No gift of membership
Subcategory:	Historic Homes	•	✓ Be <u>n</u> efits	Send to primary member
Rejoined on:	📃 🗖 L	ifetime	Lin <u>k</u> to Gifts	
Expires:	🔳 🔽 P	rint renewal notices		
Reason:		•	Comment(s):	Q
Current Membersh	ip Information			
Category: Patro	n Expires o	on: N/A	Last renewed: N/A	Total years: 3
Date joined: 02/2	5/1997 Last droppe	ed: 05/30/2000	Times renewed: 0	Consecutive years: 3
		ОК	Cancel	

- 3. In the This rejoin is a(n) field, mark Same, because the membership level is not changing.
- 4. In the **Dues** field, enter the amount \$2,000. You can click the calculator to enter the amount.
- 5. Leave the default entries in the **Program**, **Category**, and **Subcategory** fields. These default from the original membership record.
- 6. In the **Rejoined on** field, enter the date 04/21/2006. You can click the calendar to select a date.

**Note**: The **Expires** date appears automatically when you enter the **Renewed on** date, if a default membership term is established in *Configuration*. The program calculates the expiration date using the expiration defaults entered in Membership Categories. For more information about expiration defaults, see the Configuration chapter of the *Configuration & Security Guide*.

7. In the **Expires** field, enter the date 04/21/2007 or use the calendar to select a date.

8. Mark the **Print renewal notices** checkbox, so you can print renewal notices using *Mail* to alert Paul when his membership is close to expiring.

🌮 Rejoin Member	ship for Paul R. Frantz		×
✓ Membership At	trib <u>u</u> tes/Notes		
Constituent:	Paul Frantz	ID: 23	Dropped
This rejoin is a(n	): O Upgrade O Downgrade 💿 Same		
Membership ID:	52		
Dues:	\$0.00 🖬 Auto Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s	
Program:	Arts Program 💌	✓Members & <u>C</u> ards	Members: 1 Children: 0
Category:	Patron 💌	<u>G</u> ift of Membership	No gift of membership
Subcategory:	Historic Homes 💌	✓ Benefits	Send to primary member
Rejoined on:	04/21/2006 📰 🗖 Lifetime	Lin <u>k</u> to Gifts	
Expires on:	04/21/2007 📰 🔽 Print renewal notices		
Reason:	•	Comment(s):	P
Current Membership	Information		
Category: Patron	n Expires on: N/A	Last renewed: N/A	Total years: 3
Date joined: 02/25.	/1997 Last dropped: 05/30/2000	Times renewed: 0	Consecutive years: 0
	ОК	Cancel	

9. To save the rejoined membership, click **OK**. You return to the membership record.

🤗 Membership for Paul R. Frant	z		_ 🗆 ×
File Edit View Membership Fav	orites Tools Help		
🎦 Save and Close 🕶 🔛 🗁 🗧	д- и ( ≻ и -	• •   🕹 🎼 🎼 📚   📚	👔 🔄 😤 - 😹 -
💙 Membership 🗸 Membership Hist	ory Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes		
Constituent: Paul Frantz		ID: 23	Active
Current Transaction Type: Rejoin	C Upgrade C Downg	rade 💿 Same	
Membership ID: 52			
Dues: \$0.00	Aut <u>o</u> Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s	
Program: Arts Program	<b>•</b>	✓Members & Cards	Members: 1 Children: 0
Category: Patron	<b></b>	<u>G</u> ift of Membership	No gift of membership
Subcategory: Historic Homes	<b>•</b>	✓ Benefits	Send to primary member
Rejoined on: 04/21/2006 🔝	🗖 Lifetime	Lin <u>k</u> to Gifts	
Expires on: 04/21/2007 🧾	Print renewal notices	Past Renewals	
Summary Membership Information			
Date joined: 02/25/1997	Last renewed: N	/A	Last dropped: 05/30/2000
Total years: 8	Times renewed: 0	Cor	nsecutive years: 0
			E

10. To save the new information and exit the membership record, click **Save and Close** on the toolbar.

# Upgrade a Membership

**Note**: You can upgrade a membership using the **Upgrade** link on the Membership tab of a constituent record. You cannot upgrade a membership through an import.

Upgrading a constituent's membership transfers a current membership to a higher membership level. For example, a constituent joins at the Individual level and later decides to upgrade to a Family membership. With the upgrade option, you can change the level of the membership without having to drop the current membership and create a new one. This is helpful if you want to upgrade the membership, but still keep a record, for historic purposes, of the original membership transactions for each record.

#### Upgrade a membership

With **The Raiser's Edge**, you can upgrade a membership during the membership cycle. Upgrading a membership during the membership cycle means that a member is choosing to pay higher dues to enter a higher level of membership during the membership cycle year. Customarily, when upgrading during the cycle, the expiration date does not change unless the new membership category has a different expiration date than the one in which the member was previously entered.

**Scenario:** Mark Adamson is a Contributor to your zoo's Adopt an Animal Program. He is now interested in upgrading to Sustainer, the highest level of membership for the Adopt an Animal program, with dues of \$2,000 per membership year. Upgrade Mark's membership. Be sure to note that Mark's cousin recently became a trainer at the zoo and her involvement accounts for his new level of interest.

1. From Mark Adamson's membership record, select the Membership tab. For more information about accessing the Memberships page, see "Navigate in Membership" on page 5. For more information about opening a membership record, see "Open a membership record" on page 6.

🥩 Membership for Mark D. Adam	ison			_ 🗆 🗵
File Edit View Membership Fav	orites Tools Help			
🎦 Save and Close 🔹 🔚 🎒 🍨 🖸	3,- и • ⊳ и -	• • 🕹 🎼 🎼 🗞	😫 💽 😭 📍	- 8
🖌 Mem <u>b</u> ership 🖌 Membership Hjst	ory 🗸 🗸 Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes 🔪			
Constituent: Mark Adamson		ID: 3		Active
Current Transaction Type: Renewal	O Upgrade O Downgr	ade 💿 Same		
Membership ID: 3400				
Dues: \$250.00	🖬 🛛 Aut <u>o</u> Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s		
Program: Adopt an Animal	•	✓ Members & Cards	Members: 1	Children: 0
Category: Contributor	•	<u>G</u> ift of Membership	No gift of members	hip
Subcategory: Tiger	•	✓ Benefits	Send to primary me	mber
Renewed on: 06/28/2005 🧾	🗖 Lifetime	✓ View/Link Gifts	Paid: \$250.00	
Expires on: 06/28/2006 📰	Print renewal notices	Past Renewals		
Summary Membership Information				
Date joined: 07/20/1999	Last renewed: 08	6/28/2005	Last dropped: N/A	
Total years: 5	Times renewed: 4	Cor	nsecutive years: 5	

**Note**: If you realize you made a mistake when entering the original membership record and need to upgrade a membership for the current membership transaction, select **Upgrade** in the **Current Transaction Type** field. This scenario explains how to upgrade a membership for a new membership transaction during the membership cycle.

	pgrade for Mark D. Adamson / Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes		×
Constituent:	Mark Adamson	M ID: 3	Active
Membership ID:	3400		
Dues:	\$250.00 📃 Auto Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s	
Program:	Adopt an Animal	✓ Members & <u>C</u> ards Members: 1	Children: 0
Category:	Contributor	Gift of Membership No gift of me	embership
Subcategory:	Tiger	✓ Benefits Send to prim	ary member
Upgraded on:	07/20/2006 📰 🔲 Lifetime	Lin <u>k</u> to Gifts	
Expires on:	07/20/2007 📰 🔽 Print renewal not	ices	
Reason:		Comment(s):	P
Current Membersh	ip Information		
Category: Contr	ibutor Expires on: 06/28/2006	Last renewed: 06/28/2005	Total years: 5
Date joined: 07/2	0/1999 Last dropped: N/A	Times renewed: 4	Consecutive years: 5
	OK	Cancel	

2. On the toolbar, click **Upgrade**. The Membership Upgrade screen appears.

3. In the **Dues** field, enter the amount \$2,000 for the new dues. You can click the calculator to enter the amount.

🥟 Membership Up	grade for Mark	D. Adamson		×
✓ Mem <u>b</u> ership	Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes			
Constituent:	Mark Adamson		ID: 3	Active
Membership ID:	3400			
Dues:	\$2,000.00	Aut <u>o</u> Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s	
Program:	Adopt an Animal		✓ Members & <u>C</u> ards	Members: 1 Children: 0
Category:	Contributor		Gift of Membership	No gift of membership
Subcategory:	Tiger		✓ Be <u>n</u> efits	Send to primary member
Upgraded on:	07/20/2006 🗾	Lifetime	Lin <u>k</u> to Gifts	]
Expires on:	07/20/2007 📑	Print renewal notice:	3	
Reason:			Comment(s):	P
Current Membership	Information			
Category: Contrib	outor Exp	oires on: 06/28/2006	Last renewed: 06/2	8/2005 Total years: 5
Date joined: 07/20/	/1999 Last c	lropped: N/A	Times renewed: 4	Consecutive years: 5
		OK	Cancel	

**Note**: You can click the **Auto Pick** button to display a list of available program/category combinations, based on the dues amount entered. This button is enabled only if you established membership categories in *Configuration*.

4. Click Auto Pick. The Select Program/Category screen appears.

٩	You have entered a Dues amount that falls into these Categories. Selecting a row in this grid will default the Program and Category for you.				
Progr	am	Category			
Educa	ition Program	Sustainer			
Arts F	program	Patron			
Adopt	: an Animal	Patron			
Adopt	: an Animal	Sustainer			
, ,	OK	Cancel			

5. Highlight "Adopt an Animal/Sustainer" and click **OK**. You return to the Upgrade screen.

🥟 Membership Upgrade for Mark D. Adamson	×
✓ Mem <u>b</u> ership ✓ Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes	
Constituent: Mark Adamson	ID: 3 Active
Membership ID: 3400	
Dues: \$2,000.00 🔤 Auto Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s
Program: Adopt an Animal	✓Members & <u>C</u> ards Members: 1 Children: 0
Category: Sustainer	<u>Gift of Membership</u> No gift of membership
Subcategory:	Benefits Send to primary member
Upgraded on: 07/20/2006 📰 🗖 Lifetime	Lin <u>k</u> to Gifts
Expires on: 07/20/2007 📰 🔽 Print renewal notices	
Reason:	Comment(s):
Current Membership Information	
Category: Contributor Expires on: 06/28/2006	Last renewed: 06/28/2005 Total years: 5
Date joined: 07/20/1999 Last dropped: N/A	Times renewed: 4 Consecutive years: 5
ОК	Cancel

- 6. In the **Upgraded on** field, enter the date 07/20/2006. You can also use the calendar to select a date.
- 7. The membership cycle for this type of membership is 1 year, the same as Mark's previous membership category. In the **Expires** field, enter the date 07/20/2007 or click the calendar to select a date.
- 8. To alert Mark when his membership is close to expiring, mark the **Print renewal notices** checkbox. For more information about renewal notices, see "Print membership renewal notices" on page 112.
- 9. In the Reason field, enter "Special Interest".

10. In the **Comment(s)** field, click the zoom button. The Zoom-Membership Comment screen appears. Enter "Mark's cousin recently joined zoo as a new tiger trainer."



11. Click **OK**. You return to the Upgrade screen again.

🥟 Membership U	pgrade for Mark D. Adamson		×
✓ Mem <u>b</u> ership	Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes		
Constituent:	Mark Adamson 🔝	ID: 3	Active
Membership ID:	3400		
Dues:	\$2,000.00 📃 Auto Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s	
Program:	Adopt an Animal 📃	✓Members & <u>C</u> ards Members: 1	Children: 0
Category:	Sustainer 💌	Gift of Membership No gift of members	ship
Subcategory:		Benefits Send to primary m	ember
Upgraded on:	07/20/2006 🔝 🗖 Lifetime	Lin <u>k</u> to Gifts	
Expires on:	07/20/2007 📰 🔽 Print renewal notices		
Reason:	Special interest	Comment(s): Mark's cousin recently joined	i zoo as a n 🗩
Current Membersh	ip Information		
Category: Conti	ibutor Expires on: 06/28/2006	Last renewed: 06/28/2005	Total years: 5
Date joined: 07/2	0/1999 Last dropped: N/A	Times renewed: 4 Conse	cutive years: 5
	OK	Cancel	

12. Click **OK**. You return to the Membership tab.

🖗 Membership for Mark D. Adar	nson			_ 🗆 ×
ile Edit View Membership Fav	orites Tools Help			
🖪 Save and Close 🕶 🔚 🗐 🖛 🗌	<u>д</u> - и а ► м -	•• <b>\$</b> 1⊜ <b>\$</b>   ₹	🗞 🖕 🖭 🕾 🖓 -	<b>8</b> -
✓ Mem <u>b</u> ership 🖌 ✓ Membership H <u>i</u> st	ory 🗸 🗸 Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes 📔			
Constituent: Mark Adamson		ID: 3	A	ctive
Current Transaction Type: Upgrade E	Juring Cycle			
Membership ID: 3400				
Dues: \$2,000.00	Aut <u>o</u> Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s		
Program: Adopt an Animal	<b>~</b>	✓Members & <u>C</u> ards	s Members: 1 Childr	en: 0
Category: Sustainer	•	<u>G</u> ift of Membershi	p No gift of membership	
Subcategory:	•	✓ Benefits	Send to primary member	
Upgraded on: 07/20/2006 🧾	🗖 Lifetime	Lin <u>k</u> to Gifts		
Expires on: 07/20/2007 🧱	Print renewal notices	Past Renewals		
Summary Membership Information —				
Date joined: 07/20/1999	Last renewed: 0	6/28/2005	Last dropped: N/A	
Total years: 5	Times renewed: 4	C	Consecutive years: 5	
Reason for Upgrade - Same: Special	interest C	Comment: Mark's cous	in recently joined zoo as a n.	

13. To save the new information and exit the membership record, click Save and Close on the toolbar.

### Downgrade a Membership

Downgrading a constituent's membership transfers a current membership to a lower membership level. For example, a constituent joins at the Contributor level and later goes back to school, meriting a downgrade to a Student membership. This transaction type is helpful if you want to downgrade the membership, but keep a record for historic purposes of the original membership transaction for each record.

#### Downgrade a membership

You can downgrade a membership during a cycle; for example, a member wants to maintain his membership, but decides to pay lower dues. A member with a Family membership may want to downgrade to an individual membership when his children go off to school. Customarily, during a downgrade cycle, the expiration date does not change, unless the new membership category has a different duration than the previous membership.

**Scenario:** Nicholas Vincent holds a family membership with your environmental organization. His children, Noel and Gaston, are away at school and do not currently use the benefits of the membership. Nicholas wants to maintain his membership as active, but does not want to continue paying dues at the Family membership level. Downgrade Nicholas' membership to the Individual membership level, which has dues of \$25. Also note on his record that he downgraded his membership because his children are away at school.

**Note**: You can downgrade a membership using the **Downgrade** link on the Membership tab of a constituent record. You cannot downgrade a membership through an import.

1. From Nicholas Vincent's membership record, select the Membership tab. For more information about accessing the Memberships page, see "Navigate in Membership" on page 5. For more information about opening a membership record, see "Open a membership record" on page 6.

🥟 Membership for Mr. Nic	holas Vincent		
<u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew <u>M</u> embershi	p F <u>a</u> vorites <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp		
🎦 Save and Close 👻 🔚 🗧	ਡ- <u>3</u> - н • ▶ א	→ • 🕹 🏤 🎼 🗞 😫 💽 😭	? - 😹 -
✓ Membership ✓ Members	hip History Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes		1
Constituent: Vincent, N	icholas 🧖	ID: 86	Active
Membership ID: 18			
Dues: \$50.00	Aut <u>o</u> Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s	
Program: Education	Program 💌	✓ Members & Cards Members: 1	Children: 1
Category: Family	<b>_</b>	<u>G</u> ift of Membership No gift of mem	bership
Subcategory: Rainfores	Club 💌	✓ Benefits Send to primar	y member
Date joined: 10/11/19	39 🔳 🔽 Lifetime	✓ View/Link Gifts Paid: \$50.00	
Expires:	Print renewal notices	Past Renewals	
Summary Membership Informa	ation		
Date joined: 10/11/1	399 Last renewed: N	I/A Last dropped:	N/A
Total years: 2	Times renewed: 0	Consecutive years:	2

2. Click **Downgrade** on the toolbar. From Membership tab. The Membership Downgrade for screen appears.

🥟 Membership D	owngrade for Nicholas Vincent		×
✓ Mem <u>b</u> ership A	uttrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes		
Constituent:	Nicholas Vincent 🧖	ID: 86	Active
Membership ID:	18		
Dues:	\$50.00 📓 Auto Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s	
Program:	Education Program	✓ Members & Cards	Members: 1 Children: 1
Category:	Family 💌	<u>G</u> ift of Membership	No gift of membership
Subcategory:	Rainforest Club	✓ Benefits	Send to primary member
Downgraded on:	10/11/1999 🔳 🗖 Lifetime	Lin <u>k</u> to Gifts	
Expires:	Print renewal notices		
Reason:	<b></b>	Comment(s):	Q
Current Membersh	ip Information		
Category: Famil	y Expires on: N/A	Last renewed: N/A	Total years: 3
Date joined: 10/1	1/1999 Last dropped: N/A	Times renewed: 0	Consecutive years: 3
	OK	Cancel	

- 3. In the **Dues** field, enter the amount \$25 for the new membership level. You can click the calculator to enter the amount.
- 4. In the Category field, enter "Individual".
- 5. In the **Downgraded on** field, enter the date 01/05/2006. You can also click the calendar to select a date.

**Note**: You need to enter a new expiration date only if the new membership category has a different length of membership cycle.

6. In the **Expires** field, enter the date 01/05/2007. You can use the calendar to select a date.

- 7. Mark the **Print renewal notices** checkbox, so you can print renewal notices in *Mail* to alert Nicholas when his membership is close to expiring. For more information about printing renewal notices, see "Print membership renewal notices" on page 112.
- 8. In the **Comments** field, enter "Mr. Vincent wanted to downgrade his membership level because his children are away at school and not able to take advantage of the membership benefits."

For all other fields, leave the default information from the original membership record.

🔗 Membership Downgrade for Nicholas Vincent		×
✓ Membership Attributes/Notes		
Constituent: Nicholas Vincent	ID: 86	Active
Membership ID: 18		
Dues: \$50.00 🔤 Auto Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s	
Program: Education Program	✓Members & <u>C</u> ards Me	mbers: 1 Children: 1
Category: Individual	Gift of Membership No	gift of membership
Subcategory:	✓ Benefits Ser	nd to primary member
Downgraded on: 01/05/2006 📰 🗖 Lifetime	Lin <u>k</u> to Gifts	
Expires on: 01/05/2007 📰 🗖 Print renewal notices		
Reason:	Comment(s):	P
Current Membership Information		
Category: Family Expires on: N/A	Last renewed: N/A	Total years: 5
Date joined: 10/11/1999 Last dropped: N/A	Times renewed: 0	Consecutive years: 5
OK	Cancel	

9. To save the downgrade, click **OK**. You return to the Membership tab.

🥟 Membership for Nicholas Vinc	ent			_ 🗆 ×
File Edit View Membership Fav	orites Tools Help			
🎦 Save and Close 🔹 🔛 🎒 🔹 🕻	<u>}</u> - и • ► н ⊣	• • 🕹 🏤 🎼 🗞	😵 💿 😭	? - 😹 -
Membership	ory Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes			
Constituent: Nicholas Vincent		ID: 86		Active
Current Transaction Type: Downgrade	e During Cycle			
Membership ID: 18				
Dues: \$50.00	🖬 🛛 Aut <u>o</u> Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s		
Program: Education Program	n 💌	✓ Members & <u>C</u> ards	Members: 1	Children: 1
Category: Individual	•	<u>G</u> ift of Membership	No gift of membe	rship
Subcategory:	<b>~</b>	✓ Be <u>n</u> efits	Send to primary r	nember
Downgraded on: 01/05/2006 📰	🗖 Lifetime	Lin <u>k</u> to Gifts		
Expires on: 01/05/2007 📰	Print renewal notices	<u>P</u> ast Renewals	]	
Summary Membership Information-				
Date joined: 10/11/1999	Last renewed: N/	Ά	Last dropped: N/	Ά
Total years: 5	Times renewed: 0	Cor	nsecutive years: 5	

10. To save the new information and exit the membership record, click Save and Close on the toolbar.

# Drop a Membership

You can drop a member regardless of the membership standing. Dropping a membership is useful if you want to keep a record of a constituent's past membership activity, but you no longer want the membership to be active. The standing of active members changes to lapsed if they do not renew their membership before the deadline you establish in *Configuration*. From *Configuration*, you can also define the length of a membership and determine when members receive renewal notices. In addition, you can also establish when lapsed members (members who have not renewed their membership by the expiration date) are dropped. *The Raiser's Edge* lets you drop selected members or globally drop a group of members. For more information about globally dropping members, see "Drop lapsed members" on page 106.

#### Drop a membership

**Scenario:** Susan Marie Taylor is a young benefactor for your zoo's Young Explorers Program. Her parents decided to move to another state and she wants to drop her membership. She wants the change in her membership status to be effective as of September 14, 2006. Drop Susan's membership. This scenario uses the membership record added in "Add a gift of membership" on page 47.

1. From Susan Taylor's membership record, select the Membership tab. For more information about accessing the Memberships page, see "Navigate in Membership" on page 5. For more information about opening a membership record, see "Open a membership record" on page 6.

🤗 Membership for Susan M. Tay	ylor			_ 🗆 ×
<u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew <u>M</u> embership F <u>a</u> v	orites <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp			
🎦 Save and Close 🗸 🔚 🚔 🕇	д- н ( ⊳ н -	→ •   \$ 1@ <b>!</b> \$   \$	🔹 💿 😭 🤶	- 18 -
💙 Mem <u>b</u> ership 🗸 Membership Hist	ory Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes )			
Constituent: Susan Taylor		ID: 146		Active
Current Transaction Type: Join				
Membership ID: 289954				
Dues: \$750.00	Aut <u>o</u> Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s		
Program: Young Explorers	•	✓ Members & <u>C</u> ards	Members: 1 Cł	nildren: 0
Category: Young Maestros	•	✓ <u>G</u> ift of Membership	Mrs. Michelle Taylor	and\ Mr
Subcategory:	•	Benefits	No benefits defined	
Date joined: 06/20/2006 🥅	Lifetime	✓ View/Link Gifts	Paid: \$0.00	
Expires on: 06/20/2007 🧾	☑ Print renewal notices	Past Renewals	J	
Summary Membership Information—				
Date joined: 06/20/2006	Last renewed: N	I/A	Last dropped: N/A	
Total years: 0	Times renewed: 0	Cor	nsecutive years: 0	
Reason for Join: Interested in suppor	ting the program	Comment: Susan is intere	sted in possibly support	iing 📧

Note: You can also drop a membership using the Drop link on the Membership tab of a constituent record.

2. On the toolbar, click **Drop**. The Drop Membership for screen appears.

Drop Members	ship for Susan M. Taylor 🛛 🗙
Date dropped:	09/14/2006 🔜
Reason:	
Comments:	×
	OK Cancel

- 3. In the **Date dropped** field, enter the date 09/14/2006. You can click the calendar to select a date.
- 4. In the **Reason** field, select "Moved". For more information about setting up tables for this field, see the Configuration chapter of the *Configuration & Security Guide*.
- 5. In the **Comments** frame, enter "Her parents are relocating out of state."

Drop Members	ship for Miss Susan Marie Taylor 🛛 🔀
Date dropped:	09/14/2006 🔤
Reason:	Moved
Comments:	Her parents are relocating out of state.
	-
	T T
	OK Cancel

Save and Close 🗸 🖡 Membership 🖌 Mer			•• \$ <b>1</b> \$ 19 \$	¥   🖄   🖺	ে জা
	· · · ·				
Constituent: Susa	n Taylor		ID: 146		Droppe
Current Transaction Type	e: Drop				
Membership ID: 2899	54				
Dues: \$0.0		Aut <u>o</u> Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s		
Program: Your	ng Explorers	<b>V</b>	✓Members & <u>C</u> ards	Members: 1	Children: 0
Category: Your	ng Maestros	7	<u>G</u> ift of Membership	No gift of memb	ership
Subcategory:		7	Be <u>n</u> efits	No benefits defi	ned
Dropped on: 09/1	4/2006 🗾 🗖 L	ifetime	Lin <u>k</u> to Gifts	]	
Expires on: 09/1	4/2006 🔟 🕅 F	rint renewal notices	Past Renewals		
Summary Membership In	formation				
Date joined: 06/	20/2006	Last renewed: N/	Ά	Last dropped: 0	9/14/2006
Total years: 0		Times renewed: 0	Cor	nsecutive years: 0	

6. To save this information, click **OK**. You return to the Membership tab.

7. To save all changes and exit the membership record, click **Save and Close** on the toolbar.

### Delete a Membership

Deleting a membership record permanently removes the membership from the constituent's record and leaves no record of the membership. You should delete records with extreme caution. Delete a membership record when you want to remove the member and the membership record from the database entirely. If the membership has lapsed, you may want to consider dropping the membership instead of deleting it. If you delete a membership record, no historic membership information remains. Before you delete any membership records, we recommend you back up your database, in case you make a mistake or need the information to create the record again.

#### > Delete a membership record

Note: You can also delete a membership using the Delete link on the Membership tab of a constituent record.

1. From a membership record, select the Membership tab. For more information about accessing the Memberships page, see "Navigate in Membership" on page 5. For more information about opening a membership record, see "Open a membership record" on page 6.

ጶ Membership for Susan M. T	-			
ile Edit View Membership F	avorites Tools Help			
💾 Save and Close 🔹 🔚 🏼 🖨 🔹	<u>д</u> н « → н →	🔹 🕼 🎼 🗞	🔹 💿 😭	? - 😹 -
🔨 Mem <u>b</u> ership 🖌 Membership H	story Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes			
Constituent: Susan Taylor		D: 146		Dropped
Current Transaction Type: Drop				
Membership ID: 289954				
Dues: \$0.00	Auto Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s		
Program: Young Explorer	s 💌	✓Members & <u>C</u> ards	Members: 1	Children: 0
Category: Young Maestro	s 🔽	<u>G</u> ift of Membership	No gift of membe	ership
Subcategory:	7	Be <u>n</u> efits	No benefits defir	ned
Dropped on: 09/14/2006		Lin <u>k</u> to Gifts		
Expires on: 09/14/2006	Print renewal notices	Past Renewals	J	
Summary Membership Information-				
Date joined: 06/20/2006	Last renewed: N/	A	Last dropped: 09	9/14/2006
Total years: 0	Times renewed: 0	Cor	nsecutive years: 0	
				1

**Note**: This procedure uses the membership record added in "Add a gift of membership" on page 47 and dropped in "Drop a membership" on page 102.

2. From the menu bar, select File, Delete. A warning message appears.

The Raiser's Edge 🛛 🛛 🕅		
?	Are you sure you want to delete this Membership record?	
	<u>Y</u> es	

3. To permanently delete the entire membership record, click **Yes**. If you decide not to delete the membership record, click **No** to return to the Membership tab.

The membership record is deleted and you return to the Memberships page.

# **Global Membership Transactions**

In *The Raiser's Edge*, you can perform global functions that may affect all your membership records, and also globally drop lapsed members or globally add membership information to a group of records. Because these processes can affect all records in your database, we recommend you back up your database before globally adding or dropping members or globally adding any membership information to records.
#### **Globally Drop Lapsed Members**

The **Drop Lapsed Members** link in *Administration* changes the status of a group of lapsed memberships from "Lapsed" to "Dropped" in a few simple steps. You can drop memberships based on the membership expiration date and the **Drop this membership after being lapsed for** option set for each membership category in *Configuration*.

**Note**: For information about establishing membership categories, see the Membership Categories section in the Configuration chapter of the *Configuration & Security Guide*.

For example, in the **Membership Categories** link of *Configuration*, you set the Silver membership category to expire in one year You tell the program to drop memberships two months after the expiration date. Today is June 14, 2006, and Linda Kennedy became a Silver member on June 14, 2005. If you run **Drop Lapsed Members** today, using the date on or before June 15, 2006, Linda is not dropped. She has not yet been lapsed for the two months, as required based on your settings in *Configuration*.

You cannot globally drop a lifetime membership. You must drop lifetime memberships individually from the constituent record.

#### Drop lapsed members

**Scenario:** Your organization plans to generate a number of reports to present to its board members, and you do not want lapsed members included. Because dropped members are not included in the reports, you decide it is best to change the status of all constituents who have lapsed as of this calendar year to "Dropped."

**Warning**: Before you globally drop lapsed members in *The Raiser's Edge*, you should have a complete backup of your database. To successfully back up your data, you must first shut down the database.

- 1. On the Raiser's Edge bar, click Admin. The Administration page appears.
- 2. Click Drop Lapsed Members. The Drop Lapsed Members screen appears, displaying the General tab.

Drop Lapsed Members	×
1: General 2: Filters	
Include All records	
What expiration dates do you wish to consider?	-
Date to use. This calendar yr	
Indicate the drop information you wish to include:	
Dropped date: O Use constituent's expiration date	
Use specified date: Today	
Reason: No response	
Comment	
Miscellaneous information	-
Create constituent query of dropped memberships	
Create membership query of dropped memberships	
Create control report  Preview C Print	
< Back         Next >         Cancel	y

- 3. Click Include and select the memberships you want to drop. You can select one of the following:
  - All records The program searches all membership records looking for those satisfying the drop criteria you establish.

Note: For more information about working in Query, see the Query & Export Guide.

- Selected records To use this selection, you must have saved a query of the records you want to include in the drop procedure. The Open Query screen appears, so you can select the query containing the records you want dropped. You can use a constituent, individual, organization, or membership query.
- One record This selection accesses the Open screen. You must locate the record you want dropped.

For this scenario, select All records.

4. In the What expiration dates do you wish to consider? frame, define your expiration date(s). In the Date to use field, click the drop-down arrow to access a list. If you select "Specific range", in the Date to use field, the Start date and End date fields display, and you must enter the date range.

For this scenario, select "This calendar yr".

- 5. In the **Indicate the drop information you wish to include** frame, select the information you want to appear on the membership record. You can select one of the following.
  - If you select **Use constituent's expiration date** as the **Dropped date**, the dropped date on the constituent's membership is the same as the date the membership lapsed.
  - If you want each constituent membership involved to have the same dropped date, select the **Use specified date** option and select the date you want the membership to show it was dropped. You must enter the date/date range information.
  - In the **Reason** field, click on the drop-down arrow to access a list of reason options (Moved, Did not respond), explaining why the members were dropped. The reason then appears on the Membership History tab of the constituent membership record.

**Note**: You establish reasons in **Tables** in *Configuration*. For more information, see the Configuration chapter of the *Configuration & Security Guide*.

• In the **Comment** field, you can enter any comments you want to include in the constituent membership records regarding the dropped members. For example, "Job relocation".

For this scenario, select Use specified date and select "Today".

- 6. In the Miscellaneous information frame, you can mark any of the following checkboxes.
  - Create constituent query of dropped memberships This checkbox generates an output query of all constituent records dropped.
  - Create membership query of dropped memberships This checkbox generates an output query of all the membership records dropped.
  - Create control report This checkbox generates a report displaying constituent name, membership category, lapsed date, and dropped date of every member dropped. You can select to **Preview** the report on your computer screen or **Print** the report.

7. To move to the Filters tab, click Next.

op Lapsed Memb	ers	
: General <u>2</u> : Filters	]	
👔 By using the g	rid below, this report r	nay be filtered on the items shown in the Selected Filters column.
Filters	Include	Selected Filters
Categories	All 💌	<all categories=""></all>
Programs	Al	<all programs=""></all>
Constituent Codes	Selected	<all codes="" constituent=""></all>
< Back Nex	t> Cancel	Drop Now

- 8. On this tab, you can select the criteria you want the program to use to filter the records included in the drop. You can filter records based on **Categories**, **Programs**, or **Constituent Codes**.
- 9. In the **Include** column, you can select to include "All" categories, programs, and/or constituent codes, or "Selected". If you choose "Selected", you must identify the category, program, or constituent codes you want to include in the **Selected Filters** column.

For this scenario, select "All" for each filter.

- 10. To drop the lapsed memberships, click **Drop Now**.
- 11. If on the General Tab, you marked the **Create constituent query of dropped memberships** checkbox or the **Create membership query of dropped memberships** checkbox, the Save Static Query screen appears (one for each checkbox).

Save Static Query	×
Query <u>n</u> ame: Lapsed Members	Save
Description: Dropped Lapsed Members Report Query on 07/7/2002	Cancel
Query format: Static Query Type: Membership	
Created From: Drop Lapsed	Members
☑ Other users may modify this query	

- 12. Enter a Query name and Description. You can also mark the Other users may execute this query or Other users may modify this query checkboxes and allow others to work with this query.
- 13. Click Save.

14. A screen appears, tracking the write off process. When the process is complete, if you marked the **Create control report** checkbox in the **Miscellaneous information** frame on the General tab, the report appears.

op Lapsed Members			
K ◀ 1 of 1 ► ►	🗉 🎒 🗲 🕭 92% 💌 🎒 Total:2	23 100% 23	of 23
3W			
	Dropped Lapsed Members		Page 1
	Dropped Lapsed Members Control Rep	ort	i age i
	Bropped Edpoed Members Sond Officer		
Expiry date: Include all dates			
Constituent Name	Program/Category	Lapsed on	Dropped on
National Blood Bank	Business Level/Non-Profit	04/27/1998	08/14/2001
Dean P Isley	Young Explorers/Young Maestros	08/01/2000	08/14/2001
Nick Vaughn	Education Programme/Family	10/11/2000	08/14/2001
Beth Richardson	Business Level/Corporate	03/18/2000	08/14/2001
Jill M Garrett	Adopt an Animal/Patron	09/15/2000	08/14/2001
Andrea Tidwell	Arts Programme/Benefactor	10/29/2000	08/14/2001
Elizabeth A Ashton	Young Explorers/Agua Kids	02/28/2001	08/14/2001
David Underwood	Arts Programme/Senior	03/11/1999	08/14/2001
Cameron Petterson	Arts Programme/Patron	10/15/2000	08/14/2001
Melissa C Davis	/Out-of-Area	02/22/2000	08/14/2001
Isabelle Gray	/Out-of-Area	01/15/2000	08/14/2001
Imman's Industrial Supply	Business Level/Corporate	01/28/2000	08/14/2001
AAA Concrete	Young Explorers/Young Maestros	04/01/1998	08/14/2001
Roger B Langley	Arts Programme/Benefactor	01/12/1999	08/14/2001
Geoffrey Beckner	Adopt an Animal/Contributor	03/05/2001	08/14/2001
Lesley M Justin	Young Explorers/Aqua Kids	03/09/2001	08/14/2001
Max Taylor	Young Explorers/Young Maestros	08/01/2000	08/14/2001
Tyler & Hanson Associates	Arts Programme/Patron	02/28/1999	08/14/2001
Helen Smith	Arts Programme/Senior	02/04/2001	08/14/2001
Betsy P Greene	Business Level/Non-Profit	01/02/2001	08/14/2001
Mary Newman	Friends of the Museum/Individual	08/06/2000	08/14/2001
Fred Sadler	Friends of the Museum/Individual	12/03/1999	08/14/2001

- 15. To print the report, click the print icon on the toolbar.
- 16. To close the report, click the "X" in the upper right corner. You return to the Administration page.

## Globally Add Membership Information to a Group of Records

**Note**: If you set **Membership ID** as a required field in *Configuration*, no membership records can be globally added, because each Membership ID is unique. However, if you set the business rule to automatically generate membership IDs, then memberships can be globally added.

Using the **Globally Add Records** link, you can add the same membership information to a group of selected records. This transaction is especially useful if you already created a query to define the group of records you want to add membership information. For example, your organization recently held its annual membership drive and all board members agreed to sign up for the Patron membership category. You can now create a query with the names of all your board members and add the appropriate membership information to all records at one time. For more information about globally adding membership information to a group of records, see the Globally Add Records chapter of the *Global Add, Delete, & Change Records Guide*.

# **Print Membership Information**

For each membership record you create, you can print membership cards and membership renewal notices. Membership cards display the identification information necessary for members to take advantage of the membership benefits they receive. Renewal notices help remind members that their membership expires at a specific time. Renewal notices can also contain the information necessary to renew a membership. You can print membership cards and renewal notices for one member at a time, or you can print numerous cards and renewal notices at the same time using the options available in *Mail*. The following procedures guide you through the process of printing one membership cards and renewal notice from the membership record. For more information about how to print numerous membership cards and renewal notices at the same time, see the *Mail Guide*.

#### Print membership cards

Membership cards provide detailed information about a specific membership record. They usually contain the name, number, and membership category of the member. Membership cards can also provide information about the number of additional members or guests covered by a primary membership. When printing membership cards, you can determine the recipient for which you want to print a card or you can print a card for all the recipients listed under a membership. You can also decide whether you want to print a customized membership card, a preprinted card, a blank card, or a 12-field card.

1. From a membership record, select **File**, **Print**. From the submenu, choose **Membership Cards**. For more information about opening a membership record, see "Open a membership record" on page 6.

🕫 Membership for Mark D. Adamson 📃 🗖 🔀				
<u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew <u>M</u> embership F <u>a</u> vorit	es <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp			
1 New Ctrl+N	H A ▶ H → - & 1@ 10 ★	👔 🙍 😭 📍 😵 -		
🔄 Open Ctrl+O		•   =   =   =   =		
n 🖄 Open jn New Window 🛛 Ctrl+l	Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes			
X Delete Membership	ID: 3	Active		
🔚 <u>S</u> ave Ctrl+S	- Custa			
🎦 Save and Ne <u>w</u> Ctrl+W	g Cycle			
🔁 Save and Close 🔋 Ctrl+L				
A Properties	Auto Pick Solicitors			
Print Set <u>u</u> p	✓ Members & <u>C</u> ards	Members: 1 Children: 0		
A Pre⊻iew	<u>G</u> ift of Membership	No gift of membership		
😹 <u>Print</u> 🕨	🛃 Membership Cards 🖌 🖌 Benefits	Send to primary member		
🚡 Export 🔹 🕨	Renewal Notices			
📑 Send as <u>M</u> ail 🕨	Eabels Link_to Gifts			
Recently Accessed Memberships	Envelopes <u>Past Renewals</u>	]		
Cose	Last renewed: 06/28/2005	Last dropped: N/A		
Total years: 3	Times renewed: 4 Co	nsecutive years: 5		
Reason for Upgrade - Same: Special Ir	terest Comment: Mark's cousir	n recently joined zoo as a n 🔳		

The Select a Parameter File screen appears.

2. Highlight the parameter file you want to use, and click **Select**.



**Note**: If you have not established a parameter file for membership cards in *Mail*, click **Add New** to define a new parameter file. For more information about membership card parameter files, see the *Mail Guide*.

After the membership cards process completes, a message appears, asking if you would like to mark the status on the membership cards to "Printed".



3. To change the **Status** field on the Primary Member's Card Information screen to "Printed", click **Yes**. You return to the Membership tab.

🌮 Membership for Mark D. Adan	nson		_ 🗆 ×				
File Edit View Membership Fav	orites Tools Help						
🎦 Save and Close 🔹 🔚 🚔 🍷 🖸	<u>दे</u> स ब ► अ	→ • 🕹 🎼 🐶 📚	👔 💽 🚰 📪 😹 -				
🚩 Mem <u>b</u> ership 🗸 Membership Hist	Membership V Membership History Attributes/Notes						
Constituent: Mark Adamson		ID: 3	Active				
Current Transaction Type: Upgrade D	uring Cycle						
Membership ID: 3400							
Dues: \$2,000.00	🖬 🛛 Aut <u>o</u> Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s					
Program: Adopt an Animal	<b>T</b>	✓Members & Cards	Members: 1 Children: 0				
Category: Sustainer	<b>•</b>	<u>G</u> ift of Membership	No gift of membership				
Subcategory:	•	✓ Benefits	Send to primary member				
Upgraded on: 07/20/2006 🧾	🗖 Lifetime	Lin <u>k</u> to Gifts					
Expires on: 07/20/2007 🔝	Print renewal notices	Past Renewals					
Summary Membership Information-							
Date joined: 07/20/1999	Last renewed: 0	6/28/2005	Last dropped: N/A				
Total years: 5	Times renewed: 4	t Co	nsecutive years: 5				
Reason for Upgrade - Same: Special	interest	Comment: Mark's cousin	recently joined zoo as a n				

4. To save the changes and exit the record, click **Save and Close** on the toolbar.

#### Print membership renewal notices

Membership renewal notices serve as reminders to constituents that a membership is about to expire. You can establish the frequency with which members receive renewal notices in *Configuration*. When printing membership renewal notices, you can decide if you want to print a customized renewal notice, a one-third page notice, a two-thirds page notice, or a full page renewal notice.

1. From the membership record, select **File**, **Print**. From the submenu, choose **Renewal Notices**. For more information about opening a membership record, see "Open a membership record" on page 6.

🔗 Membership for Mark D. Adamso	on 📃 🗖 🗙
File Edit View Membership Favorite	es <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp
New         Ctrl+N           Image: Open         Ctrl+O           Image: Open in New Window         Ctrl+I	H     +     > </th
X Delete Membership	ID: 3 Active
Save         Ctrl+S           Save and New         Ctrl+W           Save and Close         Ctrl+L	g Cycle
Properties	Auto Pick Solicitors
Print Setup Preview  Preview  Export  Second on Mail	
Send as <u>Mail</u>	Best Past Renewals
<u> </u>	Last renewed: 06/28/2005 Last dropped: N/A
Total years: 3	Times renewed: 4 Consecutive years: 5
Reason for Upgrade - Same: Special Ir	nterest Comment: Mark's cousin recently joined zoo as a n

2. From the Select a Parameter File screen, highlight the parameter file you want to use, and click Select.

Select a Parameter File	×
Select a parameter file to use for printing this mailing	
📸 Renewal Data file	<u>S</u> elect
	🛣 Cancel
	쒑 Add New
	🗳 <u>O</u> pen
	🏘 <u>F</u> ind
Conly show my parameter files	

3. The Export screen appears.



- 4. In the **Export file type** field, select the export type you need for your renewal letters.
- 5. In the **Export file name** field, assign a location to your data file and name it. For example, you can save this to C:\MyFiles and call it "Renewals.dat".
- 6. To include a header record in your data file, mark Include header.
- 7. To create a control report, mark Create control report and select to Preview or Print the report.
- 8. Click Export Now.

**Note**: If you have not established a parameter file for renewal notices in *Mail*, click **Add New** to define a new parameter file. For more information about renewal notice parameter files, see *Mail Guide*.

A message appears asking if you would like to record this mailing in each membership's renewal history.

The Rais	er's Edge 🛛 🕅
?	Would you like to record this mailing in each membership's renewal history?
	Yes No

9. To record the mailing on the Renewal History Screen, click Yes. You return to the Membership tab.

🥟 Membership for Mark D. Ada	nson			
File Edit View Membership Fav	vorites Tools Help			
🎦 Save and Close 🔹 🔚 🎒 🖛 [	<u>д-</u> нч > н -	→ •   & t⊚ <b>↓</b> \$   \$	🔉 💿 🕾 ? - 😹 -	
💙 Mem <u>b</u> ership 🗸 Membership Hjs	tory 🗸 🗸 Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes 📔			
Constituent: Mark Adamson		ID: 3	Active	
Current Transaction Type: Upgrade [	During Cycle			
Membership ID: 3400				
Dues: \$2,000.00	Aut <u>o</u> Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s		
Program: Adopt an Animal	•	✓Members & <u>C</u> ards	Members: 1 Children: 0	
Category: Sustainer	•	<u>G</u> ift of Membership	No gift of membership	
Subcategory:	•	✓ Benefits	Send to primary member	
Upgraded on: 07/20/2006 📰	🗖 Lifetime	Lin <u>k</u> to Gifts	]	
Expires on: 07/20/2007 🧾	Print renewal notices	Past Renewals	]	
Summary Membership Information—				
Date joined: 07/20/1999	Last renewed: 0	6/28/2005	Last dropped: N/A	
Total years: 5	Times renewed: 4	Cor	nsecutive years: 5	
Reason for Upgrade - Same: Special interest Comment: Mark's cousin recently joined zoo as a n				

10. To save the changes and exit the record, click Save and Close on the toolbar.

# **Membership Reports**

In addition to membership cards and renewal notices, you can also print membership specific reports. Membership reports track memberships, analyze membership activity, and create lists and directories of members. In addition, you can use membership reports to locate lapsed members, drop members who have not responded to renewal notices, and examine trends in membership. When you print membership reports, you can define the conditions records must meet to be included in the report. For more information about membership reports, refer to the *Reports Guide*.

## **View Other Memberships**

Each constituent in your database can belong to several membership categories at the same time, if you leave the **Do not allow multiple concurrent memberships** checkbox unmarked on the Activity options folder of Business rules in *Configuration*. For more information about membership Business Rules, see "Membership Business Rules" on page 16.

You can view all memberships and membership transactions for a constituent by selecting **<All>** from the tree view on the left side of the Other Memberships screen or you can view selected memberships based on the other items available on the tree view. Only memberships for the selected tree view option display in the grid. The information is for display purposes only and cannot be edited.

#### View other memberships

*Scenario:* Your organization just established a new membership category for individuals interested in the arts. You know Dean Isley always supports these types of activities, but you want to make sure you do not ask him to become a member if he already has more than two memberships. Check his membership record to see how many memberships he holds.

1. From Dean Isley's membership record, select **Membership**, **View Other Memberships** from the menu bar. The Other Memberships for screen appears. For information about opening a membership record, see "Open a membership record" on page 6.

Other Memberships for Dean P.	. Isley				×
	Standing	Category	Program	Subcategory	Date
📄 📄 Primary	<ul> <li>Lapsed</li> </ul>	Young Maes	Young Explo	Elementary	
Active		Young Maes	Young Explo	Elementary	07/07/2003
Lapsed/Dropped		Young Maes	Young Explo	Elementary	05/01/2000
	<b>∢</b> Overview fo	or Lapsed You		-	
		Date joined: 05			ears: 4
		ast renewed: 07		Times rene	
		.ast dropped: N/	Ά	Consecutive y	
	To To	tal members: 1		Total chil	dren: 0
		Close			

2. After viewing the information you want, click **Close**. You return to the Membership tab.

🌮 Membership for Dean P. Isle	y.			_ []
ile Edit View Membership Fa	vorites Tools Help			
🖪 Save and Close 🔹 🔚 🛛 🚑 🍷 [	<u>д</u> - н • э н -	• •   🏵 🏤 🎼 🕏	💊 💿 🕾 🕻	• \$\$ •
✓ Mem <u>b</u> ership	tory Attrib <u>u</u> tes/Notes			
Constituent: Dean Isley	[.]	ID: 33		Active
Current Transaction Type: Renewal	O Upgrade O Downgr	ade 💽 Same		
Membership ID: 69				
Dues: \$10,000.00	Aut <u>o</u> Pick	Solicito <u>r</u> s		
Program: Arts Program	▼	✓Members & Cards	Members: 1	Children: 0
Category: Benefactor	•	<u>G</u> ift of Membership	No gift of members	hip
Subcategory: Historic Homes	•	✓ Be <u>n</u> efits	Send to primary me	ember
Renewed on: 02/02/2006 🧾	🗖 Lifetime	Lin <u>k</u> to Gifts		
Expires on: 02/02/2007 🧾	Print renewal notices	Past Renewals		
Summary Membership Information-				
Date joined: 02/02/2002	Last renewed: 02	2/02/2006	Last dropped: N/A	
Total years: 3	Times renewed: 1	Co	nsecutive years: 3	

3. To exit the membership record, click **Save and Close** on the toolbar.

# Membership Tab of a Constituent Record

The Membership tab displays, in summary form, all memberships for a constituent. In addition to working with the membership record, you can also open and delete an existing membership transaction from the Memberships tab. You can customize the way membership legends appear in the **Memberships** grid. For more information about customizing membership legends, see the User Options chapter of the *Program Basics Guide*.

Sile Edit View Constitute	at Latter Equaritae Table	Hala						
File       Edit       View       Constituent       Letter       Favorites       Tools       Help         Save and Close v       Image: a state of the state of th								
✓ Bio 1       ✓ Bio 2       ✓ Addresses       ✓ Addressess/Salutations       ✓ Relationships       ✓ Appeals       Notes       ✓ Gifts         ✓ Attributes       Media       ✓ Actions       Honor/Memorial       ⊻olunteer       ✓ Prospect       ✓ Membership       ✓ Events								
🚹 New Membership 🔄 Open 🗙 Delete 🕹 Renew 🏦 Freipin 🗞 Upgrade 📚 Downgrade 🎼 Drop								
Alb Primary Active Lapsed/Dropped Summary	Memberships Standing Active Sustai	Category ner	Expires on 02/10/2007	Joined On 09/01/1997				
	Details for Adopt an Animal - Sustainer     Open X Delete							
	Transaction Type Renewal - Same Renewal - Same Renewal - Same Upgrade Renewal - Upgrade Joined	Transaction Date 02/10/2006 02/10/2004 11/19/2002 12/14/1999 12/15/1998 09/07/1998 09/07/1998	Total Paid \$0.00 Susta \$50.00 Susta \$50.00 Susta \$50.00 Susta \$0.00 Susta \$0.00 Susta \$0.00 Indiv	ainer ainer ainer ainer ributor				

You can also add new membership transactions from the Memberships page or from the Membership tab of a constituent record. We recommend you use the Memberships page if you are adding membership transactions for a group of records. This section provides an overview of the features found on the Membership tab of a constituent record. For detailed instructions about specific options, see "Membership Transactions" on page 89.

# Membership Transactions from the Membership Tab of a Constituent Record

**Note**: If you make changes to a record and notice your changes are not updated automatically, click **Save** on the toolbar before adding any additional information.

As mentioned earlier, "membership transaction" is the term used to describe the individual membership activities comprising a membership record. The activities can include adding, renewing, rejoining, upgrading, downgrading, and dropping a membership. From the Membership tab of a constituent record, you can perform all membership transactions. From the membership action bar, you can create, open, delete, renew, rejoin, upgrade, downgrade, and drop a membership. To access the screen associated with each transaction type, click the link on the action bar for the transaction you want to perform.



For detailed instructions about how to perform specific membership transactions, see "Membership Transactions" on page 89.

#### Membership Tab of a Constituent Record General Information

On the Membership tab of a constituent record, you can view all memberships and membership transactions for a constituent by selecting **<All>** from the tree view on the left side of the screen. If you select to view all memberships for a constituent, the **Memberships** grid displays a combination of primary, active, lapsed, and dropped memberships. In addition, the grid displays all memberships for which the constituent is the primary member. To view membership records specific to the Primary, Active, or Lapsed/Dropped membership standings, select the item from the tree view. Only memberships in selected categories display in the **Memberships** grid.

🖚 Julie M. Bach							
File Edit View Constituent Letter Favorites Tools Help							
$\blacksquare Save and Close \bullet \blacksquare \implies \land \bullet \blacksquare \bullet \bullet$							
v Bio 1       v Bio 2       v Addresses       v Addressees/Salutations       v Relationships       v Appeals       Notes       v Gifts         v Attributes       Media       v Actions       Honor/Memorial       Volunteer       v Prospect       v Membership       v Events							
🎦 New Membership 🤕 Open 🗙 Delete 🕹 Renew 🏤 Frejoin 🐟 Upgrade 📚 Downgrade 🎝 Drop							
	Memberships						
Primary	Standing Active	Category Sustainer	Expires on 02/10/2007	Joined On 09/01/1997			
Lapsed/Dropped	Activo	ouscainer	02/10/2007	09/01/1997			
Σ Summary							
	•						
	Details for Adopt	an Animal - Sustainer					
	😑 Open 🗙 Da		_				
	Transaction T	ype Transaction Date	Total Paid	Category			
	Renewal - Same	02/10/2006	\$0.00 Sustainer				
	Renewal - Same Renewal - Same	02/10/2004 11/19/2002	\$50.00 Sustainer \$50.00 Sustainer				
	Renewal - Same	12/14/1999	\$50.00 Sustainer				
	Upgrade Renewal - Upgrade	12/15/1998 e 09/07/1998		iustainer Iontributor			
	Joined	09/01/1990		ndividual			

You can click the plus sign beside a specific membership record to view all the membership transactions for the record.

**Note**: For more information about deleting a membership transaction, see "Delete Historic Information" on page 82.

To display the membership transactions for a membership record, highlight the record you want to display in the **Memberships** frame. The information automatically appears in the **Details for** frame. From the **Details** frame, you can open and delete membership transactions by clicking **Open** and **Delete** on the Details action bar.

📾 Julie M. Bach							
File Edit View Constituent Letter Favorites Tools Help							
$$\square$ Save and Close $$ $\blacksquare$ $\blacksquare$ $\square$ $\blacksquare$ $\blacksquare$ $\blacksquare$ $\blacksquare$ $\blacksquare$ $\blacksquare$ $							
v Bio 1       v Bio 2       v Addresses       v Addressees/Salutations       v Relationships       v Appeals       Notes       v Gifts         v Attributes       Media       v Actions       Honor/Memorial       Volunteer       v Prospect       v Membership       v Events							
🎦 New Membership 🔄 Open 🗙 Delete 🕹 Renew 🎼 Frejzin 😞 Upgrade 🖕 Downgrade 🥼 Drop							
	Memberships						
Primary	Standing	Category	Expires on	Joined On			
Active	Active S	Sustainer	02/10/2007	09/01/1997			
Lapsed/Dropped							
∑ Summary							
		an Animal - Sustainer					
	🔁 Open 🗙 De	elete					
	Transaction T	ype Transaction Date	Total Paid	Category			
	Renewal - Same	02/10/2006	\$0.00 Susta				
	Renewal - Same Renewal - Same	02/10/2004 11/19/2002	\$50.00 Sustainer \$50.00 Sustainer				
	Renewal - Same	12/14/1999	\$50.00 Sustainer				
	Upgrade	12/15/1998	\$0.00 Sust				
			\$0.00 Contributor \$0.00 Individual				
	20000	0010010000	goroo anan				
	P						
	Renewal - Upgrade Joined		\$0.00 Cont	ributor			

## Summary Membership Information on a Constituent Record

On the tab of a constituent record, you can view a summary of all the membership information available for a specific constituent. To view summary information for a constituent, select the **Summary** option from the membership tree view.



The right side of the tab displays information, including total years of membership, total number of renewals, consecutive years without dropping, date joined, and next and last renewal. For more information about membership summaries, see the *Summaries Guide*.

# Index

#### A

accessing, see navigating adding attribute to a membership 86 benefits 63 card information to a membership 41 comments to membership record 76 gift of membership 47 globally, membership information 109 members to membership 41 membership record 34 note to a membership 86 reasons to membership record 76 solicitor to a membership 39 additional memberships, viewing 114 attributes/notes tab adding a membership attribute 86 defined 29 auto pick 36

## В

benefits adding 63 defined 29 break link 61 business rules checklist 33 defined 16 generate IDs rules 18 membership rules 23 activity options 23 general options 21

## С

card information, adding 41 category checklist 33 default benefits tab 31 default settings tab 32 defined 4, 30 renewal information tab 32 checklist business rules 33 letters 33 membership categories 33 tables 33 comments, adding to membership record 76 *Configuration* business rules ID rules, generating 18 membership rules 23 constituent records membership tab 116 viewing all memberships for 114

#### D

default benefits tab 31 IDs 19 memberships 23 settings tab 32 deleting historic information 82 memberships 104, 105 downgrading a membership 99 dropping a membership 102

## G

general information tab 31 gift of membership adding 47 defined 4 linking to gift record 54 gift record adding membership benefits 67 memberships linked to 22 globally adding membership information 109 dropping lapsed members 106

#### Η

historic information, deleting 82 historical information 27, 79

#### |

IDs, generating 18

#### L

lapsed members, dropping 106 letters, checklist 33 lifetime membership adding 37 defined 4 linking 54

#### Μ

mail checklist 33 members, adding to membership 41 membership tab, constituent record 116

#### Ν

name display, default membership names 17 navigating membership page 5 opening 6 searching for a membership 9 toolbar 14 notes 29, 86

#### 0

opening, see navigating

#### Ρ

pledges, memberships linked to 23 preferences, see user options printing membership cards 109 renewal notices 112 program, defined 4

#### R

RE:Member, defined 3 reasons, adding to membership record 76 record defined 4 membership information adding 34 adding members 41 attributes 86

benefits 63 card information, adding 41 comments, adding 76 deleting a membership 104, 105 downgrading a membership 99 dropping a membership 102 gift of membership 46 globally adding to a group of records 109 globally dropping lapsed members 105 lifetime memberships 37 membership history tab 27, 79 membership tab 116 notes 86 printing 109 reasons, adding 76 rejoining a membership 91 renewal notice information 71 renewing a membership 89 reports 114 solicitors, adding 39 summary membership information 76 upgrading a membership 95 viewing all memberships 114 rejoining a membership 91 renewal information tab 32 notice information 71 notices , printing 112 renewing a membership 89 reports 114

#### S

searching for a membership record 9 solicitors, adding to membership 39 standing, defined 4 subcategory, defined 4 summary membership information 76

#### Т

tables, checklist 33 toolbar 14 transaction defined 5 deleting a membership 104, 105 downgrading a membership 99 dropping a membership 102 rejoining a membership 91 renewing a membership 89 upgrading a membership 95

#### U

upgrading a membership 95

user options 15

#### V

viewing all memberships 114